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Definitions

B

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“AGM(s)"
[RFRBFEANE ]

“Articles”
[E248)]

“Audit Committee”

[BZEZEE]

“Beijing Huaxia Lihong”

[EREE N

“Board”

S

“CEO”
1Tk AR %L

“China” or “PRC”

[

“CG Code”
(EEERTRD]

» o

“Company”, “our Company”,

“Group”, “our Group”, “China

» o«

Leon”, “we” or “us”

[ARR] -~ [AREE] -

(B A8 ) [ #AP]

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ AR

“Director(s)”

[E%]

*HKS”
el

RAFEBEN  BXESBMEIN - NIIFER
BERNAT®EE -

annual general meeting of the Company

BARARNBRRBFEAS

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 18 June 2016
FEARAFR2016 66 5 18 B M ALZ 2408

the audit committee of the Company

BEARBINERZRES

Beijing Huaxia Lihong Commodity Inspection Co., Ltd. (It REE 7B E miak A R QD
A]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 19 January 2009 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

BIREENKEA@BBRAERAG > —KP2009F1 A19B AR BEFMKIZH QA -
RADNFNEZEDZENER A

the board of Directors of the Company
BARANESS

chief executive officer of the Company

BARARWITHRAER

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and for geographical
reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
EREARKEME  AREME RERME2ZECH  TREES - BPFIRkaE

the “Corporate Governance Code” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
LR BN ER 14 FrE HK R EE AT

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (4 B /7 % 4% 5 42 3% B IR A A1), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 29 July
2015 and except where the context indicated otherwise its subsidiaries
ERENEBRBIZBRAER AR —KR201557 A20ARIEM S B E AR TMAKH
EHRrAREERR R (BRXESAMEIN EHE AR

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited,
Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited
BEmMALLE  REXRLZ L - 2P - Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited
Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited }2 Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited

the director(s) of the Company
BARRAIES

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEABZEER BT

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



Definitions

e

“IPO”
[BERAREE]

“Listing Date”
[ ETE ]

“Listing Rules”
[CEMmHRAD]
“Model Code”
[T R

“Nomination Committee”

FEZES=

“year”

[ARFE

“Prospectus”

[ =R

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHEE S

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
[(FE 7 KB &HI)]

“Share(s)”
[ &1

“Shareholder(s)”
[ &3

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 22 P

woy”
[%)]

the Company’s initial public offering of its Shares
BARBIERAREEERSD

12 July 2016, on which the Shares are listed and from which dealings therein are permitted
to take place on the Stock Exchange
152016 F7 H128 - RIHHNER L - WEZBREERBMIMEE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from time
to time)
B P E 5 E AR A (I EHEET)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
BCETRADMEAOMF 2 LT EITAZFETESFRZNRESTAD

the nomination committee of the Company
BARRNREEZES®

from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
¥EB2018%F1 A1HZE2018%F12 A31H

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
BARRNFIBER20165F6 A29 BMWBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

BARBNFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BEHREEEEE - AR
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEBEVIESN EC(ESF MBI - BTRER] - FFRs A T B

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our Company
&R A2 B 1T AR AN R B IR T {B.0.00005 3 7T 8 & 38 ik

holder(s) of the Shares
BEROFAA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERSMER DR

per cent.
EBaakt

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE
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Corporate Profile
NGRS

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (“China Leon” or “we”),
headquartered in Beijing, is an international third-party independent
inspection and testing service provider listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 1586) and the first
PRC third-party inspection and testing service provider listed in Hong
Kong. China Leon is committed to providing world-class inspection,
measurement, certification, testing and volumetric measurement
services through strict and professional standards, standardized and
unified processes and industry-leading technical equipment.

As a leading service provider in the coal inspection and testing
industry, we offer our customers a comprehensive range of services
through various service centers strategically positioned at major coal-
trade ports in China, including primarily (1) inspection and testing
services to provide assurance of coal quality; (2) surveying services
to ensure contracts’ fulfilment of coal quantity; and (3) witnessing and
ancillary services to prevent dishonest or abnormal activities in the
testing and transportation of coal and ensure the contracts’ fulfiment
of weight of coal carried on rail, truck or conveying belt or shipping
conditions of the cargo.

Our absolute competitive advantage in the industry benefits from:
(1) having the largest market share in China’s coal testing and
inspection industry, and maintaining long-term and stable co-
operative relationships with large reputable customers in the industry;
(2) strict quality control and standardized business measures ensuring
first-class service standards; (3) vast service center network mainly
locating in strategically important major coal-trade ports in China; (4)
top technical team with strong research and development capabilities;
(5) China’s earliest non-government independent inspection and
testing service provider of which a good reputation has long been
established and has been highly recognized by the industry; and
(6) international and diversified strategic layout ensuring a more
comprehensive service network and better service capabilities.

We are determined to become the world’s leading international third-
party independent inspection and testing service provider. To that
end, we have formulated the following strategic plans: (1) further
consolidate our leading position in the coal testing and inspection
industry; (2) upgrade and expand our service center network; (3)
further strengthen our research and development; and (4) conduct
strategic acquisitions or investments to improve service capabilities
and expand service coverage.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

° Revenue for 2018 amounted to approximately RMB233.8
million, representing an increase of 16.4% from approximately
RMB200.9 million recorded in 2017.

° Gross profit for 2018 amounted to approximately RMB122.9
million, representing an increase of 11.0% from approximately
RMB110.7 million recorded in 2017.

° Profit attributable to owners of the parent for 2018 amounted
to approximately RMB14.0 million, representing a decrease of
60.7% from approximately RMB35.6 million recorded in 2017.

° Final dividend of RMB0.0075 per share recommended, results
in a full-year dividend of RMB0.0075 per share.

2018 F WA X B ARK233.88 & T
2017 EMH AR 200.98 & Tig i
16.4% o

2018 F ERH AARE1220FHE T
B2017TENHARKEA10.7E B TIE M
11.0% ©

2018 F I NRIHAE ARENBELOAEAR
BI40B BT KR2017TFNH AR

e —

35.6 HE TR 60.7% °

BERIEREFRARK00075L ' 24F
BB AFRARE0.0075 7T °

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE
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Financial Summary

gy A

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
20144 20154 2016 & 2017 & 20185
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARKTIT ARETT AR%TxR
Revenue A 139,480 155,789 186,466 200,921 233,750
Gross Profit EF 78,210 80,449 96,359 110,684 122,908
Profit before income tax PS5 BT A8 44,568 33,023 38,058 43,137 14,212
Income tax expense PSR (6,565) (5,448) (4,430) (8,434) (9,311)
Profit for the year FRFE 38,003 27,575 33,628 34,703 4,901
Profit attribute to: UTEEEERE :
Owners of the parent [SYNSIE7FS PN 38,044 27,607 33,628 35,595 14,021
Non-controling interests FEPE R A @1 (32) - (892) (9,120)
As at 31 December
M128318
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 % 20154 2016 F 2017 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
Total assets EERE 137,382 195,516 216,758 254,370 328,854
Total liabilities BERE 27,123 134,517 45,108 56,072 131,863
Equity attributable to NSIETZEUN
the owners of the parent eI 110,066 60,838 171,650 195,206 201,884

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018



Chairman’s Statement

EREHwE

On behalf of the Board of China Leon, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2018.

In 2018, China’s economic growth accelerated while maintaining
stability, the demand for power generation slowed down while the
coal consumption recovered with growth. The targets regarding
capacity reduction of the coal industry in China were overachieved.
Since the supply-side reform and the focus of capacity reduction
of the coal industry shifted from general reduction to structural
reduction by using advanced production facilities to replace and
eliminate outdated production facilities, some large coal enterprises
with advanced production facilities will achieve greater market shares
in the coal market. Green development of coal resources, quality
improvement as well as clean and efficient utilization will be the
development themes of the coal industry. China has tightened the
regulations on coal quality and released the restrictions of the coal
industry so that the coal testing and inspection industry developed
steadily. The above-mentioned policies and market environment will
have a positive impact on the Group’s business.

The Group operated well during the Reporting Period and recorded
a stable growth in its performance. Among others, revenue of the
Group was RMB233.8 million and net profit was RMB4.9 million
in 2018, representing an increase of 16.4% and a decrease of
85.9%, respectively, as compared to 2017. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to increase its input of resources and planned proactively
based on the four strategic directions, namely internationalization,
diversification, automatization and informatization, in an effort to lay
a solid foundation for the Group’s continuous business growth in
the future. The Board has passed the resolution for the proposed
payment of the final dividend of RMBO0.0075 per share for this year.

AANERRPENEEETEMAREVLELALT
NENBAREZE2018F 12 A 31 HIFFE®RE -

2018 FHBERERT AN ENFTREEK - KK
HEERE BREERBFBETK  HiEA
RENRREEREHABRBEELAGHBILES
R (AR EERBERENZRER) EE o
BRREERMNARREIEBRERNRIRT IS D
BORROSEERRE BERMT  BESHAMA
RARRITENERETE BRRBRREEN
ERRBMERRITEORE] - RRRON R ARiriT
ERTPER - LABRRNTSREHEEEBR

TEFE-

AEBEBRBEHNELE R ¥EMEBETH
RoHEr  £EH22018FRABARKE23B8HE
T FFBEAEAREAIAE L W2017TFEE
16.4% K 5 1 85.9% - B I - £ BB & %t -
BBt - B8k - E B LA 5 M - FFE& N
KERBA - BIRRE2HHE - AEBERKLY
EBRFERRTTTRENER -EFETErE
MAFEERRN KRR ETRARE0.0075 7T

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

In 2018, the Group established 1 new domestic service center and
2 new overseas service centers. In order to actively explore new
business models and extend our business to the upstream and
downstream portions of the coal industry chain, we established
service centers in the upstream coal production area and the inland
downstream area, hence, the coverage of our testing services was
expanded from seaborne coal trade to inland coal trade, the “blue
ocean”. In 2018, apart from the original four overseas service centers
in Singapore, Malaysia, India and Indonesia, we established two
service centers in Australia and Pakistan as our overseas business
platforms to further improve the service network layout in Southeast
Asia. We also expanded our import and export inspection business to
minerals, petrochemicals and agricultural products in addition to coal.
Among them, we took Singapore as the service network center of
our petrochemical business in order to carry out the petrochemicals
business in China and neighboring Asian countries, which marked the
beginning of the Group’s diversified business development.

After increasing our input in research and development, we have
achieved remarkable results and successfully upgraded the traditional
coal testing to full automated testing, including but not limited to
the research and development of automated coal testing standard
laboratory, automated coal sampling system, mobile standardized
coal laboratory, research and development of automated six-sided
water gauge measurement system, etc. The new generation of
information system “LEON LIMS 1.0” developed by us has greatly
improved the operating efficiency, under which informatization
management and control over coal inspection is achieved throughout
the entire business process from acceptance of appointment to
issuance of certificates. The Company continued to invest many
research and development results in various processes in the first-line
operation in order to fully achieve automated upgrade in the Group’s
testing and inspection services, expand our advantages in technology
and cost and be a leader in the industry in technological innovation.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

2018 F L BFTIE B A Ak A5 7 01 M - /B S iR A
D21 - EBRERRFAEBRA - AMRREFE L
TR - B R EREM - R TR
BETRBED L - BARBEBEHKERRE S
BRIERERESN[EE] - 2018 F L FIH
BONEIEF G - K FRED - HE - H

PO R SNRFE R Oh - FE TIRARIT: C BE
HamERBH L E— P TERBEREER
fofm - WA T RRAINIRER - AILEM
BREMSNELORBREL  HPAtERER
AT N3 A 3R 75 D B IR TS M8 4% - RR P B K2
FE2EMNBERNACERER  NHTREXRS
MZTIEERNFS

BPIMARBHIEAL - BUIS TEEZAR - 5
MG E R R A BB b AR - BIEEK
BEMLRA TR EAE B R R B R
E - ABHEECERBRAERE ST
ANEKRAERGEE - BEWMENT —REEL
ZE[LEON LIMS 1.0] » RIBEIRFA T EITE -

ERRREBREY R ARENEER
MEBRESLEERE - ARABETHNEESZH
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHwE

The Chinese government put forward the national strategy of
“high-quality development” and included supply chain management
services into the Industrial Classification for National Economic
Activities, which presented great opportunities for the inspection
industry in which we operate. Quality testing organizations
have natural advantages when engaging in supply chain quality
management services and the Company continued to explore and
implement this new business model in 2018. We believe that, the
supply chain quality management business is set to become a new
source of profit growth for the Group and is the key direction for our
business innovation.

Looking forward to 2019, on the basis of consolidating the leading
position in the coal testing and inspection industry, the Group will
further expand into its upstream and downstream related markets for
commodities, and innovate in the supply chain quality management
business. The Group will also actively deploy international networks,
carry out diversified businesses and increase technological
innovation. We are committed to becoming a diversified, international,
informatized, and automated third-party inspection, testing,
certification and quality assurance service provider in order to create
sustainable and optimal returns for investors!

Mr. LI Xiangli
Chairman of the Board

22 March 2019

TEBRFROSEERRE | WEREE - LEH
EREERFANBEREETEDR) @ E-H
PR TR RSB - EERAKBAEARSE
HEREEETERBNORAES  2018F A 7
BEFRZNEREENNEBENX AR
HEAEEEEXRBEERIEEFNFEER
o RBMXEBRFNER TR

RE2019 fEHEZERRBALBRITE
REWMUMNER - E—FPHNRARERLETH
HEmSHE MEBEEEEEXHAFH A
BiEmRERICRE  FRZTIEED - AR
REIF - MR R Z T BRI - E81E -
BEMEOFE = il REMEERER
BE - AREEAEARENRERR |

EBER
FEAEE

201943 H22H

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE
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Corporate Information

NG

Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. ZHANG Aiying (Vice President)
Mr. LIU Yi (Vice President)

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman) (re-designated on 23 July 2018)

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (appointed on 23 July 2018)

Mr. YANG Rongbing (re-designated as Executive Director on 23 July

2018)

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat (appointed on 28 February 2018)
Ms. HUI Yin Shan (resigned on 28 February 2018)

Authorised Representatives

Mr. LI Xiangli

Mr. CHAN Qi Fat (appointed on 28 February 2018)
Ms. HUI Yin Shan (resigned on 28 February 2018)

Audit Committee

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (Chairman) (appointed on 23 July 2018)
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. YANG Rongbing (ceased on 23 July 2018)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. ZHAO Hong (Chairman)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying
Mr. WANG Zichen

Nomination Committee

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Information

NG

Auditor

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of
Business in the PRC

Building No. 78
Zhuyuan Road

No. 12 District

Tianzhu Free Trade Zone
Beijing, China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Unit F, 16/F, Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Banker

China Construction Bank Jing’an Zhuang Sub-branch
Building 6, Time International Building

Courtyard 6, Shuguang West Lane

Chaoyang District

Beijing, China

Hong Kong Legal Advisor
Loong & Yeung Solicitors

Room 1603, 16th Floor, China Building
29 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong
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2R RER

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

NG

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

Stock Code
1586

Website

www.huaxialihong.com

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERESREBEASRT

Below are the brief profiles of the current Directors and senior

management of the Group.

Directors

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth

information regarding the Directors.

=2

UTRASEREIEERSREEABNGN -

EE2HAM/\BESAK BROZATES
—HBIFNTEER=—RBIIFRTES - TRH
SIERAEENEF -

Date of

Appointment as
Name Age Position Director
A Fik B EZEEENHEES
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. LI Xiangli 56 Chairman, CEO and executive Director 18 January 2016
AL BEER 1THRRHFRTES 201641 A 13 H
Ms. ZHANG Alying 56 Vice president and executive Director 183 January 2016
REHRLL BN TES 201641 A13H
Mr. LIU Yi 54 Vice president and executive Director 13 January 2016
255 & BIERRWITES 201641 A13H
Mr. YANG Rongbing 38 Vice chairman and executive Director 18 June 2016
B ELE BIXREHRUTES 201646 A18H
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. WANG Gang 48 Non-executive Director 13 January 2016
TMEE FHTES 201641 A13H
Independent non-executive
Directors
BAFHITES
Mr. WANG Zichen 52 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
FRERE BYIFRITES 201646 A18H
Mr. ZHAO Hong 58 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
AT S A BIUIFERITES 201646 A 18 H
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung 54 Independent non-executive Director 23 July 2018

BrmtE

BIUIFWITES

201847 A23H

FESERBIERERAT 2018FERS 13



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAERIT

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli, aged 56, is the chairman, CEO and an executive
Director. He is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG Alying. Mr. Li is primarily
responsible for the strategic planning and overall management of
our Group. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li joined our Group in April 2009 and was appointed as our
executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is also director of certain
subsidiaries of our Company.

Mr. Li has approximately 29 years of experience in the coal testing
and inspection industry. Prior to joining our Group, from October
2008 to April 2009, Mr. Li served as a project manager of China
Certification & Inspection Group Co., Ltd. (Bl R (£ E) AR
‘A A]), a state-owned testing company that serves different industries,
and was responsible for the establishment of the platform for mineral
inspection. From January 1989 to September 2008, he worked at
the coal inspection technology center of Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (285 H AHE BB %Z F) and
was promoted to a deputy director in April 2004, responsible for coal
testing and inspection.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal
College ()7 1t B &8 £ B ) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master’s
degree in materials science from Yanshan University (3% 1L K £) in
the PRC in December 1999. He obtained the qualification as a senior
engineer in November 2001 granted by State Administration for
Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (BIZ ] A 3% i858 1%
ZE).

Mr. Li is the sole director of Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company (by virtue of SFO),
indirectly holding 35.24% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 56, is a vice president of the Company
and an executive Director. She is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. Ms.
Zhang is primarily responsible for overall business management,
overall management of the procurement and human resources
departments of our Group. She is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Zhang was appointed as our executive Director on
13 January 2016. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 16 years of experience in coal industry. Prior
to joining our Group, from May 1995 to February 2005. Ms. Zhang
served as a manager of examination department of Shanxi Coal
Import & Export Group Qinhuangdao Branch (LU 78 & 7% i H 0 5
= B2 5% A1), acompany primarily engaged in coal trading, and
was responsible for coal testing. From August 1988 to May 1995,
she was a teacher at No. 11 High School of Qinhuangdao (£ & ™
%+ —r £ and was responsible for teaching chemistry.

14 cChina Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei
Normal College (77 1t B 5 2F5 ) in the PRC in July 1988.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director of Swan Stone Investment Holding
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company (by virtue of SFO),
indirectly holding 12.32% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 54, is a vice president of the Company and an
executive Director. He is primarily responsible for overall management
of sales, quality control and research. Mr. Liu joined our Group in
February 2010 as deputy general manager of Beijing Huaxia Lihong,
and was appointed as our executive Director on 13 January 2016. He
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liu has approximately 30 years of experience in the coal testing
and inspection industry. Prior to joining our Group, from September
1988 to January 2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (22 8 H AR KB % & B) and
was promoted to the director of the coal inspection technology center
in September 20083, responsible for coal inspection. From July 1987
to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei Building Materials
Vocational and Technical College (/7] 3t & 41 B 2 2 1i7 28 ), and was
responsible for teaching analytical chemistry.

Mr. Liu obtained a master’s degree in materials engineering from
Yanshan University (3% L X 2) in the PRC in November 2006. He
obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 granted
by National Commodity Inspection Bureau (B X & s 48 5% /),
currently known as General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (R E & & mEinZ 2 E).

Mr. Liu is the sole director of Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited,
a substantial shareholder of the Company (by virtue of SFO), indirectly
holding 8.89% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, aged 38, is an executive Director. Mr. Yang
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 18
June 2016 and was mainly responsible for providing independent
opinion to the Board. He was re-designated as executive Director on
23 July 2018 as well as appointed as the vice chairman and is mainly
responsible for corporate strategies, capital planning, internal control
and compliance of the Group.
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Mr. Yang, holder of a MBA from Central University of Finance and
Economics, was a distinguished professor of Capital University of
Economics and Business. He has served in the capital markets in
both Mainland China and Hong Kong for a long period of time. He is
an expert in adopting innovative financial tools to provide support to
enterprises on sustainable development and continuously improving
capital vehicles. Mr. Yang previously served as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of SMI Holdings Group Limited (£ 3
TR EE AR A F]) (“SMI Holdings”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 0198). Before joining
SMI Holdings in 2010, Mr. Yang served in various financial and
investment roles in State-owned enterprises and institutions such
as Beijing Golden Tide Group Co., Ltd. (It R&FEE B R A 7)),
Foreign Economic Cooperation Office under Ministry of Environmental
Protection (B 5 IR 3 & & &0 ¥ 5N & fE# .0v) and Center for
Development of Trade and Control of Investment in Europe (BUM &

HERABIKEEET D).

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Gang, aged 48, is the non-executive Director. He is
primarily responsible for providing business guidance in relation to the
industry to our Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 13 January 2016.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in testing industry. Since August
2011, Mr. Wang has been serving as a general manager of operation
department and legal and investment department of China Inspection
Company Limited (# Bl 5 B BR A A1) (“CIC”), a company primarily
engaged in inspection and certification service, and has been
responsible for the overall management of operation, strategic,
quality control and investment. CIC is a substantial shareholder of
the Company (by virtue of SFO), indirectly holding 11.63% of the
issued share capital of the Company through its subsidiary. From
January 2010 to July 2011, Mr. Wang served as the director of
the inspection and supervision department of Zhejiang Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (3# /T H A 5 i 5 i & /&) and
was responsible for the overall management of the inspection and
supervision department. From December 2003 to January 2010, Mr.
Wang served as a deputy general manager of China Certification &
Inspection Group Zhejiang Co., Ltd. (PRl BB R EEEINTI AR
‘A A]), a company primarily engaged in inspection and certification
service, and was responsible for inspection and quality management.
From December 1999 to December 2003, Mr. Wang served as the
head of Zhejiang Entry-Exit Inspection and Quaranting Firm (31T A
55 1% 5 %2 22 7F FiT) and was responsible for its overall management.
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Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from
Zhejiang University (37T A £) in the PRC in July 1992. He also
obtained a master’s degree in finance from Zhejiang University in the
PRC in July 2005.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to our Board. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Since September 2007, Mr. Wang has been working with China
Bohai Bank Co., Ltd (328 R 17 i% 15 B BR A 7)) and is currently
a branch head of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd Tianjin Fifth Avenue
Branch (/8RBT AR A &l KESE A RKEZ1T), responsible for
the management and operation of the branch.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in software engineering from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (1t & fiii 2= il &<
K &) in the PRC in July 2010. He obtained the qualification as a
certified cost engineer (FEf#&(E T2 EM) granted by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (7 % A R £ A1
Bl 5= F 4 488 52 5% ) in 2001. He also obtained the qualification as
a senior engineer granted by China State Construction Engineering
Corporation (P B2 2 T #2482 7)) in December 2008.

Mr. ZHAO Hong, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since
March 1991, Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of
Energy Engineering of Zhejiang University and has been responsible
for teaching and scientific research.
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Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal energy from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree in
engineering from Zhejiang University in the PRC in January 1991. He
obtained the qualification as a professor in December 2001 granted
by Personnel Department of Zhejiang Province (17L& A EE2).

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for providing independent
opinion and judgement to the Board, He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 July 2018.

Mr. Liu is a director of JWMG Professional Services Limited (“JWMG”),
and often being nominated by JWMG to provide services to various
listed client companies. He has over 30 years of experience in the
field of auditing, accounting, finance, management and secretarial
work and is now the company secretary of Tungtex (Holdings)
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 0518). Mr. Liu received his Master of Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2002. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. Liu served as director and senior management positions with a
number of public companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including
being a director and joint chief executive officer of PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2078); an executive director
and the chief financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Medical and
Health Industry Group Limited (formerly known as Genvon Group
Limited, Stock code: 2389); and a director, the chief executive
officer and the chief financial officer of China Merchants Land Limited
(formerly known as Tonic Industries Holdings Limited, Stock code:
0978). Besides, Mr. Liu previously worked at international accounting
firms for a total of nine years and gained extensive experience in
accounting, auditing and taxation of listed companies.
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Senior Management

Mr. LI Xiangli, see “— Profile of Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Director” for details.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, see “— Profile of Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Director” for details.

Mr. LIU Yi, see “— Profile of Directors and Senior Management —
Executive Director” for details.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, see “-— Profile of Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Director” for details.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 40, is the secretary to the Board and assistant
to the chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for managing daily work of the Board and assisting the
CEO in managing the business operation of our Group. Mr. Liu joined
our Group in July 2011 and was appointed current position on 16
January 2016. He is also the supervisor and director of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Liu has over 12 years of experience in testing industry. Prior to
joining our Group, from August 2009 to July 2011, Mr. Liu served as
the project manager of China Certification & Inspection Group Beijing
Co., Ltid. (P B iR B S Bt R B R 2 F]), a company primarily
engaged in import and export commodity inspection, and was
responsible for inspection business. From August 2006 to July 2009,
Mr. Liu served as the business line manager of Sinoswiss Inspection
Co., Ltd. (IR i858 A IR A &), a company primarily engaged in
import and export commodity inspection, and was responsible for
inspection business management. From July 2004 to July 2006,
Mr. Liu served as the inspection supervisor of China Certification
& Inspection Group Co., Ltd. (P B &5 R E (£E) R 2 7)),
and was responsible for import and export commodity inspection
management.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry in July 2001 and
a master’s degree in chemistry from Tsinghua University (/& 2 A £2)
in the PRC in July 2004. He obtained the qualification as chemical
analysis engineer ({t 2 % #T T2 A1) in September 2013 granted
by Beijing Intermediate Professional and Technical Qualification
Evaluation Committee.
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Business and Market Review

In 2018, the economy of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC” of “China”) grew steadily, the demand for energy increased
slightly, coal price declined steadily, while both power generation
and coal production volume recovered and increased. In 2018,
the domestic power production increased by 6.8% as compared
to 2017, coal-fired power generation increased by 5.0% year-on-
year, and the production volume of raw coal was 3.55 billion tons,
representing an increase of 5.2% as compared to 2017. In 2018,
the targets regarding capacity reduction of the coal industry in China
were overachieved. The structural policies on capacity reduction
implemented by the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC concerning the development of advanced production
facilities, replacement and elimination of outdated production facilities
continued to push forward. We estimated that the demand for power
generation is expected to grow more rapidly in 2019, while coal
consumption and trading volume may grow slightly. The structural
optimization of coal production capacity and the anticipation of the
merger and restructuring of the coal-fired power industry in the future
will increase the concentration of customers of the coal industry,
that is the market share of coal enterprises with quality coal mine
resources and advanced production facilities will increase. In general,
the industry and market environment in 2019 will be favourable to the
future business development of the Company.

The Company recorded a revenue of RMB233.8 million and a net
profit of RMB4.9 million in 2018, representing an increase of 16.4%
and a decrease of 85.9%, respectively, as compared to 2017. The
gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 55.1% in 2017 to
52.6% in 2018.

In 2018, the Group increased its input of resources based on the
established international, diversified, automation and informatization
strategies, and achieved the following results:

(1) Improved the domestic service network, established service
centers in Xinjiang, further laid out the inland coal testing
services, explored new business models, and expanded to the
coal industry upstream and downstream, such as setting up
laboratories in cooperation with Shaanxi Coal and Chemical
Industry Group Co., Ltd* (BRI Z2{t TEBMABAREE R RF))
(“Shaanxi Coal and Chemical”) and conducted on-site test in
cooperation with power plants. Currently, we have a total of
12 domestic service centers.
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Accelerated the pace of internationalization, apart from the
original four overseas service centers in Singapore, India,
Malaysia and Indonesia, established two new overseas service
centers in Australia and Pakistan in 2018. The overseas
service network has covered Southeast Asia, South Asia and
Australia and businesses have achieved breakthroughs in
terms of diversification. The business regarding the inspection
of other minerals other than coal, petrochemical products and
agricultural products in overseas service centers has been
developed.

Diversified development; we acquired Saybolt’'s PRC company
and obtained the right to use Saybolt brand in Southeast
Asia. In the future, we will take Singapore as the center of our
petrochemical business and set up a service network in China
and Asian countries to carry out the petrochemical business
imported from Asian countries to China.

Continued investing in research and development, upgraded
the traditional coal testing to full automated testing (including
but not limited to research and development of automated
coal testing standard laboratory, automated coal sampling
system and mobile standardized coal laboratory), researched
and developed the automated six-sided water gauge
measuring system and had priority use of the relevant
research results in the major service centers of the Company.

A new generation of information system “LEON LIMS 1.0”
developed by us has officially commenced operation in
August 2017, under which informatization management and
control over coal inspection are achieved throughout the
entire business process from acceptance of appointment to
issuance of certificates. A unified information platform will be
established in the future.
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Business Strategies and Future Outlook

Coal is the cornerstone for safeguarding the safe and stable supply
of energy in the PRC, the strategic approach on energy “diversified
energy development based on coal resources” and the position
of coal as the primary energy source will remain unchanged.
Following the implementation of national strategy concerning high-
quality development in the PRC, through innovative measures in
technology such as big data and automation, green development
of coal resources, supply quality improvement and clean utilization
will be the directions of green development in the future. We intend
to further strengthen our leading position in the coal testing and
inspection industry through the following strategies and develop into
an international, diversified and technologically advanced third-party
quality assurance service provider.

Upgrade and expand our network of service centers

To improve our service capabilities and gain leading technological
advantages in China, we intend to apply our research and
development achievements in automation to our existing service
centers and plan to carry out automation upgrade in laboratories in
the major service centers in China. Our plans will allow us to gain
advantages in technology and cost, and further increase our market
share by providing better customer experience.

In 2017 and prior to that, our service centers covered primarily major
seaports for coal trade in China and provided testing services for
seaborne coal trade. We established new service centers in Shaanxi
Province and Hubei Province in 2017 and established service centers
in Xinjiang in 2018, continued to penetrate into the coal testing and
inspection market for inland coal via rail or truck, such as setting up
laboratories in cooperation with Shaanxi Coal and Chemical and on-
site test in cooperation with power plants. Currently, we expect to
expand our testing service to inland coal trade, which is a market
mostly under served by testing and inspection organizations. We
also plan to expand our service network to other regions that are of
strategic importance to China’s seaborne coal trade, including certain
key seaports located in Shandong Province and Fujian Province.
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For overseas regions, based on our established strategy, we are
selectively establishing service centers to provide testing services for
coal and other commodities in countries with abundant coal export
volume which represent large potential markets for us. Currently, the
Company has constructed six service centers covering Southeast
Asia, South Asia and Australia. In the future, we will continue to
construct other overseas service centers, gain customer recognition
and obtain more shares from overseas markets by leveraging our
service capabilities in our international network.

Further strengthen our capabilities in scientific research
and innovation

We believe that technical improvements are critical to our level of
service and our ability to achieve competitive advantages in the
market. As such, we deploy adequate resources to advance our
research and development efforts. We plan to continue to strengthen
our internal research as well as collaboration with third-party
institutions to develop automated preparation and testing system and
information-based business management system, which will allow
us to significantly reduce labor costs and improve efficiency for our
services.

In addition to technological innovation, we intend to develop a
new testing and inspection business model with the support of an
established service network, sufficient big data accumulation and
information system, so as to provide customers with comprehensive
quality management service covering the entire coal supply chain. We
believe that comprehensive quality management service of the supply
chain is a new business model which is consistent with the national
strategy of “high-quality development” in China and has huge growth
potential in the future.
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Pursue strategic acquisition and joint venture
cooperation to enhance our service capabilities and
expand our service coverage

In 2018, the Company tried to adopt different models to achieve
business development. We rapidly entered into new regional markets,
established overseas service network and entered into inspection
service areas of other commodities by introducing outstanding
personnel and teams or partners, expanded our development
potential and tried new business models through investment holding.
We believe that there are still abundant acquisition and cooperation
opportunities in the testing and inspection industry and we will focus
on opportunities that can enhance our service capabilities or coverage
of services. The key criteria we apply in selecting acquisition or
investment targets include their market size, customer base, technical
capabilities and management team. Acquisitions and joint ventures
can further improve our service capabilities, thereby ensuring that the
Company will become an international, diversified and technologically
advanced third-party quality assurance service provider in a more
quickly manner.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B B8
Overview =
2018 2017 Change
2018 F 20174 g
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Revenue A 233,750 200,921 16.4%
Gross Profit EF 122,908 110,684 11.0%
Profit before tax BRI AE 14,212 43,137 —-67.1%
Profit for the year FAMNE 4,901 34,703 -85.9%
Revenue 1'PN

The Group’s revenue increased by 16.4% from approximately REEWMWAR2017FHARE2009F &
RMB200.9 million in 2017 to approximately RMB233.8 million in T E2018FHNARK2338BETL  EBER
2018. The increase was mainly contributed by (1) a rise in business 16.4% © sZIZINTY £ B AR (1)2018 F &8 JMNHT &
volume of testing services generated by overseas subsidiaries as NAEENEETEFE  HRABRGHNESE
2018 marked their first full year of operations and (2) an increase in HIREE - QB ILENER RS EF=E M :
business volume of testing services at Tangshan Port, partially offset oW ERSNRAIRGESSROMENE - T
by a decline in business volume of testing services at Huanghua Port. REH B ZEREA WAL -

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown for each of our
service offerings.

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREBTT

Testing services 1508 AR 755 204,108 164,213
Surveying services 8 TF IR 21,619 28,500
Witnessing and ancillary services R LB RS 8,023 8,208

233,750 200,921
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Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales was approximately RMB110.8 million
in 2018, compared to approximately RMB90.2 million in 2017,
representing 47.4% and 44.9% of the Group’s revenue for the same
periods, respectively. Such increase was mainly due to (1) a rise
in manpower-related costs at overseas subsidiaries and (2) more
overseas subcontract work by third-party inspection companies,
partially offset by lower port charges at Huanghua Port as a result of
reduced business volume there.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by 11.0% from approximately
RMB110.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB122.9 million in
2018. The gross profit margin decreased from 55.1% in 2017 to
52.6% in 2018, which was primarily due to lower gross margin from
business generated by the Group’s overseas subsidiaries.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by 51.7%
from approximately RMB2.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB4.2
million in 2018. The increase in the Group’s selling and distribution
expenses was primarily attributable to (1) an increase in sales staff
costs and (2) an increase in entertainment expenses incurred at
overseas subsidiaries.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 59.0% from
approximately RMB63.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB101.3
million in 2018. The increase in the Group’s administrative expenses
was primarily attributable to (1) an increase in overall employees’
remuneration packages; (2) a rise in manpower-related and
administrative costs at overseas subsidiaries as part of Group’s
overseas expansion plans; and (3) higher depreciation of properties,
plant and equipment at overseas subsidiaries.

Other Expenses

The Group recorded other expenses of RMB2.4 million and RMB3. 1
million in 2017 and 2018, respectively. The increase in the Group’s
other expenses was primarily attributable to higher out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by overseas subsidiaries.
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Finance Costs

The Group recorded finance costs of approximately RMBO.7 million
and RMB2.6 million in 2017 and 2018, respectively, representing an
increase of 281.4%, due to the finance costs incurred by an interest-
bearing Secured Guaranteed Note issued by the Group in 2018,
whereas lower finance costs were incurred in 2017 due to settlement
of certain bank loans.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax expense
amounted to approximately RMB9.3 million, representing an increase
from approximately RMB8.4 million recorded last year.

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the year decreased by 85.9% from
approximately RMB34.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB4.9
million in 2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to the expansion
of the Group’s testing and inspection business by way of overseas
acquisitions, and these newly acquired operations are still in business
incubation period that require relatively large initial-stage expenditure
such as manpower-related costs and administrative expenses.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist primarily of buildings, vehicles,
equipment, construction in progress and leasehold improvements.
The Group had property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB106.5 million and RMB118.7 million as at 31 December 2017
and 2018, respectively. The increase as at 31 December 2018 was
primarily due to (1) addition of plant and equipment both in China and
overseas as part of the Group’s plans to expand its inspection and
testing capabilities, and (2) addition of leasehold improvements in
China.

Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of a commercial property in Beijing,
which was originally purchased at RMB25.5 million in April 2014,
and Room 202 and 302 of Wanxingyuan Yingang in Cangzhou,
which were originally purchased at RMB1.3 million in August 2011.
The investment properties of the Group had a carrying amount of
RMB22.0 million and RMB20.7 million as at 31 December 2017 and
2018, respectively.
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Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill represents the excess of fair value of
consideration paid by the Group over the net fair value of acquisition
target’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured at acquisition
date. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had goodwill of
approximately RMBO0.6 million and RMB3.1 million, respectively. The
increase arose mainly from a new acquisition by the Group in 2018
of an inspection and testing business focused on petroleum and oil
industry as part of the Group’s effort to expand its service offerings.

Intangible Assets

The Group’s intangible assets primarily consist of software, patents,
customer relationships and inspection certifications. As at 31
December 2017 and 2018, the Group had intangible assets of
approximately RMBO.7 million and RMB4.4 million, respectively.
The increase was mainly due to (1) installation of new inspection
and testing software in China and (2) newly secured customer
relationships and inspection certifications for petroleum and oil
industry through an acquisition of a third-party inspection and testing
business in 2018.

Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily represented amounts
and bills receivables from its customers for its services provided
in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2017 and
2018, the Group had trade and bills receivables of approximately
RMB22.6 million and RMB42.3 million, respectively. Such increase in
receivables as at 31 December 2018 was primarily due to (1) higher
business volume generated by overseas subsidiaries as 2018 marked
their first full year of operations and (2) slower collection from certain
customers as contracts are being renewed.
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Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets
primarily represent rental payments, value-added tax, prepayment
for construction in progress, and deposits paid to enter open tender
process and land auction process. The current portion of the Group’s
prepayments, other receivables and other assets decreased by
16.5% from approximately RMB18.6 million as at 31 December 2017
to approximately RMB15.5 million as at 31 December 2018, primarily
due to decrease in other receivables as amount paid previously for
land use rights in Caofeidian was collected back; partially offset by
an increase of estimated input tax. The non-current portion of the
Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables increased
from approximately RMBO0.9 million as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately RMB6.6 million as at 31 December 2018, which was
due to an increase in prepayment for vendors of property, plant and
equipment.

Available-for-sale Investments and Financial Assets at
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss primarily represent low-risk financial
products purchased from commercial banks using its cash on hand.
Available-for-sale investments are classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9 which is adopted as at
1 January 2018 by the Group. As at 31 December 2017 and 2018,
the Group’s available-for-sale investments and financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss reached RMB21.3 million and RMB27.0
million, respectively. Such increase as at 31 December 2018 was due
to utilization of idle funds to purchase additional financial products.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB and HKD. As at 31 December
2017 and 2018, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
RMB48.8 million and RMB76.8 million, respectively. The increase in
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018 was
primarily attributable to (1) net cash inflows from operating activities
of RMB20.0 million and (2) cash proceeds of RMB90.6 million from
new bank loans and other borrowings; partially offset by (1) dividend
distribution of RMB10.0 million, (2) repayment of borrowings and
interest of RMB32.8 million and (3) purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of RMB29.8 million.
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Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables primarily represent amounts payable for
port charges and third-party inspection work. As at 31 December
2017 and 2018, the Group had trade payables of RMBS3.7 million
and RMB12.3 million, respectively. The increase in the Group’s trade
payables as at 31 December 2018 was primarily attributable to (1) an
increase in port charges payable at Tangshan Port, (2) an increase in
overseas amount payable to third-party inspection companies and
(8) franchise fees payable for newly acquired inspection and testing
business for petroleum and oil industry in 2018.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily represent accrued
salaries, wages and benefits, other taxes payable and other payables.
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had other payables
and accruals of RMB31.7 million and RMB35.4 million, respectively.
Such increase as at 31 December 2018 was mainly due to an
increase in accrued salaries, wages and benefits as the number of
employees grew.

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

The Group had interest-bearing bank loans of RMB16.2 million and
RMB10.1 million as at 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively.
The decrease as at 31 December 2018 was due to progressive
repayment of the principal loan amount.

Interest-bearing Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had interest-
bearing other borrowings of RMB1.6 million and RMB66.0 million,
respectively. The increase was mainly due to a Secured Guaranteed
Note issued by the Group in 2018.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of RMB76.8 million as at
31 December 2018. The Group is in a strong and healthy financial
position and has enough resources to support its operations and
meet its foreseeable capital expenditure.
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Treasury Management and Funding Policy

The primary objectives of our capital management are to safeguard
our ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support our business and maximize our
shareholders’ value. We manage and adjust our capital structure
considering changes in economic conditions and the risks of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust our capital structure, we
may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or raise funds through issuing new equity.

We have a prudent treasury operation to manage our investments
in financial products. We only invest in low risk financial instruments
from reputable commercial banks that can be redeemed on a same-
day basis or otherwise within a short notice period, including primarily
bank-sponsored wealth management products, such as bonds,
money market funds and interbank deposits. We purchase and
redeem financial products multiple times over the course of a year as
and when needed to meet our real-time funding requirements, as a
result of which our cash flows related to the purchase and disposal of
financial products were significantly higher than period-end balance
amounts.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Group had net cash flows from operating activities of
approximately RMB45.3 million and RMB20.0 million in 2017 and
2018, respectively. The decrease in the Group’s cash flows from
operating activities was primarily due to (1) higher remuneration
and administrative expenses and (2) an increase in trade and bills
receivables, partially offset by an increase in trade payables.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

The Group had net cash outflows from financing activities of
approximately RMB1.4 million in 2017 and net cash inflows of
approximately RMB47.8 million in 2018. The cash flows from
financing activities changed from net outflows to net inflows. This
was primarily due to cash proceeds of RMB90.6 million received from
new bank loans and other borrowings, partially offset by (1) dividend
payment of RMB10 million and (2) repayment of borrowings and
interest of RMB32.8 million.
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Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately RMB3.7 million for contracted but not performed
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or guarantees to third parties.

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
The calculation of gearing ratio is based on total debt divided by
total equity and multiplied by 100.0%. Total debt is calculated as
“interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated
as “total equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
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Total debt BB 76,085 17,742
Total equity BT 196,991 198,298
Gearing Ratio BEARABELE 38.6% 8.9%

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations. The Group enters into
transactions only with recognized and creditworthy parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to have credit transactions
with the Group are subject to credit verification procedures taking
into account the customers’ financial position and the Group’s past
experience with the customers.

In addition, the Group monitors receivable balances on an ongoing
basis, hence its exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
management of the Group evaluates the creditworthiness of its
existing and prospective customers and ensures that the customers
have adequate financing for the projects as well as the source of the
financing. No collateral is required.
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The Group’s other financial assets include other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents. The credit risk of these financial assets arises
from default of the counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit
risk equals to the carrying amounts of these assets.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group was exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and
cash equivalents, receivables, payables and bank loans that were
denominated in a currency other than respective functional currencies
of the Group’s entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk were
primarily Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar.

Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

Charges on Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group purchased two
buildings from an independent third party with a cash consideration
of RMB37.7 million. The building was pledged by this third party for
certain purpose before the purchase, and as of 31 December 2018,
the pledge had not been released and property ownership certificates
had not been obtained.

In addition, certain of the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying value of RMB19.9 million were pledged to obtain a banking
facility from a bank amounting to RMB15 million as at 31 December
2018. The pledge of these investment properties had not been
released as of 31 December 2018.
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The Board has committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate
value and accountability.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company had complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code save for the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 while such deviation is explained in the relevant paragraph
below of this corporate governance report.

The Board will, from time to time, review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

A. The Board

A1. Responsibilities and Delegation

The powers and duties of our Board include managing
our business, convening general meetings, reporting
our Board’s work at our Shareholder’s meetings,
preparing financial budgets and final reports,
formulating proposals for profit distributions as well
as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Articles.

A2. Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises eight members, which consist of four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and
three independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Alying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

EERHIERRANEXELRE -EFER
B REMEEERBRETI AR RRERR NS
RERTEXEENEEENES -

BEERA REZE2018F12A831BIEFE K
ARBET(REE AT EH 2 3BT ANE
HEFEA2METRMESCHIRBERR N - B 1R B R
AR A(EEERRE) TXHBEEPIEH
fREE o

SR TRBALIMBESCRE QTR - LA
RARRBRETE(REERTRDORE

AEES
Al. EERERE
EEeH I RBEOESEAEE
%% BEBREAS EREAS
EHREES T FERIBHELER
BRBE  HTEFEAIRFRUAR
TEERMAIR T E RS M EME
BB REBE

A2. EEEWER

RAFEREAH EFed/\4E
ERAKR BREOERTES  —
ZHMTEST R =B IUIIFNTE
FoHBOT

BITES

FRAMNEE (EERRTHAE)
RERLZ LT

e s

BERELE (FILE)

FHITES
THEE

BYFHTES
ITrRERE
L
Bkt



Corporate Governance Report

i

XERRE

AS.

A4.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Currently, Mr. LI Xiangli takes up the roles of both
chairman of the Board and CEO, which is deviated
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company are performed by the same individual. The
Board considers that Mr. LI possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. In the opinion
of the Directors, through supervision by the Board and
the independent non-executive Directors, together with
effective control of the Company’s internal check and
balance mechanism, the same individual performing
the roles of chairman and CEO can achieve the goal
of improving the Company’s efficiency in decision-
making, execution and effectively capturing business
opportunities. The Board will review the effectiveness
of this arrangement from time to time.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject
to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each
of the Directors is appointed for a term of three
years pursuant to their service contracts or letters of
appointment.

Details of specific term of each of the Directors are
set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service
Contracts” of the Directors’ Report.

According to the Articles, one third of the Directors for
the time being (if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM.
The Directors who shall retire in each year will be those
who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment, but as between persons
who become or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day, those to retire will (unless they otherwise
agree among themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors should be eligible for re-election at the
relevant AGM. In addition, any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting, whereas any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election. The Director appointed by
the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting.
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A5.

Training and Continuing Development for
Directors

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visiting to the Company’s
key plant sites and meetings with senior management
of the Company.

The existing Directors are continually updated with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Trainings and professional
development for Directors are arranged whenever
necessary. In addition, reading materials on new or
changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to
the Company are provided to Directors from time to
time for their studying and reference.

The Directors are required to submit to the Company
details of the training they received in each financial
year for the Company’s maintenance of proper training
records of the Directors. According to the training
records currently maintained by the Company, during
the year, the Directors had complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on participation in
continuous professional training as follows:

AS5.
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Reading regulatory

Attending training
on regulatory
development,

directors’ duties or
other relevant topics

updates or corporate
governance related
materials or
materials relevant to
directors’ duties

HEBAREERRE - MEEEEHEAR
Type of training/ g, EEREY HOXTAREENENH
education HERH HiaEREEMIEH @ REESBEERANME
Mr. LI Xiangli MR FIk A v 4
Ms. ZHANG Alying RERLZLT v v/
Mr. LIU Yi 2k & v 4
Mr. YANG Rongbing B REE v v
Mr. WANG Gang FHEE v v
Mr. WANG Zichen FRELE 4 v
Mr. ZHAO Hong FEAT e A v v/
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BRI EE 4 v/
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A6. Directors’ Attendance Records at Meetings A6. EEMNERLERLSE
The attendance records of each Director at the Board EEEFHRARAEZE20185F12
and Board committee meetings and the general A3IBEEHEETHNESS
meeting of the Company held during the year ended e% EESEeeRRBEAS

31 December 2018 are set out below:

BESEIIMT -

2018
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ENZE8 HMzse REZ88 2018%
Name of Director EEpg E ] 83 82 RRBEEAS
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. LI Xiangli FRAEE 4/4 N/A N/A 1 17
TR TR

Ms. ZHANG Aiying REELT 3/4 N/A 1A N/A 0/1
TER TER

Mr. LIUYYi 2mEk 3/4 N/A N/A N/A il
ek Kok T

Mr. YANG Rongbing’ BREEE 4/4 17 N/A N/A 0/1

TR TR

Non-executive Director: ~ FHTEES:

Mr. WANG Gang TREE 2/4 N/A N/A N/A il
ek Kok T

Independent non-executive BIFHTE

Directors:

Mr. WANG Zichen IREEE 4/4 212 17 1 01

Mr. ZHAO Hong HIEE 4/4 212 il 1 0/1

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung? BRBLE? 22 111 N/A N/A N/A

Tam TER TER

Notes: MisE -

1. Mr. YANG Rongbing was re-designated as an 1. BEEEEB2018FE7 A3 REATA
executive Director (previously an independent non- HNTES (L ABYIENTESRS) U FIE
executive Director) and ceased to be the chairman TEREZESERRKE -
and a member of the Audit Committee with effect
from 23 July 2018.

2. Mr. LIU Hoi Leung was appointed as an 2. BReLEB2018F7 A23HEER(T A
independent non-executive Director and a BYERNTESURBZEZESKERERE -

member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
with effect from 23 July 2018.
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A7.

A8.

A9.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding dealings in the
securities of the Company by the Directors and the
Company’s employees who, because of their offices or
employments, are likely to possess inside information
of the Company and/or securities.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company
with all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Role and Function of the Board and the
Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which are reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The
Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to management while reserving certain key matters,
mainly relating to the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies, policies and business plans,
and overseeing and evaluating the performance of
the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the
success of the Group and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. Board committees
for specific functions are also set up to ensure efficient
Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision
still rests with the Board unless otherwise provided
for in the terms of reference of the relevant Board
committees.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

AT7.

A8.

A9.

ETRERZWEESTH

AR BB BN T AR BB 8%+ P
WGREFANDEREERARQR]
ﬁé(ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ

AR BEBAARR R HF
mW%ﬁm“ﬂ$ﬁa%#Wﬁ
#SFAl

BARAAEBEE(EHAREH
% 2REZCHER HSORE
Z2018F 12 A31 B L EEFER
SOZETRNBEBEERET
BEZHHHTEZLE -

1 PN
EEGEEBT(CEEARTI
ED31 TG AR DLEE
AL -

RARIERIAESFGAG RHKT
EREIESFZENBBLEE
EEeBAEENBEEERAE
BEERE BRBEEATEARS
H(FZFHESLERERAEEE
BRI MR REBE URE
ERAEAREERR) (T - &
EENTEEREREBAEENE
B UNHEREERAEZEBHKI
BE - ARAINMEICTEETEZEEH
BREE URREFSNESE
E- BESTZESMHEKRBE
HFXrZMme RBaesrtmT - RIE
FHE=e LB REaESE
B BRAESFENREERKATE
1 o



Corporate Governance Report

i

XERRE

Board Committees

The Company has three Board committees, namely, the

Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and

the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of

the Company'’s affairs. All Board committees have been

established with defined written terms of reference which are

available on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk)

and on the Company’s website (www.huaxialihong.com). All

the Board committees should report to the Board on their

decisions or recommendations made.

B1.

Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three
members, being two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHAO Hong (chairman of
the committee) and Mr. WANG Zichen, and one
executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG Aiying.
Throughout the year, the Company had met the
Listing Rule requirements of having the majority of the
Remuneration Committee members being independent
non-executive Directors as well as having the
committee chaired by an independent non-executive
Director.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee
is to develop remuneration policies of our Directors,
evaluate the performance, make recommendations
on the remuneration packages of our Directors
and senior management and evaluate and make
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.
During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held to review the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company
as well as the total amount of remuneration paid by
the Company in year 2018. Furthermore, written
resolutions of the Remuneration Committee were
passed to recommend the remuneration of the
Directors (Mr. YANG Rongbing and Mr. LIU Hoi Keung)
and the grant of share options to a Director (Mr. YANG
Rongbing) to the Board.
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The attendance records of each committee member in ELZEENBHERAFEENETT
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the WEHMEEeeRMaEEN L
year are set out in section A6 above. X AB—Ef o
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, BB EERFRD EBA5KST
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior Bl mARBEEEXRENATE
management by band for the year is set out below: AR EEHMEBEHINT :

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (HK$) HNEEE (BT AE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 2
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000 4
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 1
Details of the remuneration of each Director for the EEENTFEENRNFFFIBET
year are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements RARFEMEFTE S B mRMES o

contained in this annual report.

B2. Nomination Committee B2. REZE®

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the B ZE2018F12A31HILFE 17
Nomination Committee comprises a total of three HEETAHBRE=AKE - BI—
members, being one executive Director, namely HWTES (FRNEE(ZES
Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the committee), and two ER))ERMEBIIFNTES (£
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FEEAENRBIAE) - AQARR
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout the KEZRFAEALAESTRNEX -
year, the Company had met the code provision A.5.1 AREBHDEEEKNERBIIIFNTE
of having a majority of the committee members being F - UEHEZSEIFETLZES
independent non-executive Directors and having the HEF o

committee chaired by the chairman of the Board.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee REZESgNTEREREENS
include reviewing the structure, size and composition EFENEE  ABRAK: WEA
of the Board; identifying individual suitably qualified to HEEERATETEEERNEMA
become members of the Board and select or making T WHkEIRRAEBALLREES
recommendations to the Board on the selection gSptmESRERSE  RES
of individuals nominated for directorship; making T -BHREIEENEFET
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, EREEgRLER  REBTIFE
reappointment and succession planning of Directors; HITEENB L EETTEARSE
and assessing the independence of independent non- MEESKELITILBER -

executive Directors, as well as reviewing the board
diversity policy.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the criteria for and process and procedures
of nomination of Directors. In accordance with the
nomination policy, in evaluation and selecting a
candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be
considered include:

- character and integrity of the individual;

- qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the board diversity policy
(summarised below) of the Company that
are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

- any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving diversity on the Board;

- requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be
considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules;

- any potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

- willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

- such other perspectives that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and succession plan
and where applicable, may be adopted and/or
amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of
Directors and succession planning.
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The nomination policy also sets out the nomination
process and procedures, including but not limited to:

1. evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new Director;

2. if there are more than one desirable candidate,
rank the candidates with reference to the needs
of the Company and the reference check of
each candidate; and

3. recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as the new Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and regards the increasing
diversity at the Board as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board
in terms of skills, professional experience, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, industrial
and regional experience, age and gender. The main
objective of the policy is to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company’s business growth.
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Annual Review

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board in consideration of the
board diversity policy, and to review the nomination
criteria and procedures, the performance of Directors
and the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. Furthermore, written resolutions of the
Nomination Committee were passed to recommend
the re-designation of a Director (Mr. YANG Rongbing)
and appointment of a new Director (Mr. LIU Hoi Keung)
to the Board.

The independence of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, and the Company is of the
view that all independent non-executive Directors meet
the guidelines for assessing the independence set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained. The Nomination Committee also
considered that the Directors are rich in knowledge,
experience and background and their outstanding skills
in their respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Nomination Committee meeting are set out in
section A6 above.
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B3.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee comprises a total of three members, all
being independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. YANG Rongbing (chairman of the committee
until 23 July 2018), Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman of
the committee with effect from 23 July 2018), Mr.
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. The Company
has met the Listing Rule requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the
year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and interim report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein; reviewing the Company’s financial
controls, and overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements which
can be used by the employees of the Company,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. Its main
duties include developing and reviewing the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Group; and reviewing the Group’s
compliance with the CG code and the Model Code
and the disclosure in the corporate governance report
to be contained in the Company’s annual reports.
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During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review the annual and interim financial
results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 and in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2018. The Audit Committee also
reviewed financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems as well as the scope of work of
external auditor. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Audit Committee meetings are set out in section
A6 above.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain effective

risk management and internal control systems of the Company

in order to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to

achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable but

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

D.1

Control Structure

The Company implemented various policies and
procedures to ensure effective risk management at
each aspect of its operation, including the provision of
on-site inspection, surveying and sampling services,
performance of analytical tests in our laboratories,
administration of daily operation, financial reporting
and recording, fund management, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection and workplace safety. The policies and
procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The internal audit department monitors compliance
with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control structures across
the Group and its principal divisions. The internal audit
department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensure the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.
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D.2

Control Approach

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures, reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems and resolving
material internal control defects. The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff members,
reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Company’s
internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the
risk management and internal control are reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee during the year.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee,
annually assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and
procedures and considered the adequacy of resources
and financial reporting function.
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D.3 Annual Review

For the year 2018, the Board through the Audit
Committee had conducted an annual review on the
systems of internal control and risk management of
the Company. The review covered material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group. Areas
of improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures have been put in place to manage the risks.
The improvement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and
the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and
processes. The Board considers that the internal
control and risk management systems are effective
and adequate.

D.4 Inside Information

The Company formulated the inside information policy.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees of the Group about the due compliance with
all policies regarding the inside information (as defined
under the SFO). Also, the Company keeps Directors,
senior management and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare
or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure
the compliance with regulatory requirements.

Company Secretary

During the year, upon the resignation of Ms. HUI Yin Shan
(“Ms. Hui”) as the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) on 28 February 2018, Mr. CHAN Oi
Fat (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as the Company Secretary in
place of Ms. Hui. The primary contact person at the Company
during the year with Ms. Hiu and Ms. Chan was Mr. KO Chit
Fai Tristan, the chief financial officer of the Group.

During the year, Mr. Chan was responsible for providing
advice to the Board on corporate governance matters. Mr.
Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.
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External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Ernst &
Young, about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements for the year is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year are analyzed

SEB ¥ B A 2 % B 2 B

AR AINEP X BB 2ok B RT RN A5 P B BE
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below: T o

Fees paid/payable

B EANER

RMB’000

Service Category AR 75 %8 5 AR¥TF

Audit &5t

Annual audit service FEEFR 900
Non-audit el

Interim review service Hh HA R B AR 1S 450

Total a5t 1,350

Communications with Shareholders
and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders (both individual and institutional, and
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large) is essential for enhancing investor relations and
ensuring ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including
financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments and governance) by investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.huaxialihong.com
as a communication platform with Shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations and other information are
available for inspection for public access.
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The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and
other general meetings. Board members, in particular,
the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates,
appropriate management executives and external auditor
will use all reasonable efforts to attend AGMs and to answer
shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company (www.huaxialihong.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) after each general meeting. The Articles
allow a Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general
meeting to appoint a proxy, who need not be a Shareholder,
to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.
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With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons
for election as Directors, please refer to the procedures
available on the website of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to
the Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of the
rights of Shareholders.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and
relevant laws and regulations. The Board shall take into
account the factors of the Group when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, including but not
limited to, the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, capital requirements and
expenditure plans and interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the year
2018 together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year.

Principal Business Activities

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 29
July 2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for
the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note
5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, particulars of important events affecting
the Group during the year, principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group’s business, and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on relationships with
its key stakeholders is included in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group, for the last five financial years is set
out on page 6 of this annual report.
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Results and Dividends

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 90
and 91 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.0075 per share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2018 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Monday, 27 May 2019. The proposed
final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 21 June 2019 subject to
approval at the AGM.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars
will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to
Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for
the period from Friday, 10 May 2019 to Friday, 17 May 2019.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(i) from Friday, 10 May 2019 to Friday, 17 May 2019, both
days inclusive and during which period no share transfer will
be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 9 May 2019; and

(ii) from Thursday, 23 May 2019 to Monday, 27 May 2019, both
days inclusive and during which period no share transfer will
be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 May 2019.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

During the year, other than the Option Scheme as set out in the
section headed “Option Scheme” and Note 31 to the financial
statements, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreement.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During the production process, the Group
has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and waste
air discharge management. The Group has also encouraged staff
to be environmentally friendly at work by consuming the electricity
and paper according to actual needs, so as to reduce energy
consumption and minimize unnecessary waste.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any Shares for the year 2018.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 94 of this annual report and Note 32 to the
financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves were
RMB85.6 million.

Donations
The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year
(2017: nil).
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Borrowings

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, directors of
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Aiying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (re-designated on 23 July 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. WANG Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (appointed on 23 July 2018)
Mr. YANG Rongbing
(re-designated as executive Director on 23 July 2018)

Biographical Details of the Directors and
the Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages
14 to 19 in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM had proposed to have any service contract with our
Company or any of our subsidiaries, other than contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer, which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without the payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). The directors’ remuneration is
determined with references to directors’ duties and responsibilities,
individual performance and the results of the Group.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Three of our executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi, have respectively entered into service contract
with our Company pursuant to which each of them agreed to act as
an executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing
from 13 January 2016. Such terms were renewed for a further three
years commencing from 13 January 2019 upon expiry.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, formerly an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman and a member of the Audit Committee, has
been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as the
vice chairman of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018. He
ceased to be the chairman and a member of the Audit Committee
with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. YANG has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which he agreed to act as an
executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing from
23 July 2018.

Non-executive Director’s and Independent
Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment

Our non-executive Director, Mr. WANG Gang, has entered into a
letter of appointment with our Company pursuant to which he has
been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from
13 January 2016. Such term was renewed for a further three years
commencing from 13 January 2019 upon expiry.
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Two of our independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG
Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, have respectively entered into letter of
appointment with our Company pursuant to which each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 18
June 2016.

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director as well as the chairman and a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. LIU has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company pursuant to which he has
been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 23
July 2018.

Our non-executive Director is not entitled to any director’s fee. Each
of our independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a director’s
fee of HK$100,000 per annum.

Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the year 2018 and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Emolument of Directors and
Senior Management

We offer our executive Directors and senior management members,
who are also employees of our Company, emolument in the form
of salaries, allowances, remuneration, pension, discretionary bonus
and other welfares. Our non-executive Director does not receive any
emolument from our Group. Our independent non-executive Directors
receive emolument based on their responsibilities (including being
members or chairman of Board committees). We adopt a market
and incentive-based employee emolument structure and implement
a multi-layered evaluation system which focuses on performance and
management goals.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits,
performance-related bonuses and pension scheme contributions)
paid to the Directors in aggregate for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately RMB5.9 million.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, performance-
related bonuses and pension scheme contributions) paid to our
Group’s five highest paid individuals in aggregate for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately RMB8.6 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, no emoluments were paid by
our Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors had waived any emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has also adopted the Option Scheme to motivate
Directors and employees. Details of the Option Scheme are set out
in the section headed “Option Scheme” of this directors’ report and
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments had been made or
were payable, for the year ended 31 December 2018, by our Group
to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to article 191 of the Company’s articles of association, every
Director or officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company from liabilities which they may incur by reason
of execution of their duties.

In accordance with the definition of section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance, the permitted indemnity provision in relation to the
director’s and officer’s liability insurance was effective in 2017 and
remained valid as at the date of this annual report.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the controlling shareholders
of the Company were considered to be interested in businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our core businesses.

Deed of Non-competition

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by
the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed
to the Company that they have complied with the non-competition
undertakings during the Period. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the Period, and also
reviewed the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that such
undertakings have been complied with.

Pension Scheme

Details of the pension scheme of the Company are set out in the
paragraph headed “Social Pension Plan” in Note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the option
scheme conditionally approved and adopted by written resolutions of
our then Shareholders on 5 May 2017 (the “Option Scheme”).

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
motivate employees, Directors and such other participants and
to further perfect corporate governance structure, propel the
Company to build up and complete motivating mechanism,
fully motivate employees, and effectively help to align the
interests of Shareholders, Company and its employees by the
grant of options.
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(1)

(iii)

(iv)

Maximum number of Shares subject to Options

The Shares which issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted under this
Option Scheme (the “Share Option(s)”) and other share
option schemes of our Company (and to which the provisions
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) shall
not exceed 40,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the
total number of the Shares in issue on the date the Shares
commence trading on the Stock Exchange).

The overall limit on the number of Shares which shall be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted, and
yet to be exercised, under the Option Scheme, and other
share option schemes of our Company (and to which the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable),
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

Total number of Share Options granted

8,000,000 Share Options, each entitles its holder to subscribe
for one Share were granted on 4 July 2017. 3,000,000 Share
Options, each entitles its holder to subscribe for one Share,
were granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing (who was re-designated
from an independent non-executive Director as an executive
Director and appointed as the vice chairman of the Company
on 23 July 2018) on 23 July 2018. Please also refer to “Present
status of the Option Scheme” in item (vii) below.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Employee

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Share Options granted to each employee that
is eligible under the Option Scheme (the “Eligible Employee”)
under the Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
Eligible Employee would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such Eligible
Employee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with such Eligible Employee and his/her close
associates abstaining from voting.
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(v)

(vi)

Validity and Vesting Period of the Share Options

In respect of the 8,000,000 Share Options granted on 4 July
2017, the Share Options are exercisable at the exercise price
of HK$1.280 for a period of five years commencing from the
relevant vesting date and expiring at the close of business
on the last day of the five year period. Not more than 30%
of the Share Options were vested on or before 4 July 2018.
Not more than 30% of the Share Options will be vested on or
before 4 July 2019. Not more than 40% of the Share Options
will be vested on or before 4 July 2020.

In respect of the 3,000,000 Share Options granted on 23 July
2018, the Share Options are exercisable at the exercise price
of HK$1.414 for a period of five years commencing from the
relevant vesting date and expiring at the close of business on
the last day of the five-year period. Each of 1,000,000 Share
Options shall be vested on 23 July 2018, 23 July 2019 and 23
July 2020 respectively.

Subscription Price

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant
in the offer at the time of the offer, and shall be no less than
the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option, which shall
be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option (provided
that, in the event that any Share Option is proposed to
be granted within a period of less than five Business
Days after the trading of the Shares first commences
on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price of the
Shares for the share offer shall be used as the closing
price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange);
and

(c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option.

(v)

(vi)
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(vii) Present status of the Option Scheme (vii) HEBRRARESTEI3R AR
As at the date of this annual report, a total of 11,000,000 RAFEHRERH - 4 11,000,000 %
Share Options had been granted under the Option Scheme, EBRECKREBEBREERDE  EF
of which 850,000 were lapsed. 850,000 7 B KK °
Application has been made to the Listing Committee for the RARBMRLETZBE g HFERBRERERE
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which may fall FEIR R BREREITEMR FEITNE
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Share Options $£40,000,000 &0 LT REE °

to be granted under the Option Scheme, being 40,000,000
Shares in total.

Movements in the Share Options during the year were as RNEEABRENZSHHT
follows:

No. of Share Options

BREZE
Granted Lapsed Exercise
As at during the during the As at price per
Date of grant Participant 1/1/2018 Year Year 31/12/2018 Share  Exercise period
R2018 % R2018 %
REAH ABE 181H ERERE  FREAN 12A318 BRORE TIEHR
(HKS)
(&)
40712017 Employees (aggregate) 2,325,000 - 0% 2325000 128 4/7/2018-3/7/2023
0177848 EE(A3) 2,325,000 - (360,000)° 1,965,000 128 4/7/2019 - 3/7/2024
3,100,000 - (2400007 2,860,000 128 4/7/2020 - 3/7/2025
23/7/2018 Mr. YANG Ronghing, - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1414 23/7/2018 - 22/7/2023
2018%F7H23H  executive Director - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1414 23/7/2019 - 22/7/2024
BRERE - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1414 23/7/2020 - 22/7/2025
HOES
7,750,000 3,000,000 (600,000F 10,150,000
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Notes:

The above Share Options are either vested on date of
grant to two years or vested in one to three years and are
exercisable for a period of five years commencing from the
relevant vesting date and expiring at the close of business
on the last day of the five year period.

The Company received a consideration of RMB1.00 from
each of the grantee for the Share Options granted on 4
July 2017. The Company also received a consideration of
RMB1.00 from Mr. YANG Rongbing for the Share Options
granted to him on 23 July 2018.

The Share Options were held by a grantee who ceased to
be an employee of the Group during the year.

The closing price of the Shares on 3 July 2017, being the
business day immediately before the date on which the
options were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HK$1.31.

The closing price of the Shares on 20 July 2018, being the
business day immediately before the date on which the
options were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange
was HK$1.40.

No Share Options were exercised or cancelled during the
year.

Please refer to Note 31 on the fair value of Share Options
granted during the year.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

Arrangements for the Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Option Scheme” section in this directors’
report and in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the financial year or at the end of the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding company or the
subsidiaries of its holding company a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares

To the knowledge of the Board, as at 31 December 2018, the
interests and short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) (a) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
(b) which were required, under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were required
under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
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Number of
Name of Directors Nature of Interests Shares

EEHA EEME v 4=

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Underlying issued share
Shares- capital of the

Share Options Company
HARATE BT

HERDHE R 2 B9 4 40
-BRE BatE

Mr. LI Xiangli (Notes 2, 3, 4 & 8) Interests held jointly with another 225,810,000 (L)
FRF L (B2 -3 4/8) person

Interests of a controlled corporation

Interests of spouse

HE—ATHEHENER

R AEER

[ e

Ms. ZHANG Alying (Notes 2, 4, 5 & Interests held jointly with another 225,810,000 (L)
8) person
REWLZ L (WaF2 4 5K8) Interests of a controlled corporation

Interests of spouse

B35 — AT HRABE N ER

R AERER

Fe B

Mr. LIU Yi (Notes 2, 6 & 8) Interests held jointly with another 225,810,000 (L)
2 (B7it2 - 6%8) person
Interests of a controlled corporation
HE—ATHEHENER
R EE RS

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Note 7) Beneficial owner
SRS (7 7) EanEEA

= 56.45%

- 56.45%

- 56.45%

3,000,000 (L) 0.75%
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Notes:

66

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares

and underlying Shares.

@) On 31 January 2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr.
LIU Yi entered into an acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge
and confirmed that they are parties acting in concert in respect
of each of the members of our Group during and since the three
years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and continue
after the date of the deed. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions on
material matters in relation to the operation and management
of our Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of
the shareholders and boards of the members of our Group in
accordance with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli. For details, see in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Our Controlling Shareholders Acting in Concert” in the
Prospectus. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi are deemed to be interested in the Shares

which are interested by each other.

©) Leon Comerstone Investment Holding Limited (“Leon Investment”)
is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the Shares held

by Leon Investment.

4) Ms. ZHANG Aiying is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Alying are deemed to be

interested in the Shares which are interested by each other.

) Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited (“Swan Stone”) is
beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aliying. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Alying is deemed to be interested in the

Shares held by Swan Stone.

6) Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (“Hawk Flying”) is
beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hawk

Flying.

(7) Such 3,000,000 Share Options, each entitles its holder to
subscribe for one Share, were granted to Mr. YANG Rongbing
(who was re-designated from an independent non-executive
Director as an executive Director and appointed as the vice

chairman of the Company on 23 July 2018) on 23 July 2018.
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8) On 30 August 2018, the Company and Wan Tai Investments
Limited (B $K#& & AR 2 A) (“Wan Tai”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Construction Bank Corporation, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which, the Company
conditionally agreed to issue the secured guaranteed note (the
“Note”) with an aggregate principal amount of HK$68,000,000
with interest rate of 10% per annum. Leon Investment, Swan
Stone and Hawk Flying, as chargors of the Note have pledged
26,090,000 Shares, 49,290,000 Shares and 35,550,000 Shares
respectively, totalling 110,930,000 Shares to Wan Tai.

(©) As at 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of the
Company was 400,000,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of Directors,
as at 31 December 2018, there were no interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
in that section, or were required under the Model Code to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

®) M2018F 8 A30H ' AAal AR BEER
RITERHDBERRATNZENB AR E KK
BAERAR (BRI RERZ  BUER
RNABIEHRE 1T E 8 % 468,000,000
BILIEF R E10% T ENERBEREER
(IZ4#]) ° Leon Investment * Swan Stone
N Hawk Flying{E & = B2 A2 2 5l #
26,090,000 A% f% 1 + 49,290,000 A% f& 1%
35,550,000 fi% f% 13 (& #£ 110,930,000 % A%
) &K -

9 R2018F 12831 H » KRRARIEEHITHRAS
400,000,000 A% J& 17 ©

B EXFrHBEEINERESAM  R20184F
12A318  MEEFXAAAZRITHRAER
RAal s HAAREE (EER(BHRBAEKH)
EXVESR) Bk - ARG REEE R A RIE
(EHFREBEBRONEXVEHETRESHEAME
AR RBRMEZE AR (BERE(ES
REEERODBREGXEEFIRARENEZR
A E) BB (ESH REE KN F 352172
BRRNZGTET M ER AR - REGR
EFANBRNEARANT REZOER RAE
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the

Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2018, the
following corporations/persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more in the issued
Shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

S AL (BERARRA

FTERRARD P ERS

MEBEAM HZE2018F12A831H ° T3 A F
B THRABRRIN RE %
TR D AR IR D P B IR IR (GF %‘%&Hﬁ 516 451)
EXVEE 2R IDEHEEAERAR 32 BT
BT KRB (ESFRBAE
NRMEFRE L MATC 8RR 5% sk A s -

{51 25 336 1'% AR AR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests Shares Company
HERATE BT
RERE A EEME ROBE BREIANBOEIE
Ms. WEI Yajuan (Note 2) Interests of spouse 225,810,000 (L) 56.45%
IR+ (Hat2) B
Leon Investment (Notes 3 & 9) Beneficial owner 140,970,000 (L) 35.24%
Leon Investment (4723 % 9) EmfAA
Swan Stone (Notes 4 & 9) Beneficial owner 49,290,000 (L) 12.32%
Swan Stone (#f7£ 4% 9) EEBA
Hawk Flying (Notes 5 & 9) Beneficial owner 35,550,000 (L) 8.89%
Hawk Flying (4775 % 9) EmERA
China Certification & Inspection Group Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
CO.,Ltd (EF'.$A wuua(il)ﬁﬁﬁ
A A]) (“CCIC”) (Note 6)
PERERRE (RE) BRAF R EE S
(T B RESRE]) (Hit6)
China Inspection Company Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%
(FEI®EBRB R AR (“CIC”) (Note 6)
PERERE R A A REAERER
(T mll) (Bite)
China Dragon Inspection & Certification ~ Beneficial owner 46,500,000 (L) 11.63%

(H.K.) Limited (“China Dragon”)
(Note 6)

ERRRE (FE)
BRAaE (5l (Hate)

BEaERAA
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interests Shares Company
AR ATE BT
RERMH EREME ROBE BREIANBOEIL
Mr. LI Dexin (Note 7) Interests of a controlled corporation 23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
TIEITSEAE (HFET) R AERER
New Virtue Investment Holding Limited Beneficial owner 23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
(“New Virtue”) (Note 7)
New Virtue Investment EmEAA
Holding Limited ([ New Virtue ])
(K17t 7)
Ms. ZHENG Guangping (Note 8) Interests of spouse 23,700,000 (L) 5.93%
B ¥ 24 (A2 8) il B
China Construction Bank Corporation Person having a security interest in shares 110,930,000(L) 27.73%
(Note 9)
PEERIRITIRODER AT (A729) BEAERNDOREFRRZA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 9) Person having a security interest in shares 110,930,000(L) 27.73%

TRESREGRETAR (HiZF9)

BB OREEZOA
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Ms. WEI Yajuan is the spouse of Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. WEI Yajuan is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
are interested by Mr. LIU Yi.

Leon Investment is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Leon Investment.

Swan Stone is beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG
Aiying. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Alying is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Swan Stone.

Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Yi. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Hawk Flying.

China Dragon is a 99.88% owned subsidiary of CIC, which is a
75% owned subsidiary of CCIC. By virtue of the SFO, CIC and
CCIC are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by China
Dragon.

New Virtue is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Dexin. By
Virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Dexin is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by New Virtue.

Ms. ZHENG Guangping is the spouse of Mr. LI Dexin. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. ZHENG Guangping is deemed to be interested in
the Shares which are interested by Mr. LI Dexin.

Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk Flying, each being
the substantial shareholder of the Company, have pledged
26,090,000 Shares, 49,290,000 Shares and 35,550,000 Shares
respectively, totalling 110,930,000 Shares to Wan Tai Investments
Limited (& $£#% & R A 7l), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Construction Bank Corporation. Central Huijin Investment Ltd.’s
deemed interest was held by virtue of its 57.11% equity interests
in China Construction Bank Corporation.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of Directors, as
at 31 December 2018, no other persons (other than the Directors
of the chief executive of the Company) owned interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO or interests or short positions required to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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There was duplication of interests of 225,810,000 Shares among
Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU YI, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon
Investment, Swan Stone, Hawk Flying, China Construction Bank
Corporation and Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Of these Shares, Mr.
LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were
deemed interested in the 140,970,000 Shares, 49,290,000 Shares
and 35,550,000 Shares held by Leon Investment, Swan Stone and
Hawk Flying respectively. China Construction Bank Corporation
and Central Huijin Investment Ltd, were deemed interested in the
26,090,000 Shares, 49,290,000 Shares and 35,550,000 Shares held
by Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk Flying respectively.

There was duplication of interests of 46,500,000 Shares among
China Dragon, CIC and CCIC.

There was duplication of interests of 23,700,000 Shares among New
Virtue, Mr. LI Dexin and Ms. ZHANG Guangping.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and as
far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this directors’ report,
at least 25% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company is
held by the public pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands (being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated), which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Tax Relief

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

TRMLE RERLZ T P E - IS
% £ -+ Leon Investment * Swan Stone * Hawk
Flying* P BRI R RITRMDBR AR R RE
IR EBREME R A EE % E 225,810,000 i%
Rt e RZERDFR  TRFLEE RE
Fat - BEE KRBT Z T AR B R Leon
Investment *+ Swan Stone & Hawk Flying 2 Bl BT #5
A #)140,970,000 % % 15 ~ 49,290,000 A% i% 15 K
35,550,000 i I 15 HR HE B #E 2w o R B2 R ER1TIR
MBERAFRFRESKEEREFTAAIERA
B2 Leon Investment * Swan Stone & Hawk Flying 7
Bl BT 4% A #9 26,090,000 % 3% 15~ 49,290,000 A% A%
1% 1% 35,550,000 A% A% 17 7 #E 5 #E 25 ©

EoArRAFRETERRREEEEEHES
46,500,000 iz s 7 #E &5

New Virtue * B ERE KL L THEHR
23,700,000 f& J& {7 #E 25 ©

NRFRE
REAQRAESHNAHERERESHAAN - R©
EXgREEY  ARRDHETROBEHTEL
25% ERB(LETRADBRREA -

2

BrBERE
ADTERMAAL S HS (KR A MK L
RIAE ) 4 R 30 48 4 4B 5T IR € A -
T AR AERLBIRR A RR B SR -

Bi IR
EEDTNEREESERGTEEAREAE -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The customer base of the Company mainly consists of state-owned
and privately-run coal mining companies, coal distribution companies
and power generation companies. Customers of the Company also
include other general customers who engage us for specific services
on a service-order basis. Our suppliers include port companies,
sampling equipment companies, third-party labor dispatch providers
and landlords.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 16.6% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 32.6% of the Group’s
total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 4.3% of the Group’s total cost of sales. The Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 13.1% of the
Group’s total cost of sales.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number
of issued Shares had any interest in the five largest customers or five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Other than the financial risk management objective and policies as
disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements, some significant
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. They
are not exhaustive and there may be other additional risks and
uncertainties which are now unknown or immaterial to the Group but
could become material in future.

Our business and operations involve certain risks and uncertainties,
many of which are beyond our control. These risks can be broadly
categorized as (1) business and industry risk; (2) economic and
political risk; (3) financial risk; (4) people risk.

Business and Industry Risk

The Group depends on a limited number of customers for a
substantial portion of our revenue and may not be able to successfully
maintain our business relationship with these customers. Our
business may be indirectly affected by the development of China’s
coal industry. Our expansion plans or future acquisitions may entail
certain risks and challenges.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Economic and Political Risk

The economic, political and social conditions of China could affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Any slowdown
in the Chinese economy may affect the demand for power generation
and the coal consumption volume and result in a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax
treatments, insufficient insurance coverage, interest rate, foreign
currency in the normal course of business.

People Risk

Our business depends on the continued service of our senior
executives, and our business may be severely disrupted if we lose
their services.

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

Our business relationship with our customers has proven to be
lasting. We believe that impartial and high-quality testing and
inspection are critically important for our customers. To better
serve the business needs from our customers, we are dedicated to
delivering trustworthy coal testing and inspection services supported
by quality control and operational measures consistent with statutory
or industrial standards, which are strictly followed by our employees.
In the meantime, we have an experienced sales and marketing team
in each of our service centers to better understand and serve the
needs of our customers.

We generally maintain a list of approved suppliers. We review this
list on an annual basis and consider whether any supplier should
be removed or added. In selecting a new supplier, we generally
consider whether the supplier candidate has passed the relevant
quality authentication, obtained the relevant production permit, and/
or received favorable recommendations. We typically maintain at least
two suppliers for each type of our major equipment, instruments or
required services to minimize potential disruption of our operation,
maintain sourcing stability and secure competitive prices from
suppliers.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,085 employees in
total. The Group’s employee compensation includes base salary,
bonuses and cash subsidies. In general, we determine employee
compensation based on each employee’s performance, qualifications,
position and seniority. We are subject to social insurance contribution
plans organized by the PRC local governments and the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. In accordance with the relevant national
and local social welfare and housing reserve fund laws and
regulations, we are required to pay, on behalf of our employees,
monthly social insurance premiums covering basic pension insurance,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing reserve fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not
experience any strikes or significant labor disputes which materially
affected the operation of the Company. The Company maintained
good relationship with its employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the Option Scheme are set out in “Option
Scheme” section of this directors’ report and note 31 to the financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.
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Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which were exempted from
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Related Party Transactions

During the year, certain related parties entered into transactions with
us which are disclosed in Note 38 “Related Party Transactions” to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, of which certain
of transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
but were exempted from disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules. Details are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Change in Use of Proceeds from the Global
Offering

As set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016 (the
“Prospectus”) and the updates in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 June 2017, the Company intends to use the net proceeds
from its global offering for the follow purposes:

- approximately 30.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Huanghua port;

- approximately 25.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Tangshan port;

- approximately 20.0% of the net proceeds will be used to
construct new service facilities at Tianjin port;

- approximately 15.0% of the net proceeds will be used for
strategic acquisition or investment; and

- approximately 10.0% of the net proceeds will be used to fund
general corporate purposes.
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Changes in Use of Proceeds

The Board resolved on 23 March 2018 to change the proposed use
of the net proceeds due to the reasons set out below. Set out below
are details of the initial allocation of the net proceeds, the revised
allocation of the net proceeds, the amount utilized and the remaining
balance of the net proceeds:

ERFBREAR

EFEEN2018F3HBRARFEXNAERES
BMORERZ  REWT - 71X D EAFHREF
B BRORMERIBEFE CEANSELRA
BRIBFENRBEFBTO IR -

The remaining
Initial allocation of balance of
net proceeds and Revised allocation of proceeds after
its percentage to net proceeds and its percentage the revised
total proceeds to total proceeds Amount utilized allocation
MRARFEHERE ERARAHEE EYAREN
REEAZELH BERGATELA ERANEE FrEREanE
(Aporoximately (Approximately
(Aporoximately RVB millor) (Aporoximately AVB millor) FMB millon) RWE millon)
(HBETARE) CEL ) (HEETAEE) (HEETARE)
To construct new senvice faciifes at -~ EEBERIMRA RIS
Huanghua port 164 30.0% 164 30.0% 142 22
To construct new senvice faciifies at LB ER MBI RE RIS
Tangshan port 137 25.0% 137 25.0% 137 00
To construct new senvice faclities at -~ K EAERHHRE LI
Tianjin port 10.9 20.0% - 0.0% - -
Strategic acquistion or ivestment ~ HEUNEHRE 82 15.0% 19.1 35.0% 144 47
Tofund general coporate purposes — AR R RIEES 54 100% 54 10.0% 54 00
Total ait 54.6 100.0% 54.6 100.0% 4.7 6.9

Reasons for the Changes in Use of Proceeds

The Board resolved to adjust and reallocate the remaining balance
of RMB10.9 million of the proceeds which was initially allocated to
the investment project of Tianjin port to the strategic acquisition or
investment, for the reasons and purposes set out below. The Board is
of the view that such adjustment and re-allocation will result in a more
efficient use of net proceeds from the global offering.
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In 2017, the environmental governance policies for the Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei region continued to be tighten. According to the 2017
Air Pollution Prevention and Control Work Program for Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Region and Surrounding Areas (& ¥ & 1838 i
& 2017 AR5 WA IET K)) issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection in February 2017, it was required that by
the end of September 2017, receiving coals transported to ports by
diesel-powered trucks would be banned for ports in Tianjin, Hebei
and Bohai rim areas. The National Energy Administration and the
Ministry of Transport also required that by the end of October 2017,
the means of coal transportation to Tianjin port should be limited
to railway and automotive transportation of coal to the port should
be banned thereafter. In 2016, the coal throughput of Tianjin port
amounted to 110 million tonnes for the year, more than half of which
were transported by automobiles. As a result of the policy, in 2017
the coal throughput declined to 79.8 million tonnes, and the volume
for other ports nearby gradually increased. Correspondingly, in view
of the recent policy changes and the impact on the market, the Board
is of the view that environmental factors will bring new uncertainties to
the original plan of new service facilities construction at Tianjin port in
2018, and carrying out the original plan will not be the most favorable
choice. Therefore, the Board resolved to not construct new service
facilities at Tianjin port.

In order to seek better usage of net proceeds from the global offering
and protect the best interest of the shareholders of the Company, the
remaining balance of approximately RMB10.9 million, representing
20% of net proceeds, which was originally planned to be used to
construct new service facilities at Tianjin port by the Company will be
reallocated. As of the date of this report, the proceeds have not yet
been invested in this project.

According to our corporate strategy, we intend to enhance our
service capabilities and expand our service coverage through
investment in establishing subsidiaries, forming joint ventures with
local business partners and/or acquiring existing service facilities.
In 2018, we had entered into an acquisition contract with Saybolt
Holding BV, an independent third party which is incorporated in the
Netherlands to acquire 100% interest in Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology
& Inspection Co., Ltd. and Core Laboratories (Hong Kong) Limited,
bringing our business towards globalization and diversification. In the
future, we plan to increase our capital investment, continue to expand
our overseas network, and develop inspection and testing business
for other products.
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The Board confirms that there is no material change in the business
nature of the Group as set out in the Prospectus and considers that
the above proposed changes in use of net proceeds are in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

We uphold high standards and meet relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances when conducting our business.

For the year, the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Company in all
material respects.

The Group has complied with regulations related to occupational
safety, including but not limited to the Fire Prevention Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupation Diseases. The
Group maintains the occupational safety of employees mainly by
the following methods: weekly inspection of safety production risks
including risks of fire, piling up of hazardous materials and electricity;
regular disinfection of workplace and arranging professional medical
institutions for physical examination for employees; accelerating
the automatization of factories, replacing dangerous operation by
machines to prevent employees from being injured.

The Group has also complied with regulations related to production
materials and emission, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Group
carries out supervision mainly by the following methods: regular
commissioning of professional institutions to implement the indicator
monitoring on pollution discharge so as to meet the national standard;
reasonable storage and isolation of dangerous materials; strict
selection of suppliers to source materials that meet the EU REACH
and RoHS standards first.
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Significant Subsequent Events after the
Year

The Group had no significant subsequent events after the reporting
year up to the date of this annual report.

Pledging of shares by the Controlling
shareholders and Loan Agreement with
Covenant Relating to Specific Performance
of the Controlling Shareholders

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 30 August 2018,
on 30 August 2018, the Company and Wan Tai Investment Limited
(“Wan Tai”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CCBI International
(Holdings) Limited), among others, entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Company conditionally agreed to issue a secured guaranteed note (the
“Note”) with an aggregate principal amount of HK$68,000,000 with
interest rate of 10% per annum to Wan Tai, and Wan Tai conditionally
agreed to subscribe for the Note from the Company.

Subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedents, the
Company agreed to issue to Wan Tai by way of private placement,
and Wan Tai agreed to subscribe for the Note from the Company, in
the principal amount up to HK$68,000,000, which will mature on the
maturity date (the “Maturity Date”), being the first anniversary of the
issue date (the “Issue Date”, which is a date within five business days
after the conditions precedent having satisfied or waived, or such
other date as the Company and Wan Tai may agree in writing).

Subject to the prior written approval by the holder of the Note,
the Company may, on the anniversary of the Issue Date, request
extension of the Maturity Date to no later than the second anniversary
or the third anniversary , as the case may be, of the Issue Date.

The Note shall bear interest on its outstanding principal amount from
the Issue Date to the Maturity Date, at the rate of 10% per annum,
due and payable in arrear every six months by the Company from the
Issue Date.
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To secure the indebtedness and liabilities of the Company to Wan
Tai under the Note, each of Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Hawk Flying Investment Holdings Limited and Swan
Stone Investment Holding Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) charged 26,090,000 Shares, 35,550,000 Shares
and 49,290,000 Shares, respectively, on an aggregate basis being
110,930,000 Shares representing approximately 27.73% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 August 2018, in favour
of Wan Tai.

For as long as the Note remains outstanding, if the Collateral
coverage ratio (the “Collateral Coverage Ratio”, as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2018) falls below
2.0, each of the Controlling Shareholders agrees and undertakes to
charge additional Shares in favour of Wan Tai so that the Collateral
Coverage Ratio will increase to no less than 2.5.

In addition to the aforementioned share charges, each of Mr. Li
Xiangli (“Mr. Li”) and Ms. Zhang Aiying (“Ms. Zhang”) provides
guarantee in favour of Wan Tai in respect of the obligations of the
Company, the Controlling Shareholders, Mr. Li and Ms. Zhang under
the transaction documents (the “Transaction Documents”, as defined
in the announcement of the Company dated 30 August 2018).

Pursuant to the Transaction Documents, each of the Controlling
Shareholders undertakes to Wan Tai that, among others, (a) Mr. Li
shall remains as a Director, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board; or (b) unless with the prior written consent of Wan Tai, the
aggregate number of the charged Shares shall at all times be not less
than 110,930,000. It will be an event of default if any of the above
specific performance obligations is breached. Upon occurrence of
an event of default, the Note shall become immediately due and
repayable in accordance with the conditions of the Note, and Wan Tai
is entitled to redeem all or a portion of the Note.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Following the cessation of Mr.
YANG Rongbing and the appointment of Mr. LIU Hoi Keung as the
chairman and a member of the Audit Committee on 23 July 2018, the
Audit Committee now comprises three members, namely Mr. LIU Hoi
Keung (chairman), Mr. WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, all being
the independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the
Group and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of
the Group for the year. It also discussed with the management of
the Group and reviewed the financial controls, risk management and
internal control system of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards for the year have been audited by Ernst & Young, the
auditor of the Company.

Auditor

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the auditor of the
Company in 2018. The proposal of re-appointing Ernst & Young
as the auditor of the Company will be put forward at the AGM for
consideration and approval.

The Publication of the Annual Report

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company’s website at www.huaxialihong.com and the website
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. LI Xiangli
Executive Director

PRC, 22 March 2019
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B 2B AN

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

EY:x

To the shareholders of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 244, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZBE R E ()

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and other receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB43,619,000 before a provision for impairment of
RMB1,356,000. The Group had other receivables of RMB4,472,000
before a provision for impairment of RMB382,000.

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group’s accounting for impairment
of trade and bills receivables and other receivables has been
changed from incurred loss approach to a forward-looking expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) approach.

The measurement of ECLs requires the application of significant
judgement and increased complexity which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration in credit quality, and
assumptions used in the ECLs models (for exposures assessed
individually or collectively), such as the expected future cash flows
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

The accounting policies and disclosures for impairment of trade and
bills receivables and other receivables are included in notes 2.4, 3,
22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the key controls of the Group relating to the credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECLs. We checked the aging
analysis of the trade and bills receivables to understand movements
in the ageing and the settlement pattern of the customers.

For the collectively assessed ECLs, we assessed the
reasonableness of the Group’s ECLs model, including inputs
and assumptions used by the Group in calculating the ECLs. We
challenged whether historical experience is representative of current
circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in the portfolios
and assessed the reasonableness of forward-looking adjustments.

We also assessed the financial statement disclosures relating to the
Group’s exposure to credit risk.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Share option scheme

The Group has awarded share options to its employees under a
share option scheme. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the total amount of share-based payment cost was RMB1,553,000
which was recognised in profit or loss.

The total cost of equity-settled transactions was measured with
reference to the fair value at the grant date. The fair value of the
granted share options was determined by the management based
on valuation performed by an external professional valuer. The
procedures over management’s assessment related to share-based
payments were significant to our audit because the assessment
process was complex and involved estimates. Management’s
determination of the fair value of the share options using a binomial
option pricing model involved assumptions in respect of future
market and economic conditions, estimated performance and the
leaver rate.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the share-based
payments are included in note 2.4, 3 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In order to evaluate management’s judgements, we examined the
acceptance letter and discussed the terms and conditions with
management. We evaluated the valuation techniques and challenged
the underlying assumptions. We evaluated the key estimations used
in the calculation of the share-based payment cost. We recalculated
the amortisation of the equity-settled transactions during the year.
We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about
the share option scheme.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of B~
the consolidated financial statements NE
(continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the °
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the °
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the °
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

]
£ (&)

MBS ARE VB WRARE

HEERAKBECLSHERNREEE
HaEw - RIBFAENNESRE  BERS
BFEESRYBENEEHERTEEN -
EmMAEERHERENFELLRNE
EERRE - MREFRB/FEERNTE
M BBV EEZBEN RS TR FEA
FEIRGAMBHRERTNEBEEE - BE
BRANEESR  ARMAEEERIERR
BER - RANAEREENZBEIHRE A
LEFTEVS R RET R A - RRFIEK
BRATEEHESRBETERFELE -

HESAMBRRNERBIESTA - &5
MAR  BREE UGB HRERE
BRNRBRRIZFER -

REEEANERREHADNMKERE
MR BENENEE UEHEEH
BHRERBEXRBR - RABEEREEN
A EBMIT - RARF B R AR

2HEE-

SREMEIRS RAEESZZE QBB TEDN

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant FiTEE SELH EAFNERE BER
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control PIFE & 51 38 Al H P BB 2 51 ) A 7] &8 K IRPA o

that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZBE R E ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Ka Yan Augustine.

Emst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2019

2B B AT AR S B IS R AR
KB (&)

BZFEAEZZESREXER HBARMAETE

BB MENERERBRENR  YEMFIER
BrRlRe A B AR ERMBLENAARR

RRE M EIS D/{&E@Jﬂ BB T - ABRERIBI
A o

RECZESBBNERSD  HAECHLE
FHARGAMBRENEARSER  BMBE
PREESEE AT B0 - RPVER BN RS PG L
BH RIFAREBRTIANFARBEEELSTH
SEBRFERNBERT - WRAEBRERMRK
SHABRFRENNAERREBELENAR
M BIPRETEERETABZER -

HEARB I ZHBEMRENETEEABARER
fix o

LK BETERE AT
HEGEHED

BB

201943 22 H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEm ik HEtEEkaER

Year ended 31 December 2018

B 2018F 12431 HILFE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥T T AREF T
REVENUE WA & 233,750 200,921
Cost of sales SHE KA (110,842) (90,237)
Gross profit EH 122,908 110,684
Other income and gains HAap g A Rk = 5 3,162 1,634
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HAX (4,169) (2,749)
Administrative expenses THRX (101,276) (63,704)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment eMmEE (CRERE) A
of financial assets, net BE o FE (1,072) 213
Other expenses HEis (3,090) (2,430)
Finance costs & P AR 7 (2,632) (690)
Share of profits of: LATR %18 &4k ) -
A joint venture B 18 - 171
An associate B 1 2 19 381 8
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A0 R E 6 14,212 43,137
Income tax expense PSR < 10 (9,311) (8,434)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFE 4,901 34,703
Attributable to: AT &S IAFELS -
Owners of the parent NaEA A 14,021 35,595
Non-controlling interests e (9,120) (892)
4,901 34,703
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

e lEMEEWER (E)

Year ended 31 December 2018

B E20184F 12431 HILF/Z
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 ARET T ARETF T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HithzmWsE, (5i8)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(l0ss) REE& BRI e EF D LR
that may be reclassified to profit or loss ZEIFINEMEERE
in subsequent periods (net of tax): (BB (R -
Exchange differences on translation BMEGINETSHIE K =5
of foreign operations 527 (1,915)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREMZEKE (BE) -
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, HBRBRK
NET OF TAX 527 (1,915)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREENEAEE
FOR THE YEAR 5,428 32,788
Attributable to: AR & I8 e -
Owners of the parent NalEA A 14,548 33,680
Non-controlling interests e (9,120) (892)
5,428 32,788
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEERBFREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted ARG S RMB3.50 cents RMB8.90 cents

12 AR#35070 AR®890%
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B EE AR R R

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F R 2017 F
12A31H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R 13 118,676 106,488
Investment properties TEMZE 14 20,717 21,992
Prepaid land lease payments TEAT b T & IE 15 5,954 6,198
Goodwill B 16 3,129 572
Intangible assets B EE 17 4,425 732
Investment in a joint venture REEEENTE 18 - 1,678
Investment in an associate R E T ENTE 19 3,489 3,108
Equity investment designated at fair value IR ANBETAELML
through other comprehensive income 2HE WA RIERE 20 3,000 =
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEEE 21 815 1,041
Prepayments, other receivables and TEfTRUE - e RIE &
other assets Hih&EE 23 6,614 929
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 166,819 142,738
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 WA R B R E 22 42,263 22,563
Prepayments, other receivables TERTFRIB - H At FEUGRIE 2
and other assets HMEE 23 15,524 18,581
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 24 - 21,300
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABZED
profit or loss TREE 24 27,000 -
Pledged deposits EEAFR 25 400 397
Cash and cash equivalents BHeKRLEEY 25 76,848 48,791
Total current assets MENEEMLE 162,035 111,632
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables Z 5 RS IE 26 12,293 3,718
Contract liabilities AHIaE 27 2,379 -
Other payables and accruals H A FIA R ERIAE 28 35,383 31,671
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FTEHRITER R EMER
borrowings 29 62,881 6,061
Tax payable JE AT 3R 3,253 1,801
Interest payables FETFIE 1,472 -
Total current liabilities mENRBEAEE 117,661 43,251
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZE 44,374 68,381
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERABERS
LIABILITIES 211,193 211,119
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e BN R (&)

31 December 2018

2018412 531 A
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F 2017 F
12A31H 12 H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARET T ARBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FTERITERREAER
borrowings 29 13,204 11,681
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBAR 21 741 1,111
Interest payables FEATF B 257 =
Other payables H A JE < FRIE - 29
Total non-current liabilities FmeBERsE 14,202 12,821
Net assets BEFE 196,991 198,298
EQUITY EaR
Equity attributable to owners BAREEAEGESR
of the parent
Share capital & 30 131 131
Reserves EE 32 201,753 195,075
201,884 195,206
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2 (4,893) 3,092
Total equity T 5 196,991 198,298
LI Xiangli LIU Yi
EJap 257
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEmEE R

Year ended 31 December 2018

B 2018F 12431 HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARERARL
*Exchange Non-
Share  *Capital *Statutory fluctuation  * Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
YEE ‘B FER
RE  EARE e RBRE CRENE ait B ERAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETrR
Asat 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H 131 93,019 11,426 3,226 63,348 171,650 - 171,650
Profit for the year ERHE = = = = 35,59 35,595 (892) 34,703
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  EREMZ AR :
Exchange differences on translation BEENEH
of foreign operations EXER - - - (1915) - (1915) = (1915)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER 2 E Y 2% - - - (1915) 35,59 33,680 (892) 32,788
Final 2016 dividend declared ESRE2016 E R RS = = = = (10,000) (10,000) - (10,000)
Capital contributions from FERREERLR
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - 2,863 2,863
Equity-settled share option NEREENERE
amangements (1ot 31) R (Witsr) - 627 - - - 627 - 627
Acqisition of a subsidiary WEKERA - - - - - - 870 370
Eouity transactions with non-controling 2 3EIERR AR R A%
shareholders % - (751) - - - (751) 751 -
Transfer from retained profits REFHEE - - 4329 - 4,329) - - -
As at 31 December 2017 and R017TE12A31BR
1 January 2018 20181718 131 92,8% 15,755 1,311 85,114 195,206 3,092 198,298
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - 14,021 14,021 (9,120) 4,901
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FREM 2 EUE -
Exchange differences on tranglation BEENEBH
of foreign operations ERES - - - 521 - 521 - 521
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R 2 E YA 2% - - - 527 14,021 14,548 (9,120) 5,428
Final 2017 dvicend declared BERM2017TERSRE
(hote 11) (Wix11) - - - - (10,0000 (10,000 - (10,000)
Eouity-settled share option DEREENERE
anangements (ot 37) R (i1 - 1,553 - - - 1,553 - 1,553
Acquisition of a subsidiary (rofe 39) WEWELR (H233) - - - - - - 1,712 1,712
Equity transactions with BERRRENER
non-controlling shareholders 2% - 517 - - - 517 (577) -
Transfer from retained profits RAMEER - - 3,574 = (3,574) = = -
As at 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31H 131 95,025 19,329 1,838 85,561 201,884 (4,893) 196,991

As at 31 December 2018, these reserve accounts comprise the

consolidated reserves of RMB201,753,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB195,075,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AeRTRER

Year ended 31 December 2018
EZ20184F 12 A31 HILF/E

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR® T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 754 A A1) 14,212 43,137
Adjustments for: ERTISBEELAE
Share of profit of a joint venture ElEE & RERNHE 18 = (171
Share of profit of an associate FEIR & B EFE 19 (381) ®)
Finance costs &R 7 2,632 690
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment ME - BERREHTE 6 11,855 9,261
Depreciation of investment properties REYERNITE 6 1,275 1,223
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B £ 1 70 & ZR A # $4 6 244 244
Amortisation of intangible assets m A ERE 6 296 88
(Gain)/loss on disposals of items of property, HEWE  MENKREER
plant and equipment, net M () BB FE 6 (44) 33
Gain on disposals of bank financial products & 58 77 1 B & fh F UK 25 6 (761) (242)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade & 5 B ZIEH)
receivables BB, CRERE) 6 529 (213)
Impairment of financial assets included in FTATERT RIE - HAth fE UL
prepayments, other receivables and other FIERHMEER S R
assets, net BERE  F8 6 543 -
Equity-settled share option expense NEREENERERS 31 1,553 627
31,953 54,669
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FE W GRIE I JE I 2= 15 38 0 (20,725) (18)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other TEfTSRIE - HAtb FEUGRIE &
receivables and other assets H b EERAL, (4Em) 4,098 (2,096)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SR RESL I, Ol 8,575 (897)
Increase in contract liabilities BRBEEN 2,379 -
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H b e BIE &
accruals FERTIE B I, CR ) 2,163 (1,159)
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 28,443 50,499
Income tax paid BAIFEHE (8,462) (5,205)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFBRSREFRE 19,981 45,294
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
FeRERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2018

B 2018F 12431 HILFE
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR® T ARETF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYWE  BEKZEEE
plant and equipment (28,236) (42,099)
Payment for intangible assets B EENK (1,604) -
Proceeds from disposals of items of property, HE#E « BE MREEB
plant and equipment FriS 30 340 263
Purchase of bank financial products BERTEVER (115,500) (100,800)
Disposals of bank financial products HERITIEM E @ 109,800 88,500
Gain on disposals of bank financial products & 88 7738 81 & By U 5 5 761 242
Purchase of interests in an associate BEBEDCENER - (3,100)
Purchases of equity investment designated 5§ E X A /o BET A EA
at fair value through other comprehensive ZEHBEMRERE
income (3,000) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash W EEHIEB AR - FBRERR
acquired IR & 33 (3,156) (498)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits AR (3 ), 3) 415
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREFRSMARSREFHE (40,598) (57,077)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHRAERERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions from non-controlling FEFE R AR B & A R
shareholders - 2,863
New bank loans and other borrowings 2R TTE R R EALE TR 34 90,600 50,370
Repayment of bank loans and EEBRITERREMER
other borrowings 34 (31,888) (42,684)
Interest paid BAFIE 34 (903) (1,900)
Dividend paid BT E (10,000) (10,000)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mEFEEE, (FTA)
financing activities BemEFRE 47,809 (1,351)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBELESEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ORd) F5 27,192 (13,134)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  4MEE R & 85 2 558 865 (1,525)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERREEFEY
beginning of year 48,791 63,450
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERREEZEY
AT END OF YEAR 76,848 48,791
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Notes to Financial Statements

By %5 ¥ 3R B AE

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

Corporate and Group Information 1. 2AREEEHR
China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) FEDBBRBRIERER AR ((ARQA])
is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman B—RKR2015F7 20 RHEEHET
Islands on 29 July 2015. The registered office address of the MR EREMER A o ARQ Ao
Company is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, = 7 b #iF A PO Box 1350, Clifton House,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Cayman Islands ° 2K A & % 0 B 2016 F 7
Kong Limited from 12 July 2016. R12AERERBAERIMBERAR LT -
The Company is an investment holding company. During the RABR—RIEEERRQF - RFE - K
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred RAREWNBAR (HEBAIFNEE]) £
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the testing and BRPREARLME ([HRE]) R/ EH xR
inspection of coal and coke in the People’s Republic of China kiR gk o
(the “PRC”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Company was under the BEERAE AARHFAFNRERE R ES -
control of LI Xiangli (Z=AF]) and ZHANG Alying (58 & 3%). L ZMAREERRBKRE -
Xiangli and ZHANG Alying are spouses.
Information about subsidiaries ARHE L RER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RAFRIMBRRFIBLT
Percentage of

Place of equity attributable

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company

registration and registered  AAREEEEEAL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

HRRL/ BRTEE/
£ EMREENY dfRE HE B EEER
China Leon Inspection Holding (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1.00 100 - Investment holding

REEMREE 1.00%7T RERR
Huaxia Leon Inspection Limited The PRC HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
EZNERRERAR Hong Kong 100587t REZR

HE

BE

Top One Quality Management Consultant Limited  British Virgin Islands 1S$50,000 100 - Investment holding

REREARES 50,000% 7T RERR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. 2EREEER (E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BARKE L RER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  RARELEEEIL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL/ BRfTEE/
£ EMREELY R HE B IEEH
HongKong Top One Global Limited The PRC HK$1.00 = 100 Investment holding
EEE-RIRERAF Hong Kong 10087 REER
G
B
Asia Leon Inspection Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
EEABRES 50,0005 REER
Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD1,000,000 - 51 Inspection and testing of
R 1,000,000 M T commodties
Bming kA
Leon Inspection & Testing India India INR500,000 - 80 Inspection and testing of
Private Limited HE 500,000t commoalties
BEming R
Pt. Leon Testing and Consultancy Indonesia IDR10,005,000,000 - 99.70  Inspection and testing of
HEREDR 10,005,000,000E0E /& commodties
Amias kiRl
Leon Inspection and Testing Australia Pty Ltd. ()~ Australia AUD1.00 - 100 Inspection and testing of
BN 10087 commodities
Bming kR
Leon Inspection Testing Services Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 100 Inspection and testing of
San. Bhd SRED 1,000,000 5% commodities
B kA
Leon Inspection & Testing (Private) Limited (i) Pakistan PRK40,000,000 - 80 Inspection and testing of
BEHA 40,000,000 B £HBE commodties
Amias Rl
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. ARREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BARHELRER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered ~ RARELEEEEIL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL/ BRAEE/
£ EMREELY R HE B IEEH
Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC US$1,150,000 - 100 Ingpection and testing of
{8 (X2) RiTAER AR Mainland China 1,150,000% T commodities
e Amiah R
ER
Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Limited (i) The PRC HK$1.00 - 100 Inspection and testing of
Hong Kong 1.00% 7T commodlties
i Amink R
B
Beijing Huaxia Lihong Commodity Inspection The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Coal inspection
Co., Ltd. “Befjng Huaxia Linong” Mainland China AR 50,000,000 Erig
IREENBERRRERAALREENE] F
R
Qinhuangdao Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Coal and coke testing,
REENBERBAERAT Mainland China AR 1,000,0007C inspection and relevant
i sevice
RE A BxRERRA - B8R R
TRERT
Tangshan Huaxia Lihong Commodity The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Inspection, testing, appraisal
Inspection Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR 1,000,0007C and inspection technology
BLZENEBmRBERLA hE development
REA wE R A RRR
R
Tianjin Huaxia Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Coaland coke inspection
REEENERRRABRAT Mainland China AR H1,000,0007 ErRERBR
e
PER
Nanjing Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 Coal, coke and minerals
ARIEERRAERA Mainland China AR 3,000,0007T inspection
i B ExRENRER
mER

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE

99



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. 2EREEER (E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BARKE L RER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  RARELEEEIL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL/ BRAEE/
£ EMREELY R H# B IEEH
Guangzhou Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,440,000 - 100 Professional technique
BMNBRREAERAR Mainland China ARH1,440,0007C senice
e EERMRT
mERH
Hebei Lihong Minerals Inspection Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBS,000,000 - 100 Coal inspection technique
AN BRERRBRARAT Mainland China AR #3,000,0007 advisory senvice
HE Sy SR b
PER
Hunan Lihong Coal Testing Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 Coal, coke and minerals
NENEERRABRAR Mainland China AK#3,000,0007C testing and inspection
e St SR
mER
Zhuhai Lidaohongtu Coal Testing Technology The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Coal and minerals testing,
Senvices Co., Ltd. Mainland China AE1,000,0007C inspection and advisory
R NEEEERRAREREERAR HE senvice
mE M ExRENRA - BB Rk
Beijing Huaxia Lihong Software The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Software development,
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China AE1,000,0007C technique service and
FREENENHREGRAT H sale of computers and
R it equipment
BHEE RiTREAR
ERRREHE
Tianjin Shengde Tiangong Sampling The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Scientific research,
Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR#10,000,00070 technique service and
REEERIREREERAA i business service
A R - SR &
AR RS

100
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

2018412531 H
1. Corporate and Group Information 1. ARREEER (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BARHELRER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered ~ RAFEEEREALL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL/ BRAEE/
£ EMREELY R HE B IEEH
Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong Commodity The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 55 Quality Inspection Service
Inspection Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR¥50,000,0007 BEERBRSE
REZENBERRRERAF hE
EIAH
Huoerguosi Huaxialihong Quality The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Product quality control,
Technical Service Co., Lid. Mainland China AR 1,000,000 inspection, evaluation
ERRNEE NRESRITREERAH i supenvision, testing and
i relevant technique service
mESHH  BR T
EE  RANRER
iP5
Leon Sanitary Inspection Technical The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Vector biological control
Service (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR 1,000,000 7T technology, technological
TBERRRS (K2) BRAF i development and
HE N consulting and chemical
products wholesale and
reta
SRR B0
FERA CEERY
ERTE
Xinjiang Huaxia Lihong Commadity The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Qualty inspection service
Inspection Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR 5,000,000 EERRE
MEZENBERREERAR() HE
PEA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

Corporate and Group Information 1. RAREEEHR (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) AR EBLATER ()
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  RARELEEEIL
Name* business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL/ BRAEE/
£ EMREELY R H# B IEEH
Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 50 Coal, coke and minerals
Co., Ltd. “Guangzhou Lihong Energy’ Mainland China AR 5,000,000 inspection
BN B RRAREERA R HE B ExRENRER
[BM 882 (i) PR
Inner Mongolia Lihong Supply Chain Quality The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Standard technical and
Technology Co., Ltd. Mainland China AR#10,000,0007 quality control technical
NEGDBHREELERTBRAT e services
B A BRI RE 224

The English names of the companies registered in

the Mainland China, represent the best efforts of the
management of the Company in directly translating the
Chinese names of the companies as no English names

have been registered.

(i) Leon Inspection and Testing Australia Pty Ltd., Leon
Inspection & Testing (Private) Limited and Xinjiang Huaxia
Lihong Commaodity Inspection Co., Ltd. were established

during the year.

(i) During the year, the Group acquired Saybolt (Tianjin)
Metrology & Inspection Co., Ltd. and Leon Overseas (Hong
Kong) Limited from an independent third party. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 33 to the

financial statements.

(iii) During the year, the Group took control of Guangzhou
Lihong Energy. Further details are included in note 33 to

the financial statements.

All these companies were incorporated with limited liability.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures

2.1

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

2.

RAEEN ST RRNEH

2.1

mRERE

ZEM BRI TIRIBER G R
e ((ERetEAEES]) %
i 1) BB B 75 3 & 2 Al ([KBI R
MBHESEAD]) (BEME (ER
s 2R - (BER g EAD
(KB &t EAD]) k2E) &
BRREE RAIRFE(RBED
ZEBERERHE -BERAREE
AEMNEAREEFABRENES A
BENMBERAREBEFAEME
E s AR B SN - B TSR T
BELRALRE - ZFWHHE
TIAARE (AR 25 RE 5
BRI FTEBEHNERAZE
REZLATAIE -

HEHEE

BAVBBREREEARBRENEB
NE(HBAIAEEH]) #HZE2018
FI12A3TBLEFENTBHHRE -
BB R Al e A AN A B B F sk R 4R
FINEE(BEEBEER) - A%
B ZEEMMSRAREE R
B RS RR BT B ZER
REREHROAE R (AR T
REERERENDNETEREHEN
HEESHFENEER) K AE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

104

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.1

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.

mEEER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

RAEER ST RRNEH
K= (&)

22 EHBEXMNEIHREE

106

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

(R B EERDFE 298 21857
Amendments to IFRS 4

(EIFR B TSR RID 3 457 2 f

W
pa[l13

T

IFRS 9
(BB s s ZERI) £ 9 5%
IFRS 15
(BB TS s R £ 1555
Amendments to IFRS 15

(BB TS s R R B 155% 2 18R]
Amendments to IAS 40

(BB gt R E 4055 2 BT
IFRIC-Int 22

BRI REREEE® —REE22R
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

F[F#2014-2016 F 1 EY

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

AEEE RN EFER B EET
SR DA BT 5T R AR TR B 7
5y -

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

LR BEREI AKX GBI 7 R E

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

E(BIR BT 75 R 2E R ) 4 SRR & K9 — GHIEAF IS
BRI BIREER)DEIR T A

Financial Instruments

EHTA

Revenue from Contracts with Custormers

EFEAHA

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

JEB (BIBR AT T8 & BRI D F 15 9 57 & AT

Transfers of Investment Property

BEREYE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

SMNERE Z R FENTEE

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

(BRI B mEERDE 15 (R ER)FE 285 2
CH|



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised IFRSs are described below:

(@

Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to
account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any cash-settled
share-based payment transactions and has
no share-based payment transactions with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

2.

RAEER ST RRNEH

R 4% & (4

2.2

")

=1

ENBRENEBREE (K)

B B 4R R 5% [ B 75 S SR R B A (B
B EREEA)FA4F 2EFT R
4F [Z 20 2014-2016 F B HTHN » 3%
LA RS RT (BB B 75 i o5 2%
BB E R EHRBIT

(a)

(BRI S ERD F 255
ZEFTRE=-([AT2#HE
BBEREHFAEUREREE
AR BERO TR ZH
T8 RREBEITEIRS
RERONRR ZEEOHR
BRAMBIETERNA
BEFREREFENUEN B
ERONAISHHDE Kk
HUBRNRERONRR S
MR R ARIFEH S DR
HRGHEEERREEEZ
ERTR AR - X FEETE
Rt EREEE ARG S
2B SRR R ROARRTT
ETVERNB S EE RN
A Z R - ZFERTSIA
—fEFIIMER - EFAET
fRIFES - REEBEITHEE
EMmENETSRENARF
MEEEE 2 AR AERE
MNRR S HBESERR
PR 4 B A B 0 I BT E S
RS o WIN RFIERE
B MRS EE AN B
T B0 5 7R 32 55 B9 A6 R B iR
RIEFT  SHARBRELEE
B RERONRRS -
Az R 2 B1E B REER
BREGEER D AR - ZFE
IR B AKE M
RRKKBELEMERY
& RES/AKEYNEMTM
AR & BB AR D RERE
NS REFRMRIED
AR FREEREN NS
RERONKRR S

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE

107



108

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS
39 Financial Instruments.: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under
IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts
of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing IAS
39’s incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS
9’s expected credit losses (“ECLs”).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12 A31 H
2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in 2. GEEERGTBENEE
Accounting Policies and Disclosures R E (&)
(continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 BIHBENEBREE (H)
Disclosures (continued)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
Classification and measurement (continued) DR EGE
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts n2018F1 A1 BKEKF &
under 1AS 39 to the balances reported under FFERI)E39RIE T ERE A
IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows: ERAR R B R B 75 5 22 81 )
FIOFREMMERLEROT
IAS 39 Measurement IFRS 9 Measurement
(EBeEl) E0%iHE Re- (EBEBREEN) 9% E
Category Amount  classification ECL Amount Category
£l Eix ENAE  REGHEEX 2| ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT
Financial assets SHEE
Trade and bis receivables BERYFERRUER L&R' 22,563 - - 22,563 ACt
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5 ATEI 08 » £ NGB R
ofher receivables and otherassets  EHEENEBEE L8R 9,257 - - 9257 AC
Avallable-for-sale nvestments THHERE AFS? 21,300 (21,300) - - NATER
To: Financial assets at fa value EROABEABRN
through proft or loss () SREE() (21,300) - -
Financial assets at far value through A BB AERHEREE
proft orloss NATER - 21,300 - 21,300 FVPL
From: Avallable-for-sale investments ()~ & : AT HERE() 21,300 - -
Pleciged deposits BEARR L8R 397 - - 307 AC
Cash and bank balances ReRFTER L8R 48,791 - - 48791 AC
Total assets EEGE 102,308 - - 102,308
Financial liabilties SRER
Trade payables BARMNFE AC 3718 - - 3718 AC
Financial labiities includedinother AR HERFEREFER
payables and accruals MERakE AC 20,32 - - 20322 AC
Interest-bearing bank loans and other st B RATERREMER
borrowings AC 17,742 - - 17,7482 AC
4,782 - - 41,782
Other liabilities EEE
Contract iabities EHER AC 1569 - - 1,569 AC
1,569 - - 1,569
Total liabilties BELE 43,351 - - 43,351

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in

110

Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(b) (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

U L&R: Loans and receivables
2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities
at amortised cost

S AFS: Available-for-sale investments
& FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

(i) The Group has classified its investments
on bank financial products previously
classified as available-for-sale investments
as financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss as these investments
did not pass the contractual cash flow
characteristics test in IFRS 9.

Impact on reserves and retained profits

There is no material impact on the Group to
the opening balance of reserves and retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018 for the adoption
of ECLs requirements of IFRS 9.

The statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017 does not have to be restated
because the change of the policy causes little
impact on the balances.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(c)

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11
Construction Contracts, |AS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The disclosures are included in
note 5 to the financial statements. As a result
of the application of IFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group’s contracts with customers for
the provision of coal and coke testing and
inspection services generally include one
performance obligation. The Group has
concluded that revenue from the provision of
testing services should be recognised at the
point in time when the test result is delivered to
the customer.

2.

RAEER ST RRNEH

R 4% & (4

2.2

")

=1

ENBRENEBREE (K)

(c)

(PR H RSB E15
55 R EETRACHB 25
ERNFE115ZES 4 (E
ReHER)FE18FMA K
HERE - B (K8
BRIN) EARERER
FERITAHMEELNEA -
CEIBR B 75 3R &5 2 BI) 8815
FHIEREFPEHRAGEE
BAENFALSER - BB
CEIBR B B 3R &5 2 BIl) 8815
5 WA ERESS
EREEEREARE TER
BEMEEN SRR - (H
B REERDE 15K R
Al AT 8 AR AR
R REBNEE - %R
eI AEZHEMEREE R
BT BESWRAEE -
REITEME  TRBAMEZ
BEHEERBBERBAS
M B LA I B HE R AEE
MEH - ZERBEANIB
HRERWES - R FEA (A
PR RS RS R 155
REBE R BHREME2.4
BEHARAERHE K

A

;Eo

R ER B ph R R R B AR A
B Kt B AR 75 B P AT SL A
EHREERR-HEREWNEA
F-AEEFRBLERS
T fit i Bl AR 75 B0 A FE X A
BERZN T EPRRER °

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE

11



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

2018412 A31 8
2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in 2. GEEERSTBENEE
Accounting Policies and Disclosures R E (&)
(continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 BIHBENESBREE (HE)
Disclosures (continued)
(c) (continued) (c) (%)
The Group adopted IFRS 15 from 1 January AEBEB2018F1 A1HE
2018 using the modified retrospective method TS BUB B A RN (B
of adoption and applied the method only to the I IREERD)FE 155 - W
contracts that are not completed at the date %7 = ERANEY X FE
of initial application. The adoption of IFRS 15 FABEHATHHELH - K
had no material impact on the Group’s financial MCE R mEER)E
statements. 15 5% % A 3 7K & B B 7S 4R

REREMEATE -

Set out below are the amounts by which each T 3T A R A (R BR B 7S
financial statement line item was affected as at HEANE 155 E R 2018
1 January 2018 as a result of the adoption of F1A1TBNS P BHmEKIE
IFRS 15: BEEEXENSHE:
Increase/
(decrease)
#in, ()
Note RMB’000
k3 ARET T
Liabilities =R
Contract liabilities EHEE () 1,569
Other payables and accruals Hub e IE R ERTIEE i (1,569)
Total liabilities BEESE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(c)

(continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each
financial statement line item was affected as at
31 December 2018 and for the year ended 31
December 2018 as a result of the adoption of
IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 has had no
impact on the Group’s profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows,
but has had impact on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group.
The first column shows the amounts recorded
under IFRS 15 and the second column shows
what the amounts would have been had IFRS
15 not been adopted:

Consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018:

Contract liabilities aHEE
Other payables and accruals  H fth 8+ 2B &
FEFTTE B

2. WAEEERSHBERNEE
Ri%E (&)
22 BIBENEBREE (A
(c) (&)
BT A R A B R B
ERANFE 1557 ¥ 2018
F12A31 B R B E20184F
12A31BIEFENETB
BRRBEEEATENEHE -
PR B BR BA 15 3R = 2E B
F1REAEERR NE
b2 A RELE
KRERBMER @REWEY
2 EHEAEBEGS HER
AREETE - F—WATR
AR (B B 755 o o5 22 1))
FISRERNESHE MHE
Z TR A3 i AR R A B BR
MEHRELRDFEGHRAE
e
2018F 12 A31 B4R &
IR
Amounts prepared under
REUTHEENSE
Previous Increase/
IFRS 15 IFRS (decrease)
Bl B 81 75 ioKed
HBEER) (BT i,
#1155  WwmEEAD (R 4)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTT ARETT ARETT
U] 2,379 - 2,379
U] 35,383 37,762 (2,379)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(c)

(continued)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January
2018 and the reasons for the changes in
the statement of financial position as at 31

December 2018 are described below:

0

Consideration received from customers
in advance

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the
Group recognised consideration
received from customers in advance
as advances received from customers
which are included in other payables
and accruals. Under IFRS 15, the
amount is classified as contract
liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15,
the Group reclassified RMB1,569,000
from other payables and accruals to
contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018
in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance as at 1
January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS
15, RMB2,379,000 was reclassified
from other payables and accruals to
contract liabilities in relation to the
consideration received from customers
in advance for the provision of services.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continued)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to IAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change
in management’s intentions for the use of
a property does not provide evidence of a
change in use. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

IFRIC-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when
applying IAS 21 to the situation where an
entity receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied
for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or
non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the
guidance provided in the interpretation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards

RAEER ST RRNEH
K= (&)

23

& 28 i 1B 1 R A R B9 (B PR B 35
HEEA)

116

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
(BB TS 5 2ER) B39 2 1EET
Amendments to IFRS 9
(BB B S REER) B O 2 EFT
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(BRI R EERIDFE 105 &
CEIBR & 5t 2RI 5 28 5% 2 1B 5T
IFRS 16
(BRI & 2RI E 1657
IFRS 17
(BRI mE LR E 1755
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
CERERGEERDE 15 &
(BB LR E 8 ZIEFT
Amendments to IAS 19
CERFR Gt ERDE 195 2 1BET
Amendments to IAS 28
(BB g st 2RI E 285% 2 BAT
IFRIC Interpretation 23
BT SREs2ELZES®
—2EF 235

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

F I 2015-2017 F 1 E]

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after !

1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2

1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 8

1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but 4

available for adoption
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(BEIFR B 5 & 2 ) o

Definition of a Business?

R EE?

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

IEREAFER B HHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

REEZHABEPEA S SR EELESL
KA

Leases'

HET

Insurance Contracts®

Rz & #7°

Definition of Material?

EN:0)E

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement'
FFEIBIER - B S AEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'
RBEPLEREE P FEAR

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

PGB IEH T HEE 1L

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23"

(R B B s 2RI 35% - (BIBR BT B 5 2 BID 3 11
g% KBIPRET 2R E 1255 RCKBIBR & 5T 22 81) 5 23
B2 AERT

H2019F1 A1 B Z%&FHH
M HIR AR

R2020F1 A1 B2 &S
M HIR AR

R2021F1 A1 B Z%&FHH
M HR AR
MAREERSBIAERBE B
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available

for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
SIC Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property in
IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

Basis of Preparation and Changes in

Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Lessors will continue to classify all leases using
the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in IFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparatives. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17
and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions
allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose
lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application. During 2018, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of IFRS 16. The Group has estimated that
right-of-use assets of RMB15,056,000 and lease
liabilities of RMB15,056,000 will be recognised at 1
January 2019 with a corresponding adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather
than IAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term
interests. 1AS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on
1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the
relief from restating comparative information for prior
periods upon adoption of the amendments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.3

24

Issued but not yet effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

IFRIC-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to
be applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively
without the use of hindsight or retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in an associate and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of the associate and the
joint venture is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investment in the associate or joint venture,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the associate or joint venture is included as part
of the Group’s investment in the associate or joint
venture.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

124

(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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By %5 S 3R B oE (48D
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126

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

128

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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20184 12531 H

2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iiiy is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

0

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related
to the Group; and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment
benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item
of property, plant and equipment is classified as held
for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

4.75%

9.50% to 23.75%
19% to 31.67%
10% to 33.33%

Land and buildings

Vehicles

Electronic equipment and others
Leasehold improvements
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2018

20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

134

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost of investment properties using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives years. Owner-occupied property is transferred
to investment property when there is a change in use
evidenced by the end of owner occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which the item
is derecognised.
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By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and the relevant licence periods.

Customer relationships and inspection certifications

Customer relationships and inspection certifications
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customer
relationships and inspection certifications have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customer relationship and
inspection certifications of 6 years.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms of 25
years to 40 years.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

138

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

140

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in 2. GEEERGTBENEE
Accounting Policies and Disclosures R E (&)
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 EARASHEEHE(HE)

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continueq)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.
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142

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primary derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

2.

ks
KiRE

EENETHRRNEH
(#&)

24 EASTHEHRE(E)

RILERLHEE (REZEERH
BHEERDFEIFE20185F 151
H 27 A 19 B R R AR 1% (E B & it
RN FE395R20184E 151 A5
1 BB )

EREE (L (WER) EWEEN

—#Mo—AALUSREEN —&
)R TR T 48 LR (BIR

AEEGAMBARKPBE) -

. BEZREEMSRERE
RS Em ¢ 3k

. AEECDEEE WA ZE
BEMRSRTRENER
HRIE(EF I ZHELE
BRELERNBER T AERSE
=HBBXNEREER SR
ENEL R@QAKEEH
B HBENBAD R R
Ko B % : 3k (b) A< 5 B 3 &
BRAREZHEEENBK
MoRREERK B EE
%IAE ERTE I o

WAKREEEEEUMEZAEE
s ’fﬁéﬁ’ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%??
B Rt EEREREEEM
ﬁﬁéﬁ’]ﬂ[“*&@#&u&% =
BE - WMAREILEERNERE
ZABEEMBRE D R KO R -
TMESERZIAE E RS A%
HEEREERRASERESR
ZABENREEEERABAR - #
LERT - NREBETEREREE -
EEREERABEREIZRRA
SEEREOEN MR ENEES

=
=

TEBIREBIERARNR 2018FERE

145



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12 A31 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

146

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies

under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as

described above.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

150

(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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2.

152

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

China Leon |

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

156

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
itemn, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method.
For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in
IFRS 15.
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2018412 431 A
2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in 2. REEBEEREBRNES
Accounting Policies and Disclosures R E (&)
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 EARASHEEHE(HE)
(continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January WA (E20185 15 1H#HE
2018) (continued) ) (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EEAHMA ()
The Group provides coal and coke testing and 7N [ R 4 R ok N B R AsORI B B8 AR
inspection services. Revenue from coal and coke % o EHE MRS ER % - BIRE
testing and inspection services is recognised when the R R R KRR 5 RS o

agreed services are provided.

Revenue from other sources H i A

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis HEWARTEE F BRIk fE B )
over the lease terms. R o

Other income H i A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using BB U A IR FET AL 2 LA B BRFI &
the effective interest method by applying the rate that % ERRAESR T AETERT
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts FAFH (EREAAME (WEA)
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a FEET R RIS WA ERUIBES
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying BVEEMIREFEM LR T AR ©

amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ B B A B B B MK R R TR Y R )
right to receive payment has been established, it is Y RTER - RAREEAR B AR M A
probable that the economic benefits associated with ENmSRAREE  MKREESE
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of BErSERTE -

the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) service income, from the rendering of coal and
coke testing and inspection services, when the
agreed services are provided;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(©) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Contracts for services (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs of
rendering services comprise labour and other costs of
personnel directly engaged in providing the services
and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
over the service terms as the services are rendered.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfiled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

2.

RAEER ST RRNEH
K E ()

24

EARSTBERE (B)

URGBE#TH ()

DA RN ZHA - EF D
MR INER S - AR LR
fER 11 Z B 2 BRI A B B 48 A 5
X HER - ERE R 2B EREH
RERUREEENRGAERLZ
RETER - HIRBREFERER 22
ERAEEHNZERE 2 Em T
AHEZH&EM - BRBRREN
BRGETAZ S BIIRERZ AR K
HRAERRAAIZES -

ETRBERZRZAAEER
AR BR TS e FE T S A UG -
WEAARENEHEFEZIERT Al
AERAEEHRAKERE 2K
ATAHBRERGGTZ &2 ™
BRI RN EEERERZ
RI(EIE - S22 (A A B 75 16
(B A R 2 5R) R AEIEM
T AR o SEM T IR R BRI 22 B 2
NAEE RIFRFAERBE R %
RRBIGRAT - & RIEER DAY 323K o

E I B A BN, KBRS R 1 R BE
ER MR ER T 2 2R TR
FX - LB S Mm5 IR Tk
- T 5 S IR T IR E A
BT - i prA E MR R, SR
RFBHEZEN - AR B IHHAR S —
AR T o



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Employee benefits
Social pension plans

The Group has social pension plans for its employees
arranged by local government labour and security
authorities. The Group makes contributions on
a monthly basis to the social pension plans. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
social pension plans. Under the plans, the Group has
no further obligations beyond the contributions made.
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)
2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

164

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Housing fund and other social insurances

The Group has participated in defined social security
contribution schemes for its employees pursuant to
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. These
include housing fund, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and
maternity insurance. The Group makes monthly
contributions to the housing fund and other social
insurances. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss on an accrual basis. The Group has no further
obligations beyond the contributions made.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Apart from those described above, the Group does not
have any other legal or constructive obligations over
employee benefits.
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2.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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31 December 2018

2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2. Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Basis of Preparation and Changes in
Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018 was
RMB48,957,000 (2017: RMB6,305,000). Further details are
contained in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties, the
Group periodically reviews the changes in market conditions,
the expected physical wear and tear, and the maintenance
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is
based on historical experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Depreciation amounts will be
adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are different from previous estimation. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Share option scheme

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating
fair value requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life, volatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them. Continuous estimation
is required for the calculation of cumulative share-based
payment cost at each reporting date until vesting, including
estimate of the number that will vest. Details of share-based
payments are contained in note 31 to the financial statements.

Business combinations and goodwill

When the Group completes a business combination, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value. Management estimation is
required to determine the fair values of the assets acquired,
the liabilities assumed, and the purchase consideration, and on
the allocation of the purchase consideration to the identifiable
assets and liabilities. The fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are determined using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement and estimation is required in establishing fair
values. Management must estimate the expected future cash
flows and discount rate in order to calculate the fair values.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R B oE (48D

E RS R e (&)

st TRER X (8/)
BRETE

AEB2RBEZTARNKRLEAROQAE
B E2REEETEREERIHIMA -
B AN BERERERBEE R THERT
B EEER - EEURAE TR ERFEK
o EthERETHEELNZRAENS
AZE  BEEHED  KBHERMBEK
mEAREEEELRE EHEBEZA
MEEREBH  SFEURG BERNN
FHBRHRATEZEEGHE  REHBE
EENBEBELG - RO AEERNH
FEBERN T RARMTES -

KRS RHmE

HAREEXER A G - BIPTUE A A&
MEBEENMARENEBIZREAABERER -
BEMPBEE FAERE BEYE

MAREE ARDEA#AIEEREE
MEEHERRERERE M - FKE
MR BRI EEMTERENREN R LEE
ERAERN(BEMRBASREN) B
E o WERAPTABBEA BRI THRA
BREMESNE  EETATERT - IR
TR H T M EHABEAREE - EEE
AT RKBEERERTBEERUGFEAR
BE-



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

4. Operating Segment Information 4. REDIPEFR
The Group’s revenue and contribution to consolidated results HRAEBRARGEFERREERE
are mainly derived from coal testing and related technical B R AR R ARTS - iR AE—
services, which is regarded as a single reportable segment WZERM D B ERRS N ERE R
in a manner consistent with the way in which information MEMGHERAEESREREABETA
is reported internally to the Group’s senior management e R A B E R A 7 I — B M R IR A
for purposes of resource arrangement and performance B BERBEZIEASFER -

assessment. Accordingly, no segment information by profit,
asset and liability is presented.

Geographical information i 15 & R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a FKEIBEFHPA
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Mainland China AR A 196,904 194,873
Indonesia HE 12,841 2,001
Other countries/regions HEMER & 24,005 4,047

233,750 200,921
The revenue information above is based on the N EWAEBR T ERBEFRTEH -

locations of the customers.
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By %5 S 3R B oE (48D
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20184 12 A31 H
4. Operating Segment Information 4,
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

REesBER (8

1 35 & Y (4R)
b) FREEE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

2018 F R 2017 F

12H31H 12HA31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREEF T

Mainland China H L A3, 143,942 139,715
Other countries/regions HEMER, & 19,062 1,982
163,004 141,697

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

During the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue generated
from one of the Group’s customers accounting for 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue was RMB38,915,000 (year
ended 31 December 2017: RMB73,834,000).

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

EXHAEFERDEEERDHERE
EMAER Y TefReTANE

EHRIAEE

—RERRFWEHR

HZE2018F12A31BILFE > AAEME
HPF —E2BPHBRAGERERRKA
B10% 3k A £ - A A K #38,915,0007C
(HZ=2017F12B31HILLFE: AR

73,834,0007T) °

WA - Htpl AR W

WADHTIT

2018
2018 F
RMB’000

2017
2017 &

RMB’000

AR®TR ARBETT

Revenue from contracts with
customers EEEHKA
Rendering of services RHRB

233,750

200,921
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA HBARKE (&)
(continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) O E oL F
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEF T
Segments palkis
Type of services PRAER
Testing services 08 AR 7 204,108 164,213
Surveying services ETFERS 21,619 28,500
Witnessing and ancillary services RE N E B RS 8,023 8,208
Total revenue from contracts with BEEA MBI
customers 233,750 200,921
Geographical markets & T %
Mainland China R A B 196,904 194,873
Indonesia HIJE 12,841 2,001
Other countries/regions HMBER 24,005 4,047
Total revenue from contracts with EEA MBI A
customers 233,750 200,921
Timing of revenue recognition WA EREBE
Services transferred at a point in time AR R 2R RS 233,750 200,921
Total revenue from contracts with EREAHBWA
customers 233,750 200,921
Revenue from contracts with EEEHKA
customers
External customers INERE 233,750 200,921
Intersegment sales DEPFEIEHE 14,599 28,353
248,349 229,274
Intersegment adjustments and o EPE AR iR
eliminations (14,599) (28,353)
Total revenue from contracts with
customers BEPEHRABE 233,750 200,921
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31 December 2018
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5.

176

Revenue, Other Income and Gains
(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

5.

WA~ H AR K ()

(i)

WAERBHA (&)

TRETNAREREZNRAS
B EARSHINGNEER
SR BEHIMER R B R EHER

2018
2018
RMB’000
AR¥T
Revenue recognised that was included in contract Bt AREH TN A N EE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: BRI
Rendering of services RHARTS 1,569
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31 December 2018
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA HBARKE (&)

(continued)

(i) Performance obligations i) BHEE
Rendering of services B HRH
The Group performs analytical tests for coal quality AEERBRESHETHMA -
and usually issues testing certificates or reports W3R &R TT IR IG R RE 24548
within 24 to 48 hours after completion of the on-site NEABERBESI@mME c BL
preparation. The performance obligation is satisfied B AR R RR RS ST B IE MK o

upon completion of coal testing services.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: EMRA R TIT
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 &
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bra AR®F T ARETF T
Other income Hg A
Bank interest income RITH B HA 87 54
Tax refund EiREIE 400 108
Rental income el A 832 581
1,319 743
Gains U &=
Gain on disposal of bank financial & $8 1732 B 2 fp A9 U 25
products 761 242
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries Y& % fff B A &) 89 I &5 33 34 85
Gain on foreign exchange M H R e
difference 744 28
Gain on disposals of items of LEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment HEIE B s 162 15
Others HAth 142 521
1,843 891
3,162 1,634
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6. Profit Before Tax 6. BiAlAE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREBOBATFBLENE, GEA) KT
(crediting): FIHEEH
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR¥T ARET T
Cost of services provided FfT 12 £ AR 75 B9 3 AR 110,842 90,237
Depreciation of property, M BEREENITE
plant and equipment 13 11,855 9,261
Depreciation of investment properties &% & ¥ ¥ & 14 1,275 1,223
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE AT 4 b 70 & R0 IE 8
payments 15 244 244
Amortisation of intangible assets | & EH 17 296 88
Research and development costs: IR A
Current year expenditure REFRZ 11,618 14,051
Minimum lease payments under KEHEBE THEHES :
operating leases:
Land and buildings TH RIEF 7,876 6,835
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BB % B 1,350 1,200
Employee benefit expenses (including EE@FIF S (BIEES
directors’ and the chief executive’s RE=TBRABHMN)
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TERFH® 93,907 53,172
Pension scheme contributions BRINEET B R 9,510 4,948
Welfare and other expenses BR REMFAR 14,970 11,560
Equity-settled share option expense ~ LAREZS A5 B N BB AR AE BT 2 31 1,553 627
119,940 70,307
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) CEMEERE
of financial assets, net: CRERRE) - F58
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) E 5 EWGRERE,
of trade receivables, net CRfE#RRE) - B8 22 529 (213)
Impairment of financial assets TERTFRIE - Hith FEUGRIR
included in prepayments, other REMEENEREE
receivables and other assets, net BE - FEE 543 -
1,072 (213)
Bank interest income HRITAEHA (87) (54)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of items of HEME - BERZBIEER
property, plant and equipment, net B (W) 18 - F8 (44) 33
Gain on disposals of bank financial HERITIRN E R
products (761) (242)
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7. Finance Costs 7. BERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKAEDTAT :
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings — $R1T & 7k & H b & 35 &2 2,632 690
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERESITHAEFHMH
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BRIBCETRAD - BB BEHD) &
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), 383(1)(@) * (b) * () M1 K (AT (FE
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 EFZNRERROIDFE2RBERE 2 FANE
of the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of ERERTBRAEBHFMHOT :

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Fees e 255 252
Other emoluments: HAnfi & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EERIEReF S 3,258 2217
Performance related bonuses EFEEIEAL 1,497 720
Equity-settled share option expense RS E N ERERY 657 -
Pension scheme contributions RIKSETEIH K 190 153
5,602 3,090
5,857 3,342
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERESITHAEFHMH
Remuneration (continued) (#&)
During the year, YANG Rongbing was granted share options, FRBRBEAARERESTS BHEEE
in respect of his services to the Group, under the share option 77N 52 B R A 0 AR 7 i () ELA B AR -
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out E—THBHRYBMERMNEI - ERER
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such LHHEEZEBERENRABELNE
options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the BHRNERER  MAFENBRE AN
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and HEeHEHALAMEERESTTRAED
the amount included in the financial statements for the current HENRES o

year is included in the above directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHTES
YANG Rongbing ceased to be the chairman of the B EE2018F7 A23HETH
Audit Committee with effect from 23 July 2018 while EXBEZZEgXE mMERRE
LIU Hoi Keung has been appointed as the chairman of REA—BEHBBERGLEERTA
the Audit Committee in replacement of Mr. Yang with BEZLZEGEF -

effect from the same date.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FARBLIENTEEZFNES
during the year were as follows: T

2018 2017

20184 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

YANG Rongbing B 48 84
ZHAO Hong =k 85 84
WANG Zichen ITHE 85 84
LIU Hoi Keung B 37 -
255 252
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAWEEEBIENITERE SN
independent non-executive directors during the year R E M S (20174 : £)
(2017: Nil.
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERESTHAEHM
Remuneration (continued) (#8)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director (b) HTES FHTESRES
and the chief executive TBAER
2018 2018 F
Mr. Yang has been re-designated from an independent B AEE 852018F 7 523 H # |
non-executive director to an executive director and BYRTESATRRITEST
was appointed as the vice chairman of the Company BZERRARINEIEEE -

with effect from 23 July 2018.

Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e DY §:5
BER BX HEH Bk e

FRERE BATA RREAX BE FMRE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARET:R

Executive directors HTES

LI Xiangli (Chief executive) ZRF (BRRITHAS) 1,122 811 - 55 1,988

LU Yi 257 943 351 - 55 1,349

YANG Rongbing B&RE 592 43 657 29 1,321

ZHANG Alying REE 601 292 - 51 944
3,258 1,497 657 190 5,602

Non-executive director FHTES

WANG Gang T4 - - - - -
3,258 1,497 657 190 5,602
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

(b)

182

Executive directors, a non-executive director

8. EERERTHRABRM
(#&)
b) HBITEE FPFTEERES

and the chief executive (continued) THAE (&)
2017 2017 F
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
kA DR
2R Y HEN BRe
FREM R BB BRERS sHEIfR FazE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
LI Xiangli (Chief executive) ZRF (RETBAS) 865 200 - 51 1,116
LU Yi 217 748 220 - 51 1,019
ZHANG Alying RER 604 300 - 51 955
2,217 720 - 153 3,090
Non-executive director FUTES
WANG Gang T4 - - - - -
2,217 720 - 153 3,090

There was no arrangement under which a director

or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

0.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors of the Company (2017: three), details of whose

remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the

remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2017: two)

highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

TERESEFMES

FRNRAZ T NEEBRARR =ZRE
F(2017F : =&)  FHEBEEHFHNF
ISEH EXHFE8 - JEAR AR EEFIRIE
EETBRAEMBRTMERS T HES
(2017 F : MA) BFANEBFBEHSDT

2018 2017

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FEMEIEBRES = 3,274 1,800
Performance related bonuses IE AR RETEAT 530 585
Equity-settled share option expense NEREENERERY - 68
Pension scheme contributions RIKSET B 120 102
3,924 2,555

FINEATHENIFESEMIEZITHA
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BENRaTHMEEMNAZNT
bands is as follows:

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

2018 2017

2018 % 2017

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T3 7T % 1,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 7 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7£ & 2,500,000 7 7T 2 1
2 2

FR-BEAZFEETHFRSTRARN

= %

highest paid employees were granted share options. = o e B 1% B AR A o

During the year, no non-director and non-chief executive
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10.

Five Highest Paid Employees
(continued)

During the prior years, share options were granted to two
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
in respect of their services to the Group, further details
of which are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the prior year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is
subject to income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits. The tax on the dividend income from a
subsidiary in Mainland China has been provided at the rate of
10% during the year.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable income, except for certain subsidiaries, which have
been identified as “high and new technology enterprises” and
were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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10. Income Tax (continued)

10.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated

at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

P& %t (&)

H b3t 8 R 2 BB R AR IRATIA
Bl EEMZREREH  RARESE
FEM R ERE 2 RITHEHH -

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT

Current income tax BREAFT /S AR
— Mainland China — A 9,863 6,946
— Elsewhere —H {th iR - 90
Deferred (note 21) B (HiE21) (552) 1,398
Tax charge for the year FRRIAL H 9,311 8,434

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ERANEARR REKXZ BB QR E
BAEERIATEM RS BT AEAR
AR S IR BN B R 5T H M B IR B ST B

mF :

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREF T
Profit before tax 5 A0 A1) 14,212 43,137
Income tax charge at the statutory B 25% W ETEFTS B EAE
income tax rate of 25% RIPTE R 3,553 10,784
Effect of the preferential income tax rate IS EBER RN L (4,539) (4,188)
Tax losses not recognised REERHTIEEE 9,320 1,576
Expenses not deductible for tax R 896 353
Additional tax deduction for research and HERAZ BRI NRIE
development expenditure (1,535) (1,459)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable RSB & BIFE 2 71 7] 2 K 5178
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries HIEN 2 333 1,111
Others H A 1,283 257
Tax charge for the year at the effective rate BREBRREFEMNFTARIBR 9,311 8,434
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11. Dividends 11. K2
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT

Proposed final - RMB0.0075 FEAEIRE—ER
(2017: RMBO0.025) per ordinary share @A AR 0.0075 7T

(20174 : AR¥0.0257T) 3,000 10,000

186

12.

On 22 March 2019, the board of directors proposed a final
dividend of RMBO0.0075 per share totalling RMB3,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The proposed
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The proposed final cash dividend of RMB0.025 per share
totalling RMB10,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 11
May 2018.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of The Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 400,000,000 (2017: 400,000,000) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue during
the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of The Parent
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

REBATEEBAESREANREERT

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculations

AHEERER L EE RN B2
MERREBRSEREA

14,021 35,5695

Number of shares

BB E
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 &

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic
and diluted earnings per share calculations

Effect of dilution — weighted average number
of ordinary shares: Share options

AHEERER S BN
AR FERD BT EAR

EEgiliie Scyk: ok 24

400,000,000 400,000,000

610,759 -

400,610,759 400,000,000
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

13. W% BERRKE

Electronic
Land and equipment  Construction Leasehold
buildings Vehicles and others in progress  improvements Total
TREF BE EFREREM ERIE HENEZEE @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TRT AR%Tr AR¥TRT ARMTr  ARETR
31 December 2018 2018512831 A
At 31 December 2017 and 201712 A31A K
1 January 2018: 20181718 :
Cost o 69,780 22,162 29,246 18,906 3,505 143,599
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (2,435) (16,639) (16,481) - (1,556) 87,11)
Net carrying amount ERFE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488
At 1 January 2018, net of 20181 A18 -
accumulated depreciation AR EEE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488
Additions e 1,076 4,869 7,535 7,776 1,180 22,436
Disposals HE - (56) (238) - - (294)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEMB AT
(note 33) (W2 33) - 4 1,753 - 509 2,356
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year note 6 (Hit6) (3,328) (2,393) (4,870) - (1,264) (11,855)
Transfers 85 9,890 - 2,756 (19,742) 7,09 -
Exchange realignment fE R B - (56) 872 - 27 (455)
At 31 December 2018, R2018%F12 A31H -
net of accumulated AR EEE
depreciation 74,983 7,891 19,329 6,940 9,533 118,676
At 31 December 2018: 2018 12A31H
Cost o 80,746 23,630 44,110 6,940 13,095 168,521
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (5,763) (15,739) (24,781) - (3,562) (49,845)
Net carrying amount REFE 74,983 7,891 19,329 6,940 9,533 118,676
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

13. 1% - MERRKRE (&)

(continued)
Electronic
Land and equipment Construction Leasehold
buildings Vehicles and others inprogress  improvements Total
THRET B ETREREM ERIE HENEERE L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETRT  AR%ETR
31 December 2017 2017512 A31H
At 31 December 2016 and 2016 E12 A31 AR
1 January 2017; 20178118
Cost A 22,553 21,372 23016 18,978 4,370 90,289
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (788) (15,228) (12,043) = (1,564) (29,629)
Impairment RfE - - - (1,028) - (1,028)
Net carrying amount RHFE 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638
At 1 January 2017, net of R2017E1/18
accumulated depreciation NG EFATERRE
and imparment 21,765 6,144 10,973 17,950 2,806 59,638
Additions RE - 1,674 5,393 51,066 - 58,128
Disposals HE - (49 (246) (2,350) - (2,645)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEHBLA - 118 528 - - 646
Depreciation provided durng ~~ FRFTEEE
the year (note 6 (Ht6) (2,034) (2,344) (3,900 - (983) (9,261)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties fnote 14) (Wit14) (939) - - - - (939)
Transfers E8 48547 - 105 (48,778) 126 -
Impairment written off AR - - - 1,028 - 1,028
Exchange realignment ERAE - (20) (88) - - (108)
At 31 December 2017, netof ~ R2017512 4318
acoumulated depreciation N 2EHTE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488
At 31 December 2017: 2017 F12 A310 :
Cost KA 69,780 22,162 29,246 18,906 3,505 143,599
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (2,435) (16,639) (16,481) - (1,556) (37,111)
Net carrying amount REFE 67,345 5,523 12,765 18,906 1,949 106,488
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group HZE2017F12A31ALFE  AEEAH

purchased two buildings from an independent third party with
a cash consideration of RMB37,657,000. These buildings
were pledged by this third party for certain purposes before

the transaction of purchase. The pledge has not been released

and the buildings’ property ownership certificates have not

been obtained as of the date of these financial statements.

—HBUEZFBAMEET  BEHE
B ARE37,657,0007T c REEER B AT
ZEEFHRE - FREETENZER -
HEZSMBHREBE  GREHERE

fRRR - RBFHYEEHE

HEBIREIERERNR 2018FERE

xg

=

INRIES -

189



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018

2018412 A31 8
14. Investment Properties 14. REW
2018 2017
2018 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Cost: XA
At beginning of the year F1 26,833 25,513
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EREEFMEEME
(note 13) (K12 13) - 1,320
At end of the year FR 26,833 26,833
Accumulated depreciation: REHinE -
At beginning of the year F4 4,841 3,231
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEAETFMEEME
(note 13) (Htzt13) - 387
Depreciation charge for the year (note 6) FRITEER (Mit6) 1,275 1,223
At end of the year FR 6,116 4,841
Net carrying amount: AR FE
At beginning of the year F4 21,992 22,282
At end of the year FR 20,717 21,992

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Beijing and Cangzhou. The directors of the
Company have determined that the class of the investment
properties is commercial based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were valued on 31 December 2018 based on valuations
performed by Jiangsu Sanshi Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at RMB27,410,000
(81 December 2017: RMB29,375,000), on an open market,
existing use basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184 12431 A
14. Investment Properties (continued) 14. REYZE (A)
Certain of the Group’s investment properties with a total MR2018F 12 A31H  AEBEHEHEEY
carrying value of RMB19,858,000 (31 December 2017: ¥ (BRmEA AR 19,858,000 T (2017
RMB21,071,000) were pledged to obtain a banking facility F12A31H : AR¥21,071,0007T)) B
from a bank amounting to RMB15,000,000 as at 31 WA - A BIRTTES AR 15,000,000
December 2018. The pledge of these investment properties TR ITRLE - R2018F12 A31H » %
has not been released as at 31 December 2018. LZFIRE Y ER IR 8 R AR o
The investment properties are leased to third parties under BREMEREEHERTE=7 BHEE
operating leases, further summary details of which are — S RL B B P B 1% TR R I 5 36(a) ©
included in note 36(a) to the financial statements.
Fair value hierarchy AREEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERMAREBRREVENAABETNZE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: e
31 December 2018 2018612 A 31 H
Fair value measurement using
RRANAAEBETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEAHE EEFUEE
ERMIERE BAHE BAZE
(5—-B&) (F=ER) (BE=EH) a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT  AR%TRT  AR%®TR NG
Investment properties REME - - 27,410 27,410
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

14. 14. BEWYZE (B)

2017612 A31 H

Investment Properties (continued)
31 December 2017

Fair value measurement using

RANARBEE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BZAHE BETUER

EETIHRE BARE BARE
(F-B&H) (BZERH  (F=ER) A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Investment properties REME - - 29,375 29,375

FR AREBEFENE-BRALE_E
MzEALEERE - TEALEBEFEEA
HEBHE=FBR(2017F : ) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. AL EFE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

M 2018 F 2017 &

12831 H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREEF T

Carrying amount at beginning of the year FYIRMEEAE 6,436 10,608
Disposal HE - (3,928)
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FNEEE (A7aL6) (244) (244)
Carrying amount at end of the year FRIREE 6,192 6,436

Current portion included in prepayments, ETATERRIE - EfhEIGRIE R

other receivables and other assets (note 23)  EAth & E M BRIERE o (M1 7£23) (238) (238)
Non-current portion JEBNEAER 7 5,954 6,198
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

16. Goodwill 16. &
RMB’000
ARBTT
At beginning/end of 2017: 2017 F41,/ K :

Cost and net carrying amount AN & BR B 572
Cost at 1 January 2018 120184 1 A1 HAIRK AR 572
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) W RE BT 8~ | (A2 33) 2,350
Exchange realignment R 207

Cost and net carrying amount 2018412 A 31 AW A KR BRENFE
at 31 December 2018 3,129

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

° Regional coal inspection service-rendering cash-
generating unit; and

° Regional petrol inspection service-rendering cash-
generating unit.

Regional coal inspection service-rendering cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the regional coal inspection
service-rendering cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 15% (2017: 15%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional coal
inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period
is 2% (2017: 2%).

B R E R

BERBEHMMESNEECOEENT
ReELXBMERERN

. @ ERRBRRBRRBSEE
Bf: &

o HBEMARRBEBERARSES
v

HEMRR BB IR R ELEN

EERE R RRRSIRERSELSEMD
AREESBEHENERER RARRE
BABFMERAFHYBEENRSRE
FEAET Ren=RAFEANKBRES
15% (2017 4F : 15% ) - AR TE 5T A F HA
BHEMEHERRRRSIREEMHESR
EMBRER2% (2017F 1 2%) °

HEBIREIERERNR 2018FERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

194

16. Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Regional petrol inspection service-rendering cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the regional petrol inspection
service-rendering cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 18%. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the regional petrol inspection
service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period is 2%.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units is as follows:

16.

mE ()
B R E R ()
HEMAHRBRBEIERE L ELEN

S 1 7 R SRR TS HR (430 S B B
PUGES WEIN Ll R T
AR P E T E B EE MRS B
AR - ReRERAEROBERER
18% » PR TR 31 T4 Mk S B AE 7 R R
RBRHBLNRL HRAEREA2% -

PEERREELBUMNHERTENT

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
12831 H 12431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
Carrying amount of goodwill EEREE
Coal inspection service-rendering BRI 5 AR S 4R it 572 572
Petrol inspection service-rendering AR AR IR 4 2,557 -
3,129 572

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit for 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved during the year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions and the discount
rate are consistent with external information sources.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

FFER2018F 12 431 H &2017F 12 A
STEHMWBESELENFEAEERKAS
FRE - UTAEEEBREERESRETE
B EEETRENIRANSBEEERL

BEENE-ARBEREENXEEN
EEDNFEAPMERNFHENE - BE
SRR R ISR E MRS o

AR E-FIERARR R BTHAT AR
[RBR T A B AL H K E R o

TERKX MR EREERINDE R HR—
ﬁ ]



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

17. Intangible Assets

17. B EE

Customer
relationships

and
inspection
Patents Software certifications Total
EFB#%
=7 g4 RREEE a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR ARET T ARETT
31 December 2018 20185128318
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of 20181 A1 BRI A
accumulated amortisation B 25T 7 725 - 732
Additions AE - 1,604 - 1,604
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) WeBE I B D Bl (M7 33) - - 2,400 2,400
Amortisation provided FRBHERE
during the year (ote 6) (Hiit6) @ (120) (174) (296)
Exchange realignment EHAER - = (15) (15)
At 31 December 2018, net of accumulated 201812 A31H
amortisation M RETEHE 5 2,209 2,211 4,425
At 31 December 2018; R2018F 12 A31H ¢
Cost XA 13 2,463 2,385 4,861
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (6] (254) (174) (436)
Net carrying amount EEFE 5 2,209 2,211 4,425
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B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

17. Intangible Assets (continued)

17. B EE (§8)

Patents Software Total
=25 B BEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREEF T AR®EF T
31 December 2017 2017412 A 31 H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of 201741 A1 B9 A -
accumulated amortisation Bk 25T 8 812 820
Amortisation provided FAEBHERE
during the year (note 6) (Kiate) 1) (87) (88)
At 31 December 2017, net of MR2017F 128318 -
accumulated amortisation bR 25T #H 7 725 732
At 31 December 2017: R2017F12 8318 :
Cost AR 13 859 872
Accumulated amortisation R ®) (134) (140)
Net carrying amount BRESE 7 725 732
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

20184612 531 H
18. Investment in a Joint Venture 18. REELXEMNRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F R 2017 &F
12H31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Share of net assets FE5 & EFE - 1,678

On 9 January 2018, Beijing Huaxia Lihong took the control
over Guangzhou Lihong Energy, therefore, the financial
statements of Guangzhou Lihong Energy have been
consolidated by the Company since 9 January 2018. More
details about this acquisition are disclosed in note 33 to the

M2018F1A9H Ik REB IR ESE
MAMBBE R EHIE Bt - ARFAH
201851 HOR &R & AREIMN B BEIR
W EmEK - BAZBENEZFIBRNE
AU BMERMFIIFIEE -

consolidated statements.

AEBERKASDENE S RIEHIERE
WERBERN W RERM FE 2P RE -

The Group’s trade and bills receivable balances due from
the joint venture are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: REFHNSELDEFBOT -
Percentage of
Bl
Place of

Issued registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
£ ERTRE HERRERE B REE FEIR ZEEH
Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing RMB3,000,000  The PRC/ 50 50 50  Coal, coke and

Technology Co., Ltd. AR Mainland China minerals inspection
EMABERBARBERAR 3,000,000 HE/ Bix - BRR
FE A BYR%
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31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

18

19.

198

. Investment in a Joint Venture 18.

(continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the
Group’s joint venture that is not individually material:

REELENRE (&)

TRIARKEWAZDLE (ERIFEAXN)
M B TS B HY -

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F ARET T

Share of the joint venture’s profit for the year — FE1E & & 1 2 & I K|

- 171

Share of the joint venture’s total EhEE X2 HMKEEBRE
comprehensive income - 171
Investment in an Associate 19. REEZEPENKRE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
#2018 F #2017 &
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Share of net assets EHEEFE

3,489 3,108

The Group’s prepayments and other receivable balances due
from the associate are disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements.

The Group’s other payables and accruals due to the associate
are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

19. Investment in an Associate (continued) 19. REEZEENKRE (&)

Particulars of the Group’s associate are as follows: AEEMBEDEFBOT -
Percentage of
BOl
Place of
Issued registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
£18 BRITREA BMREEM B RERE FEIR FEEH
Leon Intelligence & Information RMB10,000,000  The PRC/ 31 31 31 Technology, Intelligent
(Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. ARE Mainland China management
HEEEGER)REERAH 10,000,000t HE/ and system
B A b development
i BaeEER
Sk
Zhuhai Runheyuan Technology Partnership, which Group’s AEBREHRERNZ KRG HIKEGBRE
employees owned majority shares, has 29% interests in this BMEEGELERZBEDEPHEEF29%
associate. B SR ©
The following table illustrates the financial information of the TRFAREERHE D ZE (EHRTEKXR)
Group’s associate that is not individually material: B BF 75 &R
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Share of the associate’s profit for the year JE(REE & D EF AT 381 8
Share of the associate’s total comprehensive  FE{G B & N3 2 E U 5 450
income 381 8
FEIDERBIZERERAT 2018 FERSE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018

20184 12 /31 A
20. Equity Investment Designated at Fair 20. EERAAREETAEMES
Value Through Other Comprehensive HBmNRERE
Income
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Equity investment designated at fair value BERAABETARLM
through other comprehensive income FEBENRERE
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FELEMRERE - HAAEE 3,000 =

200

On 19 December 2018, the Group acquired a 12.5% interest
in UnionTest Technology (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“UnionTest”)
with a total cash consideration of RMB3,000,000. The Group
has no significant influence over UnionTest’s financial and
operating policy

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at

fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investments is strategic in nature.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

21. Deferred Tax 21. EEBIIE
Deferred tax assets EEHREBEEE
Provision for
impairment
of trade Provision for
receivables impairment of Accrued
and other construction employee
receivables in progress benefits Total
B S EWHIE
REMERKE EEIR
HERE HERE Bt EERF it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R2017TE1A1H 143 148 1,637 1,828
Deferred tax charged to profit RERNRRIET
or loss (hote 10) BB (Fra£10) (99) (148) (546) (787)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31H
1 January 2018 %2018F1A1H 50 - 991 1,041
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FTABE/ (REBZME)
to profit or loss (note 10) KRR (f7 10) 121 - (347) (226)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 171 - 644 815

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB9,699,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,857,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

The Group also has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong and other countries/regions of RMB39,258,000 (31
December 2017: RMB4,448,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

REERFEAMEENRFTHRIBEIEA
AR #9,609,0007T (2017412 A31 8 :
AR®1,857,0007T) * R —ERFAE
BALAHE 85 R SR B SR B R o

REBMATREBREMEAR MEEER
517218 k5 1B A R % 39,258,000 7T (2017 FF
1283818 AR¥4,448,0007T) © A] 7
ERAANRANEEEEEEHANTER
RIERBLFE o

ZEEERNEEBRE -BREENHEBAR -
AREERB T AR SR BRTE N A
EIHBIEE R - FUt W R ERRERIRE
o
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31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

21. Deferred Tax (continued) 21. EEBIIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEFE
2018 2017
2018 £F 2017 4
Withholding Withholding
tax tax
BB B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
At beginning of the year F1 1,111 500
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) W BB BT B2 B) (A72%33) 408 =

Deferred tax (credited)/charged to (Rt AIBZR) /RIERENBRE

profit or loss (note 10) EIERITE (K72 10) (778) 611
At end of the year FR 741 1,111

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China.

At 31 December 2018, deferred tax liabilities of RMB333,000
have been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of RMB3,333,000 that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB108,379,000 at 31 December 2018
(31 December 2017: RMB80,530,000). In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

22. Trade and Bills Receivables

BEZRUFERERREE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

A 2018 F R 2017 &F

12H31H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

Trade and bills receivables 2 5 e IE K E W R B 43,619 22,894
Impairment VERED (1,356) (331)
42,263 22,563

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally three
months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade

i

AEEBREEFPHRZIFREBEMNMEE -
KB PR T ERBN KR - EEHR
BER=EA  AEKESRKEBERREER
FEYRIE - S AREEA B EHBEZAME
B REBEYARE FRYEFRLEHTE

EAEAREEMERER - B 5 -

receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the

AR EBREH AR -

invoice date and net of the loss allowance, is as follows:

RERZAHLERREIENEZEK
FEREBZEOREDITOT -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

R2018 & 2017 &

12HA381H 12 H431H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Within 3 months 31E A AR 34,312 18,597
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 4,953 2,411
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 2,374 1,543
1 to 2 years 1E2F 613 12
Over 2 years 2F LA E 11 =
42,263 22,563
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31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

22.

204

(continued)

Trade and Bills Receivables

22, EFEWE

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

RIEREREE
(#&)

BHRIGEREBRBRENESNT ¢

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

At beginning of the year F4 331 817

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment), BEEE, CRERR) @ F58

net (note 6) (Hiet6) 529 (213)
Amount written off as uncollectible W8 A R W B FIE - (273)
Acquisition of subsidiaries I BE R 8~ &) 496 =

At end of the year FR 1,356 331

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31

December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date

using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.

The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings

of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,

by geographical region and customer rating). The calculation

reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value

of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018:

B Z 20184 12 5 31 A 1F FER1E (E
BRI EER ) FIF i E

RE¥HRE B BRABEEREETREDN
UErEBRHEERL - BEXILIENRAR
*ﬂ%‘éﬂéﬁﬁ(EﬂiﬁzE&%ﬁ%i&)E’]y
TI%}E’\*IEZHEUE’JQHHE%(FZE ZatE
2 BR Bk R R N4 A ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁ)&ﬁé%&%
HHER 15 Wﬁfﬁﬂfi%lﬁ BRI KR
KB GMTRBNEIE R SEER

T%ﬁw$%lﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@%§mg%

M2018%F 12 A31 H

Past due
A
Less than Over
Current 9 months 9 months Total
B SRAER BBNMEA @5t
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ #@BREE (ARETT) 34,961 7,487 1,171 43,619
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) BHEERX (ARETT) 649 160 547 1,356
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

22. Trade and Bills Receivables
(continued)

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017

As at 31 December 2017, no provisions for individually
impaired trade receivables were included in the above
provision for impairment of trade receivables.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired under IAS 39 is as follows:

22, ESRWRERERE
(#8)
HZE2017F 12531 H 1L FERZE(E
R E T ER)FE 39 % H B

M2017F 12 A31H HEEANREEZ 5
U FRIARE M A Ll B Z) e WF B R E
B o

R2017FE12A31 0 BE(ER et &
BII) 5 39 5% BT £ {0 71| 7n & HL R 4 1R A R (B
WE ZREWZIERE T T

As at

31 December
2017
2017 &
12H31H
RMB’000
ARETF T

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 3 months past due
3 to 9 months past due

R IR RE
BN 3EA
BHIBE9E A

15,903
1,856
1,417

19,176

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that no provision
for impairment under IAS 39 was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

AR I8 HA TR RO O B R IR B T AR I
BHRFAELNZHDHMEFAR -

BERRERFEZ BEFIERES TBER
AEBRBRENBLEPERH - ANME
EEXUEBEREH ML FEHKDEG
AR EERE - BREBSERLR  AAF]
EERRBARRFERRE(ER SR
RN 39 5RAF LB E RS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 3 3R B 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

22. Trade and Bills Receivables

22 BESREWFEREKREE

(continued) (#8)
The amount due from the Group’s joint venture included in the FTAE S EGRIE KRR E R AR &
trade and bills receivables is as follows: BEDERIENAT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R 2018 F R 2017 F
12831 H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Joint venture BEDE - 488
The above amount is unsecured and non-interest-bearing. A EFEEERRTEE
23. Prepayments, Other Receivables and 23. FAfMIE - HhEWRER
Other Assets Hitt&E=E
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F B 2017 F
12831 H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Prepaid land lease payments (note 15) A LA EFRIE (M3 15) 238 238
Prepayments TR RIE 17,810 10,015
Deposits and other receivables & N H b e W F 8 4,472 9,257
22,520 19,510
Impairment allowance VEREREE (382) -
22,138 19,510
Portion classified as non-current assets DEAIEREBEENI D (6,614) (929)
15,524 18,581

206
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

2018412 431 A
23. Prepayments, Other Receivables and 23. FAfMIE - HhEWRER
Other Assets (continued) HhEE (&)
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental ReREMEBUGIBETEEHSZS RH
deposits and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, EEZe WEA  £EEEAREHF
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date BEAIE LR A RIMENRERE - NG E
by considering the probability of default of comparable WEBBHETHED T - RN2018F 12 A
companies with published credit ratings. As at 31 December 31 BOBMERNFTR017%E100% -
2018, the probability of default applied ranged from 0.17% to BHBRMEFTA100% °
100% and the loss given default was estimated to be 100%.
The amount due from the Group’s associate included in T ATE 5RIE K E b pE W Gk IE A R W AR &
prepayments and other receivables is as follows: EEREFIENAT :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
#2018 F 2017 &
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR T T
Associate B3 - 871
The above amount is unsecured and non-interest-bearing. N ERIEEERETEE -
24. Available-For-Sale Investments
S / 24, DAfEE

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

EH#\Hj%%tﬁ/g

/N
SFABENEMEE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2018 F R 2017 F
12831 H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Financial assets at fair value through EARBEFABREDN
profit or loss TREE
Bank financial products IRITIEEE & 27,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESMEE
Bank financial products IRITIEH E @ - 21,300

The financial products issued by banks have been classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss upon the
application of IFRS 9 as these instruments did not meet the
SPPI criterion. The fair values of the bank financial products
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

RITPABTEMERCRERCERMG
HBEERDEISRE N ER/RAAEER
ABGHNEREE  RA/LFTARE
BSPPIRE - RITEFERNAALEE
TizER N AR ROUER - EERR KE
BRI T ARIRITH R IRBHIR KR

A2 B | g5
TREFTE

HEBIREIERERNR 2018FERE
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B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents and

208

Pledged Deposits

25 B RREFEYUREE
17 ™

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

2018 F 2017 &
12A31H 1231 H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Cash and bank balances H& MIRTTE R 76,848 48,791
Time deposits TEHATE 3K 400 397
77,248 49,188
Less: Time deposits pledged for construction & : fE& Li2 2 M E HiE =
in the progress (400) (897)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhBESEEY 76,848 48,791

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB12,511,000 (31 December 2017: RMB15,059,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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RITRERBEERRITERMNEILZEHN
REREA B - RITEBR R EHERIFR
R IWEIERE S B BEERRT -

RBERR  AEBUAREHENRE
NMERTT S A AR 12,511,000 7T (2017
F12 4318 AR®15,059,0007T) ° A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

2018412 31 A
26. Trade Payables 26. EZENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RMERRBEEZEHNE SR KIE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RENZEBRNRRSITHOT
follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F 2017 &
12831 H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Within 3 months 3EARA 11,620 3,650
3 to 6 months 3Zz6M@A 438 1
6 months to 1 year 6EIAZE14F 51 8
1 to 2 years 122F 125 -
Over 3 years HBiB3F 59 59
12,293 3,718
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally HSRENFEBEIGE  BEERBERATH
settled on 90-day terms. ROOBREEHE -
27. Contract Liabilities 27. EHNEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F #2017 &
12A31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Short-term advances received from EWEFEHER
customers
Rendering of services AR 2,379 -
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to A BEBRIEIEHBAEMUTENE S HERATR o
render services. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 was AEHBER2018EE M T EHERE
mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received KRR R EENE KRR RS
from customers in relation to the provision of inspection hi-h 1

services at the end of the year.
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31 December 2018

2018412531 A
28. Other Payables and Accruals 28. HittfENFIE R ESTIEH
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 F 2017 &
12831 H 12431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Advance from customers R - 1,569
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits Eitse TEAKRER 14,932 9,025
Other taxes payable A FE 49 B 5K 707 755
Payable to vendors of property, plant and BT - BERZREEERIE
equipment 14,815 14,930
Others HAth 4,929 5,392
35,383 31,671
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed HMEMRBE T E R ERETFAAEE -
terms of settlement.
The amount due to the Group’s associate included in other HAEMEMNTIBOENNEBRRSPE
payables is as follows: HIEWOR -
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R2018 & 2017 &
12A31H 12431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Leon Intelligence & Information (Beijing) 718 E JE ) BHE B R AR
Technology Co., Ltd. 1,850 -
The above amount is unsecured, non-interesting -bearing and L RBAEER T ERUEETE
has no fixed terms of settlement. RER o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

29. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans and 29. FFERTERRHEAMMER
Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017
R2017F12 31 H

As at 31 December 2018
R2018%12A31H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
ERFE HR AR RS HR AR®
(%) (%) T (%) (F) T
Current FEtE
Current portion of RBRTERMN
long-term bank loans Vi)
- Unsecured —BER 6.65 2019 6,460 6.65 2018 6,045
Other borrowing HipfER
- Secured - B ER 10.00 2019 56,404 - - -
Current portion of HieERnnsas
other borrowing
~ Unsecured —-BER 9.75 2019 17 9.75 2018 16
62,881 6,061
Non-current FEREME
Long-term bank loans ~ RHIFITER
- Unsecured —-J\ER 6.65 2020 3,652 6.65 2020 10,112
Other borrowings HiofEmn
— Unsecured —\ER 475  2022-2023 9,550 4.75 2022 1,550
- Unsecured —BER 9.75 2020 2 9.75 2020 19
13,204 11,681
76,085 17,742
Interest-bearing bank LA NI G #EHER
loans and other FRETERR
borrowings are HipfEm
denominated in:
-RMB -AR% 19,662 17,707
- HK$ —BT 56,404 -
-INR ~-HEEL 19 35
76,085 17,742
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20184 12531 H

29.

212

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans and
Other Borrowings (continued)

The maturity profile of the bank loans and other borrowings is

as follows:

29.

HERGRHRA bR
i

RITERREMEROBRFTRAT -

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
M 2018 F 2017 &
12H381H 12431 H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREF T
Analysed into: paib-
Bank loans and other borrowings repayable  JE{EEIR1TE 7 & E &5
Within one year —FLAR 62,881 6,061
In the second year REE—4F 3,654 6,477
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFLF(EHEMF) 9,550 5,204
76,085 17,742

Notes:

During the year, the Company issued secured
guaranteed note (“Note”) to an independent third party
(“Purchaser”) by way of private placement in the amount
of HK$64,500,000 (equivalent to RMB56,404,000), which
will mature on 28 September 2019. The Note bears
interest on its outstanding principle amount at the rate
of 10% per annum, due and payable in arrear every six
months by the Company from the issue date.

To secure the liabilities of the Company to the Purchaser
under the Note, the Company’s shareholders, Leon
Cornerstone Investment Holding Limited owned by LI
Xiangli, Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited owned
by Liu Yi and Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited
owned by ZHANG Aiying, charged 26,090,000 shares,
35,550,000 shares and 49,290,000 shares, respectively,
on an aggregate basis being 110,930,000 shares
representing approximately 27.73% of the total issued
share capital of the Company in favor of the Purchaser.

In addition to the share charges, LI Xiangli and ZHANG
Aiying provided personal guarantee in favor of the
Purchaser.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

FR - ARAUREFRABLE=
FUERDBTHERERZR (2
1) - £ %8 464,500,000 T (1HE
W AR #56,404,0007T) © ¥ 72019
F9R28AEH - ZEIZEKREER
LERMENERI10%TE > B%TH
BENEADNSHENRERAEARA]
XAt e

AERAQAAEEBEEFMNE
fE » X 2 &) & 3 Leon Cornerstone
Investment Holding Limited (F Z= A
¥ A ) » Hawk Flying Investment
Holding Limited (FR 2/ # % ) & Swan
Stone Investment Holding Limited (3
REREB) LB AZ=ADRE
#26,090,000 % fi% 17 ~ 35,550,000 %
B 17 % 49,290,000 i B 17 - 48 5T A&
110,930,000 fx A& 17 » 15 A~ =1 2 2
TR A4 A 27.73% ©

BRI ERIN  FRAMREEEUE
TREHEARBEAER -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

29.

30.

31.

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans and
Other Borrowings (continued)

Notes. (continued)

(ii) The Group’s other borrowing amounting to RMB9,550,000
(81 December 2017: RMB1,550,000) as at 31 December
2018 was a loan from LEI Xihu, the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.

(iii) The Group’s bank loans amounting to RMB10,112,000 (31
December 2017: RMB16,157,000) as at 31 December
2018 were guaranteed by LI Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying.

Share Capital

Shares

29. STERITEREHEMMER

30.

(&)
Wizt < (&)

(i) R20184F 12 A31 8 AEBHME
A N R #9,550,0007T (2017 £ 12
A31: AR #1,550,0007T) * 55K
BB ARIFEERBRRETEN—
3=/

(i) R2018F 12 A31H  KAEERITE
A AR10,112,000 7T (2017 F 12
A31: AR#16,157,0007T) * %
MR RRE EIELER -

&N
Bt

As at 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2017

M 201812 A 31 H HR2017F12 A31 H
Number of Number of
shares Value shares Value
RAEAE BEE f&in &8 BE
’000 RMB’000 000 RMB’000
T AR%Tx T ARETT
Issued and fully paid ordinary & 217 & R EUE
shares TR 400,000 131 400,000 131
Share Option Scheme 31. BRESE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Group’s employees, directors and other participants in order
to retain and provide incentive to the employees of the Group
to achieve its business objectives. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

ARREE—AERER S ((BERER
) BEEARRAREEBRINAE
1R mE R AR & O3 - BB R 81/
BER2HEERREAKERER EFRH
2iE EEREMEHEBTAEE
BE  ERERKBEAR - BEER SN
201755 A5 B AR FRIFARTTHURRE
7 BRIBZBHRI1I0FANABER -
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31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

31.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
by the Shareholders and as such limit is refreshed by the
Shareholders from time to time. The maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant that is
eligible under the Scheme and any other option schemes
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
eligible participant would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such eligible
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors. For the share options granted
up to 31 December 2018, the exercising periods commences
either on the grant date to two years or after a vesting period
of one to three years and ends on a date which is not later
than five years from the date of offer of the share options or
the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

31.

BT ()

RV 0 B S8 I £ AT 2 A0 8 AR 31
4 T 5 1 e P PR 1 (2 T U A BT
BRI B S BB & TS BB R IR
RSB RTRG RRRTEEHAH L
R 40 10% o BRAR IR M R AT B IR AT Bt
P AR S ) 2 95 1 T 1T (2 0 P 5 AR
HEATRE T A B AT ROARAD B0 R B A & 2
BB B BT #130% °

PMER 1218 A 23 A B AR 4% B Ak 4 5 2
REMAEMEBRETEEATREERS
HERBOBERE (BRCTERERT
Ry B A i) TR M 2 37T Mi§ T 37T
M) B TSRS E BTN BN
1% - fWAAERSEELE - SR LEM
BiE  BEBHEZE-IREZA (R
‘&% A) LER12ME A BERTTERE
BERZHAERLNBRE (BRESTE
AEHMERITENERE K 2BTR
T EITOR D AR EC BT BB
M)1% » AE — & BB A S IR
RIRERA S R o

I ERENITEHESETE - 5t
HZE2018F 12 A31 H LR LM EREM
T OOFEHREEEBERT RN —=
—FEBEREL YR TERBREZ
A8 HARRET T Sk B AR iR B /Em B AR (A
REERE)KIE -

BEETETHAADARERRAS £
BEAER o



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

2018412531 H
31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. BREFE (&)
Particulars and movements of the target shares BRETESETENRENFERSE
under the Scheme 1)
2018 2018
Number of options
BREHE
Granted Lapsed
Fair value As at during during As at
Date of grant per option 1 January the year theyear 31 December
BRERE
RLAH AREE W1A1A8 FRESH FRE¥  HW12A31H
Notes HK$ ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
Hiit B TR TR TR TR
4 July 2017
2017F7A4H @ 0.34 7,750 - (600) 7,150
23 July 2018
201847 A23H ) 0.44 - 3,000 - 3,000
7,750 3,000 (600) 10,150
2017 2017 F
Number of options
BREHE
Granted Lapsed
Fair value As at during during As at
Date of grant per option 1 January the year the year 31 December
BiBRE
KBS NREE m1A1A8 FRRE FREM™ R12A31R
Notes HK$ '000 '000 '000 '000
it BT Tk Fiz Tk TR
4 July 2017
20177 H4H (@) 0.34 - 8,000 (250) 7,750
No share options were exercised during the year (2017: Nil). FRWRITE(EBAAE (2017 F : )
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31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

31.

216

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Particulars and movements of the target shares
under the Scheme (continued)

(@)

On 4 July 2017, the board of directors of the
Company approved the initial grant only to the Group’s
employees. The total number of the target shares
under the initial grant was 8,000,000, representing
approximately 2% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates
of the first anniversary, second anniversary and third
anniversary of the grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which, 30%, 30% and
40% of the trust benefit units granted to each Scheme
participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period is
from the grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking
dates, during which the disposal of the trust benefit
units is prohibited.

On 23 July 2018, the board of directors of the
Company approved the grant to a director, Mr. Yang
Rongbing. The total number of the target shares under
this grant was 3,000,000, representing approximately
0.75% of the issued share capital of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the date of
grant, the expiry dates of first anniversary and second
anniversary of grant date, subject to the vesting
conditions and upon expiry of which one third of
the trust benefit units granted to participant shall be
unlocked. The lock-up period is from the grant date to
each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during which
the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.
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By %5 S 3R Y 5E (48D

31 December 2018

2018412 431 A
31. Share Option Scheme (continued) 31. BREFE (&)

Particulars and movements of the target shares BRETESETENRENFERSE

under the Scheme (continued) B (&)

The exercise price and exercise periods of the options R EBRERITENBRENTEER

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as TR :

follows:

2018 2018 F

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE* TES
’000 HKD per share
TR BTER
2,325 1.28 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2023 20187 H4BE2023%F7H3H
1,965 1.28 4 July 2019 to 3 July 2024 20197 H4HZE2024%7H3H
2,860 1.28 4 July 2020 to 3 July 2025 20205 7H4HZE202557H3A
1,000 1.414 23 July 2018 to 22 July 2023 20187 H23H£2023F7 H 22 H
1,000 1.414 23 July 2019 to 22 July 2024 20197 H23HZE 20247 H22H
1,000 1.414 23 July 2020 to 22 July 2025 20207 H23 HZE 20257 22 H
10,150
2017 2017 4
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RBRRES B IEE 17

000 HKD per share
T & BTk
2,325 1.28 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2023 201847 H4BZE2023%7 A3H
2,325 1.28 4 July 2019 to 3 July 2024 20197 A4BE2024F7A3H
3,100 1.28 4 July 2020 to 3 July 2025 20207 A4BE2025%7 A3H
7,750

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * BRENITEEITNHR A RE

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

TRADRBRAE H IR LLE B B

similar changes in the Company’s share capital. EH A% -
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31.

218

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Particulars and movements of the target shares
under the Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$1,320,000 (HK$0.44 each) (2017: HK$2,720,000),
of which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$1,829,000 (equivalent to RMB1,553,000) (2017:
HK$724,000 (equivalent to RMB627,000)) during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

31.

B E (&)
BRAEHBETENRENHERS
B (40)

HZE2018F12A31HILFE FRE T
Bz AR (EEA1,320,0007%8 7T (F%
0.4477T) (2017 £ : 2,720,000/ 7T) * &
7R £ B 1 3R B IR R 7 521,829,000 7T
(&R AR%1,553,0007T) (2017 4 :
724,000 87T (HBER AR 627,0007T)) °

5 11 ) DA 25405 0 R R B A e (BT
RIBH BB A R A B
15 L PR B R TR A » TR 310 T A
R A

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

Dividend yield (%) A% B 2= 2 (%) 1.77 1.86
Expected volatility (%) T8 B R 18 (%) 37.39 36.33
Historical volatility (%) JEE 5282 1 (%) 37.39 36.33
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1 [ B 1 2 (%) 2.11 1.79
Expected life of options (year) B ENTEFER (F) 5.00 5.00
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) HN#EF1HR%E (BT & MK) 0.44 0.34

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past five years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
10,150,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 10,150,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$13,394,000
(equivalent to RMB11,736,000) (before issue expenses).

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018

BRENEHFREISEANBELAFNESL
BEEE W ARKRAREEERAMNETR -
T8 HAIR 08 [ BR T IR SR R HE R AR SR8 BB
R B ERERERT -

AABEAELREEEAR THBRE
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RERERIR - AR AR BRS8N
£10,150,000 10 RATERERAE - IREBEAR
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31.

32.

33.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Particulars and movements of the target shares
under the Scheme (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 10,150,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.5% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity for the current and prior years on pages 93
and 94 of these financial statements.

Business Combinations

Acquisition of Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing
Technology Co., Lid.

Beijing Huaxia Lihong directly owns half of the equity interests
in Guangzhou Lihong Energy and the voting power attached
to the equity interests does not allow Beijing Huaxia Lihong to
have the power to govern the financial and operating activities
of Guangzhou Lihong Energy according to the articles of
association of it. On 9 January 2018, Beijing Huaxia Lihong
signed a shareholders’ voting agreement with the other equity
owner of Guangzhou Lihong Energy, pursuant to which it is
agreed that Beijing Huaxia Lihong has the right to make the
final decision when the two parties have different opinions.
The PRC lawyer of Beijing Huaxia Lihong confirmed that the
shareholders’ voting agreement is valid under the relevant
PRC law. On top of the shareholders’ voting agreement, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group has the right to
variable returns from its involvement with Guangzhou Lihong
Energy and that it has the ability to direct the relevant activities
of Guangzhou Lihong Energy since 9 January 2018. Therefore,
the financial statements of Guangzhou Lihong Energy have
been consolidated by the Company since 9 January 2018.

31.

32.

33.

B REstE R
BRAEHBETENRENHERS
B (4)

RZENBHRREMSLZ B ARFRE
B8 AL #E 5T 21 % 5 10,150,000 17 K 17 £ 48
PtE - ARRRNZ B R HITRONL
2.5% °

#iE
AEBRAFERBEFENFERLE
BHERZEVEMKREGBMMBLERE
EmEERPET -

XB a6t
8 8 0 1 98 B RARR B 15 PR D

EREENBEERBEINIBERNF
e - RIBFHABEZMA - BRERE
FIMRRBETATIEREENBERET
EREMNBEIRAOEE REEFE - 1N
2018F1H9R "L REB HBEEM N
SRR E M A AR R IR R R B
Bl EREFBTRERR  bRE
ENBEREEHEKRTE - LREE NG
WA EEAER  BEEEPRER KR
REAGEBER - ERRERRIGZE
EERA B2018F1H9HE  KNEE
BREBRELEEMNNBERZE A ZEIR
BEBgNHEMN N BERNMBEEENE
HIER - B - BN B R M BT A 3R 3%
H2018F 1 AOHRBA M ALRRAE °
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33. Business Combinations (continued)
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing

220

Technology Co., Ltd. (continued)

33.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Guangzhou Lihong Energy as at the date of acquisition were

EBa st (&)

W B N 0 R BE IR AR R B AT B PR A B
(mﬁ)

BEI 196 Be TR 7S W B B BR A AT BRI B EE e
BEENRREEAT

as follows:
9 January
2018
201841 H9H
Notes RMB’000
i3 AR®F T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K 13 959
Trade receivables 2 5 FEWIA 994
Prepayments, other receivables and other TEfTRUIA - bW RIE
assets R E & E 301
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFED 2,369
Trade payables =) ANEE (503)
Contract liabilities aHN8aE 2
Other payables and accruals H e I8 R EFHIE B (513)
Tax payable JE BT (181)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEARBEFENH#HEEFERE 3,424
Non-controlling interests P (1,712)
1,712
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary g4 =N ) 5 (34)
Total consideration FEE R 1,678
Satisfied by cash LAIR & Z T -
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33. Business Combinations (continued)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Lihong Energy Testing
Technology Co., Ltd. (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
the subsidiary is as follows:

33. X¥KA6 (R)
U8 K O 1 98 B RAR R 5 4 7 PR 2
(#)

BERWENBARNRSRENTOT

For the

year ended
31 December
2018
BZ2018F
12A31H
IEFE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Cash and cash equivalents acquired
Cash consideration

BeHE

FESRERREFED

2,369

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary

WEHBARMNAE MRS EEMRAFHE

2,369

Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Lihong Energy contributed
approximately RMB9,311,000 to the Group’s revenue and
approximately RMB2,147,000 to the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year would have been RMB233,750,000 and RMB4,901,000,
respectively.

BT % - B E22018F12 A31 H 1t
FE - BMBERAAREB KA KRFHE
DRIER O AREQ311,000 R AR
2 147,000 7T °

RAGRFVETT - REEUWARH

DRI A A R 233,750,000 7T M A R ¥
4,901,000 7T ©
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33.

Business Combinations (continued)
Acquisition of Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology &
Inspection Co., Ltd. and Leon Overseas (Hong
Kong) Ltd.

On 22 June 2018, Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd., an indirectly non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered in to an
acquisition contract with Saybolt Holding BV, an independent
third party which is incorporated in the Netherlands to acquire
a 100% interest in Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection
Co., Ltd. and Core Laboratories (Hong Kong) Limited at an
aggregate consideration of US$1,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB6,831,000). Core Laboratories (Hong Kong) Limited
changed its name to Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd. on
17 July 2018. On 8 August 2018, Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd
completed the acquisition transaction.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection Co., Ltd. and Leon
Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd. as at the date of acquisition were
as follows:

33.

EBEH (&)
WA E (K2) B ER LR R
Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd.

201856 A22H * KA RIHEIEE
Bf /& /2 7] Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. £2 38 37
28 = 75 Saybolt Holding BV (7 7 B &t it
BCAL) RIS E K - M8 (R)R)
i % 81 /5 BR A &) K Core Laboratories
(HongKong) Limited #)100% #& &5 + 48 % (&
#$1,000,000 & 7T (F8E 7 AR 6,831,000
JC) ° Core Laboratories (HongKong)
Limited %4 20184 7 A 17 B 2 & & Leon
Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd °» 722018 %8 A
8 H - Leon Overseas Pte. Ltd. 52 5k #% Uy &

%5

T8 (RK2) EiMi# 8 AR 2 & &Leon
Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd. 7 U & B Hi &Y
AHNEERBENAALBENT

8 August

2018

2018 £F

8H8H

Notes RMB’000
H et AR¥T T

Property, plant and equipment Y - WE LG 13 1,397
Intangible assets mEE 17 2,400
Trade receivables Z 5 EIE 1,010
Prepayments, other receivables and other TERTFRIB ~ H At FEURIE 2

assets HMmEE 432
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEEY 623
Trade payables 2 SN IR (614)
Other payables and accruals H b e RIBE M EETIE B (359)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIR A 21 (408)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEFENMSNEEFEER 4,481
Goodwill on acquisition Uit B e e 16 2,350
Satisfied by cash IR & 6,831
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33. Business Combinations (continued) 33. ¥¥%&50t(E)
Acquisition of Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & WL E (KF) EMfiBERA A
Inspection Co., Ltd. and Leon Overseas (Hong ¥ Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd.
Kong) Ltd. (continued) (%&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of FRRBRNBARNRERESTOT ¢

the subsidiaries is as follows:

For the
year ended
31 December
2018
BZE2018%F
12A31H
LFE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cash paid for the acquisition WEEEEENRE
Cash consideration REEHE (6,831)
Unpaid amount as at 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A 31 HM AR FKIA 683
(6,148)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ESReARESEFEYD 623
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WEEH B ARMIRE RIASEEBYR L FE
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (5,525)
Since the acquisition, Saybolt (Tianjin) Metrology & Inspection EWBE A E I Z2018F12 A31 H 1k
Co., Ltd. and Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd. contributed FE AT (K2 ETBIERAFTRE
approximately RMB14,132,000 to the Group’s revenue and Leon Overseas (Hong Kong) Ltd. & 72 5 [#
approximately RMB4,688,000 to the Group’s profit for the WA RFED B E B4 AR 14,132,000
year ended 31 December 2018. 7T N 89 N R HE 4,688,000 7T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, IMREFREIET  NEBBHUWA KT
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the 9 Bl A A R 240,901,000 7T & A R #
year would have been RMB240,901,000 and RMB4,337,000, 4,337,000 7T °
respectively.
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34. Note To The Consolidated Statement 34. GREBHERERME
of Cash Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing MEITHELENEEEL
activities
Bank loans
and other Interest
borrowings payables
RITERAM
Hifa = EARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1H1H 10,000 1,210
Changes from financing cash flows MmERSREN B 7,686 (1,900)
Increase arising from acquisition W i — FET BT I8 R R EE HE 938 0
of a subsidiary 56 -
Interest expense (note 7) MBRZ (HiE7) - 690
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F 12 A31H R
1 January 2018 20181 A1 H 17,742 =
Changes from financing cash flows BmERSRENEL 58,712 (903)
Interest expense (note 7) FMERZ (Wit7) - 2,632
Foreign exchange movement 4N e (369) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 H 76,085 1,729

35.

Pledge of Assets

35.

Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in notes 13

and 14 to the financial statements.
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36. Operating Lease Arrangements

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a terms of
one to four years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

36. KEHERH
(a) fEREBA
AEERBCERERHEE LR
A% (MBREME4) - €1
BN AE R A~ FENF -

M2018F 12 A31H » KREERE
EERPAI M A REAEEYN
AT 51 B £ 1) HA B U0 R 2R SR R A

THRBMT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R 2018 F 2017
12HA31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Within one year —FLA 413 365
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRF(EHEMT) 326 132
739 497
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36. Operating Lease Arrangements 36. REHELH (F)
(continued)
(b) Aslessee (b) EHREBEA

226

The Group leases certain of its office premises, plant
and warehouses under operating lease arrangements.
Leases of the properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to ten years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

AEBRELEHELHHEHERH
DWMRGH  BERRE - &HE
BROMEHEMRAS—FETF -

R2018F 12 A31H  KEERIE
IO R EAABR T B E X
MHOAKRFERSEZENT ¢

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R 2018 F 2017 F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Within one year —F LA 7,940 5,537
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERAF(EEEWME) 10,782 11,985
After five years RFUE 2,445 3,127

21,167 20,649
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37.

38.

Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 36(b) above, the Group had the following capital

37. EIE

Br £ B R 36(0) R AT &F HAC & FH B R
Gh » REBR 2018 F K 2017 F 12 A 31 H

commitments as at 31 December 2018 and 2017: BT E AR
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R2018 % 2017 &
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4B R

Property, plant and equipment Y - B KR 3,704 2,490

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any

significant commitment.

Related Party Transactions

(@) Transactions with related parties during the

RIER » AEE W EEREARAE -

38. BEEARS

(@ FABBAIXS:

year:
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Rental income from an associate KEBECENHESEA 229 -
Provision of testing service &b ER AR RTE
by a joint venture - 350
Provision of testing service M& &1 FE RO R
to ajoint venture - 2,255
Provision of technical services B 1 IR BT AR 7S
by an associate 3,743 3,184
Purchase of property, plant and MBS DEBEYE -
equipment and intangible assets WMEREEAREREE
from an associate 5,347 -
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38. Related Party Transactions (continued)

38. BBt ARRS (&)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) PBIEEAKREBLER:
Details of the outstanding balances with related parties HEE R AREEEBRFEBTEHNZ
are set out in notes 22, 23 and 28 to these financial LW mERM 22 - 23 %28 ©
statements.
(c) Guarantees with related parties*: (c) BBIFEER*:
The Group’s bank loans amounting to RMB10,112,000 MR2018F12A31H  REEH
(31 December 2017: RMB16,157,000) as at 31 RITERB/ARMK10,112,000
December 2018 were guaranteed by LI Xiangli and L (2017F12A31 8 : AR¥
ZHANG Aiying. 16,157,0007T) * BZF A F R K&
EERER o
The Group’s other borrowing amounting to R2018F 12 A31H ' AEEME
RMB56,404,000 as at 31 December 2018 was fib f& 5K & A R ¥ 56,404,000 7T
guaranteed by Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding i Leon Cornerstone Investment
Limited owned by LI Xiangli, Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (3 2> 1A F| # &) -
Holding Limited owned by Liu Yi and Swan Stone Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Investment Holding Limited owned by ZHANG Alying Limited (g 2 3 #% F) & Swan
with pledged shares which representing approximately Stone Investment Holding Limited
27.73% of the total issued share capital of the (AREBRER)ELER B
Company. This borrowing was also guaranteed by LI RHOMEARBEFHITRABELD
Xiangli and ZHANG Aiying. 27.73% ° It 1& 3K 1 B & A F Kok
BRIEH %‘1%
(d Compensation of key management (d FAEEFZEEBAENME :
personnel of the Group:
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFR  ARETR
Short-term employee benefits HHEERT 6,785 5,871
Pension scheme contributions RS EIHRK 302 287
Equity-settled share option expense PARE 2 45 5 HO BB IR A =2 707 7
7,794 6,235

In the opinion of the directors, the transactions
between the Group and the related parties were based
on prices mutually agreed between the parties and
conducted in the ordinary course of business.

These related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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39. Financial Instruments by Category 39. HERESTHWEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REMEHER - SENemITANEKRR
instruments as at the end of the reporting periods are as BEHINOT :
follows:

Financial assets

THEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
#2018 F 2017 &
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Trade and bills receivables
Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets
Pledged deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

RHIENATENEREE

Z 5 FEUGRIE R B E R 42,263 22,563
FTATER IR - E A EWGRIE

KHEMEENSREE 4,090 9,257
[ EERE 400 397
RERBELFEY 76,848 48,791

%%ﬂé%i
BERAEEAEM
2HEKEHRERE 3,000 -

BARBEFABRENEREE

Available-for-sale financial assets AT EEMEE - 21,300

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss BAREBEFABENESMEE 27,000 =z
153,601 102,308
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39.

230

Financial Instruments by Category 39. RERETHNER T A (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities EtRmERE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 5 R2017 4
12H31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®ET T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERAFTENSRBE
Trade payables B S EMNFIE 12,293 3,718
Financial liabilities included in other payables &+ A E fth fE {738 & fE =+ 1H B
and accruals WErmAas 19,744 20,322
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FPERITER R E A ER
borrowings 76,085 17,742
Interest payables FERT B 1,729 -

109,851 41,782
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40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

40. SRMTENLOABERAR

BEER
AEBeBIANBEERAABEE X
SEAERARFEABAEERIN B

FIEAR

Carrying amounts
As at 31 December

Fair values
As at 31 December

BRHEE NREE
Mm12 H31H M®12H31H
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 2017 4F 2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTT AR®TIT ARETC
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investment designated BEERAREE
at fair value through other FTAHAMEE
comprehensive income W 5 W P RE IS B 3,000 - 3,000 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - 21,300 - 21,300
Financial assets at fair value BAREERA
through profit or loss BaNemEE 27,000 - 27,000 -
30,000 21,300 30,000 21,300
Financial liabilities EA= =N
Interest-bearing bank loans FRERITER R
and other borrowings HMER 76,085 17,742 76,085 17,742
Interest payables JFE A< T B, 1,729 - 1,729 -
77,814 17,742 77,814 17,742

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

(NE/SER

HifR &R -

ERERHEREARNEFEY EER
3R EHRYFIANERERE - 5t AR
H At W R IR N Bt B EE ) &
BE  BZRNFAM ARMEN A
AEFHRENERARNALEEEER
H{EARE W EEHRNZFTANTH
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40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
loans and other borrowings at 31 December 2018 was
assessed to be insignificant.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at 31
December 2018 and available-for-sale investments at 31
December 2017 represented financial products issued by
banks. The fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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40. SRMTENLOABERAR

BEER (&)

AEBRIBEREENABE  BER
EeMIARABEENROKEREF -
REWEBN HHEBAHN LRI ANE
B B3 Hest i E o FT A 0 = B8 AME -

TREENBBENAARBENZTIALER
BXZHEMRS (MIFRELFELE)
FHRRZGERAR -
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40.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

31 December 2018

40. ERITENAABERAR

BERER (&)
DAABERR

TRIALKE SR TANAAEE
L&

ok
—+
fBin

BRAABEBHEE
20184 12H31H

Fair value measurement using

AAEEERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S EZTHE BEFTHE
HE [IPN-¢ - A HE
(B—E&) (FZEHR) (F=ER) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT R AR®T T AR¥T T
Equity investment designated 5 E IR AL BET A
at fair value through other H 2 mizEs
comprehensive income A& & - - 3,000 3,000
Financial assets at fair value ~ Z A EBET AEZ
through profit or loss MEemEE = 27,000 = 27,000
- 27,000 3,000 30,000
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
Fair value measurement using
NAEEERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
& BRI 5 EZAHE BEN AUEE
WwE W ABUR W ABUE
(F—EH) (FZER) (B=ZER G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREETTT ARETFT

Available-for-sale investments  A] {ft H £ 3% &

21,300 - 21,300
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40. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

234

Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed

31 December 2018

40. ERITENAABERAR

BEER (&)
AAEEER ()
BEAAEEZAM
201812 A31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFTERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT S EZTHE BEFTHE
HE WABE BWABE
(B-—E&H (BZERH (B=ZED &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT ARBT ARBT R
Interest-bearing bank loans and &t BERITE R K E M ER
other borrowings - 76,085 - 76,085
Interest payables S FI & - 1,729 - 1,729
- 77,814 - 77,814
31 December 2017 201712 A31H
Fair value measurement using
NAEBEFSHRA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ENE EZAHERE BENITER
WwE WARE W ABUE
(B—RBH) (BZBH) (BZBHR) CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT ARET T ARET T
Interest-bearing bank loans and &t BERITER R EMER
other borrowings - 17,742 - 17,742
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41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans and other borrowings, pledged deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with a
floating interest rate.

The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities
regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swap to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2018, approximately 13% (31 December
2017: 91%) of the Group’s bank loans and interest-bearing
borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s equity.

41.

BHEREEEREERERBEE

AEENTESRMIABFEABRITER
REMER  BEERERARRE MRS
ZEY ZFeRMIATEARNREAEHE
MEEEEEe ASERARREMS
MEEREE  WIAE S RKRIAREK
ERUALESRMAFE - HERKERA

SEZEE -

KEASESBTANTRRARSTIEE
@ INERR  EERRMABESER -
EXeERURAEEESERRANEE -
Mm% FERRBALOT

FEEB

AEBEBOTM SN RS E R EZEAN
SERFBN G BERAEESR -

AEBEBEHTIEINENEGHLF
BIERTTR B PR KR o AR E I & B
{EART N 2= 42 B LA S ) 2= il Bt

N2018FE12A31H AEEL13%
(2017512 A31H : 91%) WIRTTER &
FEERTOUZEFI R B -

TRIRTHEMERMBEERITTENE
AT HASENBRANECBRE TS
MEERNZE) MRS B SN N R
LIRS EEBRGRMEDIT
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235



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018

20184 12531 H

236

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives M. BEREBEEEERBEE
and Policies (continued) (#8)
Interest rate risk (continued) F =& b (48)
2018 2018
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in basis points in profit before tax in equity
g, Bt Al A E R M,
Om ) 2m, G 4) ORt2)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T
RVB AR 1% (79) (68)
RVB AR (1%) 79 68
2017 2017 F
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in basis points in profit before tax in equity
B, 54 Al A B =g,
CRLA) i, i) Rt 4>)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
RMB AR 1% (103) 87)
RVB AR (1%) 103 87
Foreign currency risk S [ B

The Group’s businesses are principally located in Mainland

China and substantially all transactions are conducted in

RMB. The Group has currency exposures from its cash and

cash equivalents, interest payable and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents, interest payable and interest-bearing bank

borrowings denominated in currencies other than functional
currency were equivalent to RMB49,214,000 (31 December
2017: RMB6,241,000), RMB1,472,000 (31 December
2017: Nil) and RMB56,404,000 (31 December 2017: Nil),

respectively.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited Annual Report 2018
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41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives 41.
and Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate by 5%, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

BEREEEREERERBEE

(%)
shs LB (D)

TRIR T AR08 BRH T 20t
R AEEBAFE AREEEER
BENDAEEED) WEF%NAE
T 6 5 B RO BB A S -

liabilities):
2018 2018 &
Increase/(decrease)
in foreign Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in profit before tax in equity
SEEXEM, B A I M
Om4) 2, (hd) Om2)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR® T
If RMB weakens AR R
against the Hong BT E
Kong dollar 5% (433) (433)
If RMB strengthens i A R # 34,
against the Hong BILAE
Kong dollar (5%) 433 433
2017 20174
Increase/(decrease)
in foreign Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
exchange rate in profit before tax in equity
SMEFE %10,/ B 41 28 HEz 0,
(R 4) 10,/ (R2) Rt )
RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARBFT
If RMB weakens M AR A
against the Hong BT E
Kong dollar 5% 215 279
If RMB strengthens il A R # 34,
against the Hong BILAE
Kong dollar (5%) (215) (279)
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MHBREREEBREREXR

41. Financial Risk Management Objectives 41.

and Policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The credit quality of customers is assessed after taking into
account the customers’ financial position and past experience
with the customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

(%)
EERR

AEBEERERAREBRINGENE
IX5 BESBBEFEREE  A&EH
FREVERRRERI A - £Z BEF M
RAREREFHBERLRER  THEFPH
EEEREHFTME -

2018 F 12 5 31 H B R 5 /& iz B F AL B
B

TRETRR2018F 12 A31 HNIRIEASE
EEERR (FZERBAINAER - K
EEMERAERNERLHRALE AT
B G WEEE = kimE B RR
REKBRIE -2V EBEREMEE
HERTE 2 1(E -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EHEE
27 >HEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach
E1MRER H2MER EIMER SRR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Trade and bills receivables* & 5 & U508 &
L ES - - - 42,263 42,263
Financial assets included 5T AJEfIFUE -
in prepayments, other Hofth [l WK SRR
receivables and other K E A EER
assets CTREE
- Normal™* —E&E™ 4,090 - - - 4,090
— Doubtful** —nJ &+ - - - - -
Pledged deposits [REEHEER
— Not yet past due — 3 48 78 2 400 - - - 400
Cash and cash equivalents  R& RIREHEY
— Not yet past due — 3 % 48 H 76,848 - - - 76,848
81,338 - - 42,263 123,601
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41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (continued)

* For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

> The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
available-for-sale investments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, and by geographical region. As at 31 December
2018 and 2017, the Group had concentrations of credit risk as
8% and 19% of its total trade and bills receivables were due
from its largest customer and 31% and 41% of its total trade
and bills receivables were due from its top five customers,
respectively.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 22 to the financial statements.

41.

BHRARBEREEERBE
(%)
EEmR (3

JR2018 4 12 5 31 A B R 5 & 2 & AL BE
B (&)

* RAKBEEABMEBLETENES

U FIAEREEREM S  EREME
7B FeB ) B R T % R A B T SRR MY A
22 °

** ERTARMNIEA - R ERFARE
ERRALREES N ABRER
SRRBPEEN  HEEEXEHERA
[EF] - BA 2REENFEEER
WARTRISE] o

2017 F 12 5 31 A 89 R 5 /& &

AEEEMEREE (BRASMAESE
EY - HioEUWRARAHEERE) W
EERRHR %ELZ’U%IE’%%H&,\
ZETAMKEEREES

MR AEEEAERTREERIMNES
FHRIRS  BARETHREEARY - &4
FEERBRBEEF /RH5FEBERREM
B[R EIR - R 20184 %2017 12 A 31
B A&EEBEERBRET TTHEREE

FEWFERENEEEEFRDRE8% K
19% REFARFUREE 5 B KGRIER
EWEBERERDANEI1%RM%KE
AEREP -

ERASEEEGE P REFIENERER

FTEEEERBRANE — P T2EBBENIMG
MR EF22 R INEE ©
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41. Financial Risk Management Objectives 41.

240

and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash inflows from operations. The maturity
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

31 December 2018

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

MHBREREEBREREXR

(#&)

MEE T E b

AEENRBESTREREE
REMBRSMANESD - RRESHR -
AEETEBAE (EERARMERRETN)
RMEEBRMAT

201812 A31H

R ER

In the
third to fifth
Within In the years,
one year second year inclusive Total
£==Z
ERF
(BEER
—FR EZHF M) &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR AR¥®TR AR¥ETxR
Trade payables Z 5 ENERIE 12,293 = = 12,293
Financial liabilities included in &1 A b & {5 3B &
other payables and accruals  JEFtTEE R SR AR 19,744 - - 19,744
Interest-bearing bank loans &t BIRITEF K
and other borrowings H g 62,881 3,654 9,550 76,085
Interest payment on bank IRITE RN EALERE
loans and other borrowings ) B2 6,129 79 2,016 8,224
101,047 3,733 11,566 116,346
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41.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2017

41.

MKEREEREREE
(#&)

RBESER (&)
201712 A31 H

In the
third to fifth
Within In the years,
oneyear  second year inclusive Total
F==E
FRHF
(BIEEE
—FR F= GES &&r
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
Trade payables g S EM A 3,718 - - 3,718
Financial liabilities included in -~ &1 A b & {5 Z0IE &
other payables and accruals [EFFEHEMEMEE 20,322 - - 20,322
Interest-bearing bank loans & BRITEF K
and other borrowings H g 6,061 6,477 5,204 17,742
Interest payment on bank IRITE RN EALIERE
loans and other borrowings il B & 895 480 447 1,822
30,996 6,957 5,651 43,604
Capital management BEAREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

AEEEAEENERBNEREAEE
FELERBEFRBRERERL MRS #
MXFFEEBE R ERBRREBERAL -

AEBRELEBSAZHREEEENR
SRMEIETAEEAEE - BTHER
ALREBREE  AEBAAREN TRE
A% S - MR RREE AR EITHR - &
Z2018FEN2017E12 A31 B IEFE » K
SEVENSETEEANEN - BURIHE
g o
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41. Financial Risk Management Objectives M. BEREBEEEERBEE

and Policies (continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (continued) EXREE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net REBRAERNBGBELRETEER  EXE
debt divided by capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to BUHEEERBEFERUNERN N LEGEF
maintain the gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt includes trade BEWEN - AEENBRRARIZELAARE
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank LEEERT70% - BEFHEBIEEZE SER K
loans and other borrowings and interest payables, less cash B HMEMNRIBERERIEER « 5HERTT
and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable B R E A AR R EAF B RER e MR
to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios at the end of TEEY BTN QRS AEILER -
reporting periods are as follows: RMEPREABBELEERNAT ¢
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R2018 & 2017 &
12HA381H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Trade payables 2 ZEMN IR 12,293 3,718
Other payables and accruals (note 28) H b RIE M ERTIE B
(Bt7t28) 35,383 30,102
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FTEIRITER R EMER
borrowings 76,085 17,742
Interest payables JEF B 1,729 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReMREFEEY (76,848) (48,791)
Net debt BEFHE 48,642 2,771
Equity attributable to owners of the parent NEER AL 201,884 195,206
Capital and net debt BEARBEFRE 250,526 197,977
Gearing ratio EXRGELE 19.42% 1.40%
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42.

Statement of Financial Position of the 42, KD T B AR R &R

Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RBERAREERRBDHBARRKROHER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A 2018 F R2017 &F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BHE REE 5 8
Investment in a subsidiary HEME R A 54,978 52,343
Total non-current assets EREEELRE 54,983 52,351
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables and other assets b e WO IE & H At & B 88,730 77,611
Cash and cash equivalents BehIRLEEY 49,301 1,879
Total current assets mENEEBE 138,031 79,490
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H b B~ 308 11,262 8,581
Interest payables FETFIE 1,472 -
Total current liabilities mEAGEERE 12,734 8,581
NET CURRENT ASSETS nEEETFE 125,297 70,909
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAS
LIABILITIES 180,280 123,260
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Other borrowings HmEE 56,404 =
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEELRRE 56,404 -
Net assets BEFE 123,876 123,260
EQUITY =
Share capital % 131 131
Reserves G 123,745 123,129
Total equity T 5 123,876 123,260

HEBIREIERERNR 2018FERE

243



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 R M & ()

31 December 2018
20184 12431 H

42. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

43.

42. AR TBEBBMR T (&)

Note: Htat
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARIEEREWT :
Exchange
Capital fluctuation = Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
EXRfGFEE ELREREE S &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AR T ARBF T ARBF T
As at 1 January 2017 ®2017F1 418 125,869 7,390 (797) 132,462
Loss for the year FNEE - - (2,561) (2,561)
Other comprehensive loss FREME2EERE
for the year:
Exchange differences related TINEETSE R
to foreign operations VE X Z%E - (7,399) - (7,399)
Total comprehensive loss FAZHEBELSE
for the year - (7,399) (2,561) (9,960)
Equity-settled share option AR EE R
arrangements 8 i 2 Bk 627 - - 627
As at 31 December 2017 and R 2017F 12 A31 B X
1 January 2018 20181 H1H 126,496 9) (3,358) 123,129
Final 2017 dividend declared B EIK2017 FREIR S - - (10,000) (10,000)
Profit for the year FRFHE - - 4,312 4,312
Other comprehensive income & A E i 2 E U ¢
for the year:
Exchange differences related BN TS AR
to foreign operations fEHZ - 4,751 - 4,751
Total comprehensive income FREEMRELET
for the year - 4,751 4,312 9,063
Equity-settled share option UHEmEERN
arrangements BB 1,553 - - 1,553
As at 31 December 2018 R2018412 A31H 128,049 4,742 (9,046) 123,745
Approval of the Consolidated Financial 43. HMEMBHRERLHIE

Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March

2019.
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